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ABOUT US

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (the “Company” or “we”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) (stock
code: 2289.HK) is principally engaged in the pharmaceutical
distribution business. It mainly distributes western medicine,
Chinese patent medicine and healthcare products to downstream
distributors and retail terminals, while conducting dealings in the
third-party logistics business of medicines and providing
pharmaceutical products related consulting services. Founded in
2000, over the past 25 years of rapid development, it has become
one of the leading pharmaceutical distributors in the Southern China
region. The Company adheres to the development strategy of
“Intensive Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive
Coverage across Surrounding Areas”, based in Shantou, it has
established subsidiaries in Guangzhou, Zhuhai, Huizhou, Foshan
and Shenzhen, and has four modern pharmaceutical logistics
centers., all equipped with Professional marketing service team,
professional transportation teams, and has a highly efficient delivery
mechanism of delivering pharmaceutical products three times per
day for customers within a radius of 10 kilometers, twice per day for
customers within a radius of 50 kilometers and once per day for
those within a radius of 250 kilometers. In addition, the Company
has a modern information system that covers the entire supply chain
for pharmaceutical distribution, including procurement, sales,
warehousing, transportation and delivery. Apart from that, the
Company operates its own B2B e-commerce platform “Charmacy
e-Medicine” (f]I3£ e &), a platform for customers to place orders
online, make inquires and payment, etc. In 2024, the Company
ranked top 34 among top 100 the PRC wholesalers, in respect of
revenue generated from the principal business. The Company
ranked the 6th among the pharmaceutical distribution businesses in
Guangdong Province.

In the first half of 2025, the Group continued to strengthen its
technical capabilities and service levels in pharmaceutical logistics,
receiving the “Best Logistics Centre for Pharmaceutical Cold
Chain” (for seven consecutive years), the “Recommended
Enterprise for Pharmaceutical Cold Chain Logistics Services” (for
six consecutive years), the “Outstanding Enterprise in
Pharmaceutical Logistics Distribution” (for five consecutive years),
and the “Modern Pharmaceutical Logistics Technology Testing
Base” (for four consecutive years) from the Yaolianquan
Certification Center for 2024-2025. We also received the “Golden
Ant Innovation Award in China’s Logistics Industry” for 2024-2025
from the Organising Committee of the LET-a CeMAT ASIA event
(for eight consecutive year). Furthermore, in response to the
“Enterprise Standards Forerunner” initiative jointly launched by the
State Administration for Market Regulation and seven other
government departments, and following a rigorous assessment by
the China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing, we were honored
with the “Forerunner” title for 2024.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

* DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Yao Chuanglong (Vice-chairman of the Board)
Zheng Yuyan

Zhang Hanzi

Non-executive Directors

Yan Jingbin (Chairman of the Board)
Fu Zheng

Xu Fei

Independent non-executive Directors
Li Hanguo

Wan Chi Wai Anthony

Guan Jian (also known as Guan Suzhe)
* SUPERVISORS

Zhu Minghong

Zhang Ling

Zheng Xiyue

* JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Wong Wai Ling

Yao Jiexi

* AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman)

Xu Fei

Guan Jian
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* NOMINATION COMMITTEE et
Guan Jian (Chairman)

Zheng Yuyan

Li Hanguo

* REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Li Hanguo (Chairman)

Fu Zheng

Wan Chi Wai Anthony

* RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Yao Chuanglong (Chairman)

Zhang Hanzi

Li Hanguo

* STRATEGIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Yan Jingbin (Chairman)

Yao Chuanglong

Zheng Yuyan

* AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Zheng Yuyan

Yao Jiexi

* AUDITOR

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership)

* LEGAL ADVISERS

DeHeng Law Offices (Hong Kong) LLP (as to Hong Kong laws)

Sundial Law Firm (as to the PRC laws)
* REGISTERED OFFICE AND HEADQUARTERS

No. 235, Song Shan North Road, Longhu District, Shantou City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC
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* PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

* PRINCIPAL BANKS
China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. (Shantou Branch)

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (Shantou
Branch)

* H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

* COMPANY WEBSITE

www.chmyy.com

* STOCK CODE

2289.HK

(the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Note: Pursuant to amendments to the Rules

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules which came effect on 1 July 2025, Mr. Yao
Chuanglong, an executive director of the Company (the
“Director(s)”), has ceased to be a member of the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the board of
Directors (the “Board”), and Ms. Zheng Yuyan, an executive
Director, has been appointed as a member of the Nomination
Committee in place of Mr. Yao Chuanglong, with effect from 27
June 2025. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 27 June 2025.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

#HZE 6 H30 HIENEA

Six months ended 30 June #E)
HH 2025 4 2024 4 (%)
Item ARBTICREER) ARETITCREER) change
2025 2024 (%)
RMB’000 (Unaudited) RMB’000 (Unaudited)
%‘%q&_)\ 2,155,071 2,347,185 -8.18
Operating revenue
Vs
aaitd 32,629 38,928 -16.18
Total profit
5 T Bk R FRSR PO A 3
Net profit attributable to the 21,739 26,747 -18.72
shareholders of parent company
HEA KBRS
(LR ARBTAT) 0.2013 0.2477 [18.73
Basic and diluted earnings per share ’ ) .
(expressed in RMB per share)
202556 A30H A2024FE 1231 H SHEh
JHHE AR¥TIG CREFR) ARBTL @&FR) (%)
Item As at 30 June 2025 As at 31 December 2024 change
RMB’000 (Unaudited) RMB’000 (Audited) (%)
4
WEE 3,492,251 3,456,644 1.03
Total assets
4
“Eg‘% . 2,900,422 2,837,953 2.20
Total liabilities
BRmi . 591,830 618,691 -4.34
Shareholders’ equity
BRFEE
(BB ARRIIZ 5.4799 5.7286 -4.34

Net assets per share
(as stated in RMB per share)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

China has officially entered a stage of moderate population
ageing. In response, the healthcare sector is gradually shifting
from “treating disease as the centre” to “people’s health as the
centre”. With a significant rise in public health awareness,
demand for pharmaceutical and healthcare services is steadily
increasing, characterised by greater diversity and coverage across
the entire life cycle. The new “dual circulation” development
pattern is further stimulating domestic demand in the
pharmaceutical market. At the same time, healthcare reforms
driven by the integration of medical services, health insurance,
and the pharmaceutical industry are accelerating the dismantling
of barriers between these three areas. This is propelling the
transformation of China’s pharmaceutical distribution model
from one traditionally focused on direct hospital sales to a
broader network that includes community-based medical
institutions and retail pharmacies. As a result, the pharmaceutical
distribution sector is evolving toward a value-based service
model that spans the full healthcare and pharmaceutical chains.
Innovations in digital technology are continuously injecting
momentum into the sector’s high-quality development,
supporting its ongoing upgrade and expansion. Meanwhile,
industry consolidation is accelerating, with market concentration
steadily increasing. The pharmaceutical distribution sector is
rapidly transitioning from the traditional competitive model of
being resource-driven to an integrated services model that is
centred on supply chain management, digital operations, and
specialised service capabilities.

Market concentration in pharmaceutical distribution is
increasing, with sustained growth in the retail segment

According to data from MENET, China’s retail pharmacies,
including online channels, continued to expand their market share
in 2024, with a year-on-year increase of 1.5 percentage points.
Specifically, there is a year-on-year increase of 14.4 % in
pharmaceutical sales by online pharmacies, while sales at public
hospitals and community-based public health facilities declined.
Instant retail sales through pharmacies, including both
pharmaceutical and non-pharmaceutical products, reached
RMB48.7 billion in 2024, representing a year-on-year growth of
31.3%. As online medical insurance payment channels become

-005-
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more accessible and hospital prescriptions increasingly flow to
external outlets, brick-and-mortar pharmacies are strengthening
their deployment and integration with online channels. This trend
is fueling the continued rapid growth of the online pharmacy
sector.

The Ministry of Commerce of the People’s Republic of China
(“MOFCOM”) published the “Guiding Opinions on Promoting
High-Quality Development of the Pharmaceutical Distribution
Sector During the 14th Five-Year Plan Period”, which clearly set
the targets: by 2025, China aims to cultivate 5 to 10 specialised
and diversified pharmacy retail chain enterprises with annual
sales exceeding RMBS50 billion, and the top 100 pharmacy
retailers are expected to contribute over 65% of total retail
pharmacy sales, with the retail chain penetration rate approaching
70%. According to MOFCOM’s data, in 2023, the top 100
pharmaceutical wholesalers ranked by main business revenue
accounted for 76% of the national pharmaceutical market,
representing an increase of 0.8 percentage points year-on-year.
This reflects a continued increasing trend toward market
concentration in the pharmaceutical distribution sector. Under the
combined influence of policies and market dynamics, the sector
is accelerating its shift toward larger scale and higher efficiency.
Forecasts from the Forward Industry Research Institute estimated
that, assuming a compound annual growth rate of 7%, China’s
pharmaceutical distribution market size is predicted to exceed
RMBA4 trillion by 2028.

Healthcare reforms unlock benefits from out-of-hospital
market, as distributors with strong retail foundations build
competitive moats

China’s pharmaceutical distribution sector is accelerating in
structural transformation, evolving toward a more open and
diversified market ecosystem. Comprehensive healthcare reforms
are being implemented nationwide, with a series of policies
introduced to dismantle the model of “covering hospital expenses
with pharmaceutical sales” (e.g., the regularised advancement of
“bulk purchase of pharmaceuticals”, the increasing improvement
of “hierarchical diagnosis and treatment” system, the full rollout
of the “dual-channel” drug supply mechanism, and the
widespread implementation of the policy on “including
pharmacies in the scope of payment of medical insurance pooling
of outpatient services”). Collectively, these initiatives are
accelerating the restructuring of a pharmaceutical market
traditionally dominated by in-hospital sales.

In  October 2024, the National Healthcare Security
Administration (“NHSA”) issued the “Notice on Regulating Out-
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of-Hospital Dispensing of Prescriptions Covered by Medical
Insurance”, mandating that from 1 January 2025, all designated
retail pharmacies dispensing dual-channel-listed medicines must
process prescriptions exclusively through the unified national
electronic prescription platform, fully replacing paper
prescriptions. This platform has achieved full coverage and
interoperability across all 31 provinces (including autonomous
regions and municipalities) and the Xinjiang Production and
Construction Corps, effectively eliminating physical and
informational barriers between in-hospital and out-of-hospital
pharmacies. This marks the establishment of a new, paperless
prescription processing model for medical insurance drug
services, enabling full-chain traceability and end-to-end
regulatory oversight. It thus lays a solid foundation for building a
unified national medical insurance market and service system,
while advancing supply-side reform in pharmaceutical services.
With multiple synergistic policies in play, the pharmaceutical
market is transforming more quickly, and the out-of-hospital
segment is emerging as a key beneficiary of prescription outflow,
unlocking greater growth potential. According to MENET, the
out-of-hospital market is expected to reach RMB1.6 trillion by
2029, potentially rivaling or even surpassing the in-hospital
market.

Amid deep structural adjustments and intensifying competition
across distribution channels, pharmaceutical distributors are
increasingly prioritising service capability enhancement as a core
strategy. They are expanding into high-value-added segments and
actively exploring innovative service models and concepts. By
leveraging emerging technologies such as big data, cloud
computing, and artificial intelligence (“AI”), these companies are
enhancing precision marketing and differentiated value-added
services to better align with evolving market demands.
Distributors with strong retail terminal foundations are
demonstrating superior coordination capabilities. This not only
helps them build stronger competitive moats, but also enables
them to support pharmaceutical manufacturers in penetrating
deeper and more diverse market segments, so as to achieve
fostering synergistic and win-win growth.

National drug pricing systems are integrating faster, price
transparency fuels terminal market expansion

In May 2025, Guangdong Province, one of China’s leading
pharmaceutical regions, released the “Draft Rules for Drug
Listing on the Guangdong Pharmaceutical Procurement

-007-
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Platform” for public consultation. This marked a significant step
toward the nationwide unification of drug listing rules. Drug
prices across provincial procurement platforms, designated retail
pharmacies, and online e-commerce channels are expected to
gradually converge. In the longer term, greater price transparency
and lower out-of-pocket costs are likely to increase the frequency
of medicine purchases by end consumers, thereby boosting
footfall and sales at retail terminals.

Full code scanning for medical insurance settlement to drive
digital upgrades of the pharmaceutical sector

In March 2025, the NHSA, together with three other government
authorities, issued the “Notice on Strengthening the Collection
and Application of Drug Traceability Codes in the Medical
Insurance and Work Injury Insurance Sectors”. The notice calls
for the active promotion of full traceability across the entire
lifecycle of all medicines, covering production, distribution, and
use, and mandates the whole-process, large-scale, and scenario-
wide collection and application of drug traceability codes in the
medical insurance and work injury insurance sectors. It also aims
for the gradual achievement of full traceability code coverage and
utilisation across all medical institutions. From 1 July 2025,
designated medical institutions are required to scan traceability
codes at the point of sale in order to settle payments through the
medical insurance fund. Medicines procured prior to this date that
do not carry a traceability code shall be managed under a “non-
code inventory” and temporarily remain eligible for
reimbursement. From 1 January 2026 onwards, all medical
institutions must achieve full traceability code collection and
upload for all dispensed medicines. The widespread
implementation of traceability codes is expected to accelerate the
pharmaceutical industry’s upgrade and shift towards
digitalisation and greater transparency, significantly improving
overall operational efficiency and competitiveness.

The pharmaceutical sector moves toward diversified, digital-
intelligent, and high-quality development

Both the Report to the 20th National Congress of the Communist
Party of China and the “Outline of the 14th Five-Year Plan (2021-
2025) for National Economic and Social Development and Vision
2035 of the People’s Republic of China” support and encourage
companies to enhance their market competitiveness through
digital transformation. In April 2025, the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology, together with six other government
authorities, issued the “Notice on the Implementation Plan for the
Digital-Intelligent Transformation of the Pharmaceutical Sector
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(2025-2030)” (the “Notice”), providing critical support for the
implementation of the “Healthy China” initiative. The Notice
highlights the application of digital and intelligent technologies
in classical transformation scenarios, including pharmaceutical
distribution and traceability, pharmaceutical logistics monitoring
and optimisation, adverse drug reaction surveillance, and medical
equipment management. These efforts aim to enable end-to-end
traceability throughout the entire pharmaceutical product
lifecycle, ensuring quality and safety of the products. Under the
guidance of high-quality development goals, pharmaceutical
distributors are aligning their growth with principles of
intelligence, smart operations, and low-carbon to strengthen
vertical and horizontal collaboration across supply chain
stakeholders and ecosystem partners.

With the deepening application of cutting-edge technologies such
as Al, big data, cloud computing, digital twin, the Internet of
Things (IoT), and blockchain, the deep integration of the
“Internet of Intelligences (Iol) + Pharmaceutical Distribution”
continues to gather momentum, steering the sector toward digital-
intelligent, diversified, and platform-based development models.
The rise of the out-of-hospital market is also raising expectations
for refined service capabilities and timely responsiveness among
pharmaceutical distributors. In response, national and regional
pharmaceutical distributors are accelerating their transformation
into supply chain solution providers. By leveraging integrated
platforms to coordinate logistics, information flows, and capital
flows, they are building and refining collaborative and intelligent
pharmaceutical supply chain systems. This not only enhances
resource allocation and client experience but also enables the
delivery of differentiated products and services. Such capabilities
allow pharmaceutical companies to benefit from efficient, multi-
warehouse logistics services at both national and regional levels,
thereby empowering the sector’s high-quality development.

Data sources: MOFCOM, MENET, China Pharmaceutical
Distribution Industry Development Report (2024), China
Pharmaceutical Distribution Journal, Guangdong Medical
Products Administration, and 2023 Operational Statistical
Analysis Report of Pharmaceutical Distribution Industry.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal business of the Group is pharmaceutical
distribution in the PRC, with most of our operating revenue
derived from pharmaceutical distribution. We procure
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pharmaceutical products from pharmaceutical manufacturers and
distributor suppliers and sell the products to distributor
customers, retail pharmacy stores, private hospitals, clinics,
health centres and other customers.

We followed our established operation targets, and continued to
explore Guangdong market in depth and radiate to surrounding
areas, and actively developed the business with retail terminal
network. As at 30 June 2025, our distribution network covered
12,170 customers, among which 575 were distributors, 7,965
were retail pharmacy stores and 3,630 were private hospitals,
clinics, health centres and others customers. The number of
customers decreased by 624 compared with the same period last
year.

In order to meet the different needs of customers and enhance
customer adhesion, we strengthened cooperation with well-
known domestic and overseas manufacturers, and expanded the
variety and scale of first-level distribution products; and
continued to optimise product structure by introducing
marketable, high-quality products with high profit margin to
enrich product categories. As at 30 June 2025, we distributed
11,164 types of products, representing a decrease of 432 types of
products compared to the same period last year. We had a total of
1,046 suppliers, of which 565 were pharmaceutical
manufacturers and 481 were distributor suppliers.
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Building a high-quality pharmaceutical marketing ecosystem
and empowering the entire industrial chain with innovative

models

Leveraging the multi-tiered marketing network, the Group works
closely with branded pharmaceutical manufacturers and
downstream clients to shape a complete industrial chain and
commercial ecosystem. Through core capabilities such as product
portfolio integration, purchase and sales channel optimisation,
transaction facilitation, and digital-intelligent logistics, we
effectively address supply and demand imbalances across the
supply chain. This enables upstream manufacturers to reduce the
complexity of channel expansion while enhancing brand value
and market performance. Leading industry brands, including
China Resources Sanjiu, Haleon, Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical, Buchang Pharmacy, China Resources
Jiangzhong, Yangtze River Pharmaceutical, MEDI’CARE,
Zhongsheng Pharmaceutical, Lingrui Pharmaceutical, and Lotus
Peak, have all benefited a lot from our multi-tiered marketing

network.

On this basis, we continue to advance our product layout by
actively promoting the “Ten-Million-Level Brand Client”
initiative, with the goal of cultivating core partners that possess
strong market influence. Through focused resource allocation,

targeted support, and customised services, we have successfully
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developed multiple strategic partnership brands with sales
exceeding RMB10 million, generating sustained market value
growth for our clients. At the same time, we have creatively built
a multi-dimensional marketing system that integrates joint brand
campaigns, event marketing, and differentiated sales strategies to
unlock upstream and downstream synergies. By leveraging
innovative channels such as our flagship “Sparks of Growth —
Hundred-Million Brand Order Fair Series” and new product
showcases, we enable precise matchmaking between upstream
manufacturers and key retail terminals, establishing an efficient
platform for production and sales alignment. Driven by real
clients’ needs, we empower downstream clients through three
core value dimensions: cognitive empowerment, which deepens
the end market’s understanding of product value; distribution
empowerment, which streamlines supply chains and enhances
turnover efficiency; and conversion empowerment, which boosts
sales through precision marketing. Through continuous
optimisation of our resource matrix, we not only help partners
enhance their market competitiveness, but also build a fully
integrated value chain that transforms product awareness into
purchasing action, ultimately shaping a new market dynamic that

delivers win—win situation for both manufacturers and terminals.

Seizing opportunities from the rise of the silver economy to

co-expand the elderly healthcare market with partners

According to the “2024 National Bulletin on the Development of
Ageing Services” released by the Ministry of Civil Affairs and
the National Working Commission on Ageing, China’s
population aged 60 and above surpassed 310 million by the end
of 2024, accounting for 22.0% of the total population. As the
population aging process continues to deepen, the silver economy
is revealing vast market potential, with rapidly increasing demand
treatment, and

among elderly for disease prevention,

rehabilitation.

In response to this demographic shift, we are focusing on the

silver economy by leveraging Charmacy’s channel strengths to
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identify and cultivate high-potential products tailored to the
health needs of the elderly. Through close collaboration with
trusted partners such as KPC Pharmaceuticals, Inc., we are jointly
improving the elderly healthcare ecosystem. Our shared
commitment is to deliver more comprehensive and targeted
health products for senior populations and thereby create higher

social and commercial value.

Deepening AI empowerment to drive end-to-end digital-

intelligent transformation and closed-loop value development

We have leveraged digital office platforms as the entry point for
Al applications, successfully achieved automation upgrades in
financial management, optimisation of intelligent process
engines, efficient governance of pharmaceutical data, intelligent
monitoring of products, and intelligent verification and
compliance management of drug traceability codes, which are
significantly improving operational efficiency and compliance
management level. In parallel, we have launched pilot
applications of Al tools in key logistics links such as intelligent
warchouse management and optimised delivery routing to
enhance resource allocation and decision-making effectiveness.
Going ahead, we will progressively advance full-process digital-
intelligent integration to establish an end-to-end intelligent
business loop. Guided by evolving business needs and
technological advancements, we will continue to iteratively
develop adaptive Al models, with a focus on strengthening our
capabilities in accurate forecasting, dynamic optimisation, and
risk insights. We will also expand Al applications into new
scenarios such as intelligent client service, precision engagement,
supplier collaboration, and policy compliance analysis. Aimed at
further elevating overall operational performance, reinforcing our
core competitiveness, and driving deeper breakthroughs in our

digital-intelligent transformation journey.

Building up core strengths in logistics to expand third-party

pharmaceutical logistics services
As a leading service provider in the modern pharmaceutical
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supply chain in South China, the Group has established medium
and large modern pharmaceutical distribution centres in
Guangzhou, Shantou, Shenzhen and Zhuhai. These centres boast
a comprehensive logistics network and information system,
adhering strictly to unified Good Supply Practice (GSP)
management standards to ensure the compliance of storage
conditions with high standards. Additionally, they feature
advanced cold chains and refrigerated transport vehicles, as well
as intelligent warehousing equipment, to meet the diverse
distribution needs of pharmaceutical products. We use Charmacy
Pharmaceutical (Guangzhou) Medicine Sorting and Distribution
Centre as the core warehouse to build a leading regional logistics
hub, supporting and strengthening the multi-warehouse
coordination model. The establishment of a cross-region, multi-
warehouse collaborative system enables us to share the resources
in stock and further optimise the distribution networks. This not
only meets the warehousing demands of our own distribution
business, but also puts us in a position to provide upstream and
downstream clients with diverse warehousing, delivery, and
value-added services by fully integrating the resources in stock
and transport capacity. These efforts have dramatically enhanced

the Group’s profitability and market competitiveness.

During the six months ended 30 June 2025 (the “Reporting
Period”), we raised our service standards by enabling seamless
integration with carrier systems, strengthening real-time
monitoring of last-mile deliveries, optimising review procedures
and improving receiving and acceptance efficiency, as well as
continuing to expand a diversified portfolio of services, including
integrated warehousing and distribution, contract logistics
(Third-Party Logistics or 3PL), and one-piece B2B/B2C direct
shipping, with the aim of providing clients with efficient,
transparent, and reliable end-to-end logistics solutions.
Leveraging our professional logistics solutions, outstanding
service quality, and strong brand reputation, we have earned the
trust and recognition of many clients. During the Reporting

Period, we entered into partnerships with leading clients
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including DEEJ, Fosun Pharma, and Guangdong LBX Pharmacy,
providing them with commissioned third-party pharmaceutical
logistics services featuring integrated warehousing and
distribution capabilities. As of 30 June 2025, the number of
clients engaging with the Group for commissioned third-party
pharmaceutical logistics services and other value-added services
such as warchousing and transportation increased by 15.23%
year-on-year, with corresponding revenue increased by 21.52%

compared to the same period last year.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to strengthen

technological capabilities and service excellence in
pharmaceutical logistics. The Group was awarded the “Best
Logistics Center for Pharmaceutical Cold Chain” (for seven
consecutive years), the “Recommended Enterprise for
Pharmaceutical Cold Chain Logistics Services” (for six

consecutive  years), the “Outstanding Enterprise in
Pharmaceutical Logistics Distribution” (for five consecutive
years), and the “Modern Pharmaceutical Logistics Technology
Testing Base” (for four consecutive years) from the Yaolianquan
Certification Center for 2024-2025. We also received the
“Golden Ant Innovation Award in China’s Logistics Industry” for
2024-2025 from the Organising Committee of the LET-a CeMAT
ASIA event (for eight consecutive year). Furthermore, in
response to the “Enterprise Standards Forerunner” initiative
jointly launched by the State Administration for Market
Regulation and seven other government departments, and
following a rigorous assessment by the China Federation of

Logistics & Purchasing, we were honored with the “Forerunner”

title for 2024.

PROSPECTS

With the mission of “Creating Healthy and Beautiful Life” in
mind and belief in the business philosophy of “Integrity, Altruism
and Win-win Cooperation”, we are committed to becoming the
most competitive service provider in China’s medical and

healthcare industry by adhering to the market strategy of

-015-
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“Intensive Engagement in Guangdong Province and Extensive

Coverage across Surrounding Areas”.

Currently, China has entered a stage of high-quality development,
and the comprehensive deployment at the 20th CPC National
Congress on the continuous deepening of healthcare reform has
achieved remarkable results. Under the dual impetus of
population aging and the “Healthy China” initiative, China's
health sector is being shifted from “treating diseases as the
centre” to “people’s health as the centre”. China’s pharmaceutical
sector is undergoing a phase marked by deepening reform,
diversified development, and accelerated innovation. The
pharmaceutical distribution sector, in particular, is at a pivotal
moment of opportunities for transformation, playing a role in
supporting the formation of a new development paradigm
whereby domestic and foreign markets can boost each other, with
the domestic market as the mainstay. The long-term trajectory of
China’s pharmaceutical sector remains positive and resilient.
Looking ahead, regulatory compliance, specialisation, scale, and

digital capabilities will define a company’s core competitiveness.

To adapt to the development trend of new-quality productive
forces, China is actively promoting the digital and intelligent
transformation of its pharmaceutical sector and encouraging
pharmaceutical distributors to improve the network structure and
service functions through the application of technologies such as
big data and AI across the whole pharmaceutical chain. By
utilising digital technology, pharmaceutical distributors are
continuously empowering business development and helping
brand manufacturers increase the cost effectiveness in
pharmaceutical promotion, warehousing and transportation, as
well as brand marketing. Meanwhile, they are accelerating
integrated development through deeper channel penetration and
urban—rural coordination,

enhancing “last-mile” delivery

capabilities for pharmaceutical supply.

Amid the deepening of reforms such as the “separation of

prescribing and dispensing”, “hierarchical diagnosis and
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treatment” and “prescription outflow,” the out-of-hospital market
is experiencing an incremental growth of trillion level of RMB.
Online retail pharmacy market in the PRC is experiencing robust
growth, with sales reaching RMB72.8 billion in 2024, increased
by 14.4% year-on-year. Instant retail, as a preferred channel for
online purchases of medical insurance-covered drugs, is

embracing unprecedented development opportunities.

In response to these opportunities, we maintain a proactive and
agile approach, accelerate our journey toward high-quality,
sustainable development by closely aligning with national policy
directions, and continue to expand the market network and
improve services. With refined management and digital-
intelligent transformation, we are boosting high-quality
development and sharpening our competitive edge while

reinforcing our existing advantages.

I. Adhere to the strategy of “Intensive Engagement in
Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across

Surrounding Areas”

We adhere to the market strategy of “Intensive Engagement in
Guangdong Province and Extensive Coverage across
Surrounding Areas” and build a pharmaceutical retail terminal
network with full coverage in Guangdong Province and its
surrounding areas. We will strengthen risk management, improve
operation quality, seize the opportunities arising from the
expansion of the primary medical market, further construct the
regional pharmaceutical distribution centres and constantly
expand and develop the distribution networks in all areas by
continuously expanding and refining the distribution networks
that permeate into each region, optimising the network layout,
and expanding the pharmaceutical delivery coverages of
pharmaceutical retail terminals such as retail pharmacies and
various grassroots medical and health service institutions to fully
achieve a dense coverage of sales, service, and logistics network

in Guangdong and its surrounding areas.
I1. Al-enabled digital-intelligent transformation to expand

-017-
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the boundaries of enterprise digitalisation

We will continue to deepen our “Iol + Pharmaceuticals” strategy,
advancing the in-depth integration of digitalisation and Al
technologies to build a new intelligent supply chain ecosystem,
with the goal of achieving end-to-end intelligent management and
efficiency enhancement. Through the systematic deployment of
large-scale pre-trained models and Al agents, we will optimise
business processes by shifting a large volume of rule-based, high-
frequency, and repetitive tasks from manual operations to
automated intelligent processing. This will enable employees to
focus on work with greater innovation and strategic value,
significantly improving organisational efficiency and further
strengthening the enterprise’s intrinsic growth drivers and core

competitiveness.

On the business enablement front, we will fully leverage
intelligent technologies to drive agile supply chain responses,
delivering more efficient and precise services to upstream and
downstream clients and achieving collaborative value creation
across the entire value chain. Building on the extensive
pharmaceutical distribution data assets accumulated over the past
25 years, we will develop an Al-powered deep data analytics
platform to generate multidimensional data insights and unlock
data value. This platform will serve as a robust engine for
building a scientific and forward-looking decision-support
system, empowering the enterprise to achieve accurate decision-
making and dynamic risk management in a complex market

environment.

In addition, we will continue to capitalise on our strong supply
chain resources to reinforce the development of digital
infrastructure, with our B2B e-commerce platform as the core
hub. By combining intelligent digital marketing tools with refined
operational strategies, we aim to fully unleash the potential of
“Iol + Pharmaceuticals”. Through efficient technology
enablement and data-driven channel insights, we will

dynamically sense market trends, accurately match supply and
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demand, and continuously optimise transaction scenarios and
service experiences. This will comprehensively enhance our
operational efficiency and market adaptability, positioning us as
a trusted strategic enabler and long-term value co-creator for our
upstream and downstream partners in an increasingly competitive

market landscape.

III. Deepening and expanding strategic cooperation with

brand manufacturers

We will further deepen our cooperation with brand
pharmaceutical manufacturers to capture more growth
opportunities in non-tendering market products, diversify our
product portfolios, cement the strength of our products and reach
into more markets with high growth potential. Fully utilising the
Group’s pharmaceutical retail terminal network resources and
taking its advantages, we will provide upstream suppliers with
comprehensive, diverse brand promotion and product launch
design and support services and help brand manufacturers

increase their market share.

IV. Strengthening core capabilities in pharmaceutical

logistics to drive upgrades of third-party logistics services

We will comprehensively integrate our existing transportation
resources to sharpen smart logistics capabilities, further
enhancing delivery performance and amplifying the synergies of
regional integrated logistics. By adopting a collaborative
operational model featuring multi-warehouse coordination and
intelligent dispatching, we aim to optimise both timeliness and
cost control from the point of production to final delivery, thus
maximising economies of scale and improving resource
utilisation. Leveraging the Group’s strengths in refined
management and digital-intelligent enablement, we will continue
to upgrade and optimise our terminal delivery network, ensuring
a more rational and efficient layout of our pharmaceutical
logistics network. At the same time, we will actively expand our
third-party pharmaceutical logistics business, capitalising on our

logistics network advantages to offer upstream suppliers and
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downstream clients a broader range of value-added services,
including professional, convenient warehousing, logistics, and
freight transportation. These endeavors will further enhance the

Group’s market competitiveness and profitability.

V. Actively expanding domestic and international industrial
cooperation to support the Group’s healthy and high-quality

development

With the abundant resources and advantages of our state-owned
shareholders, we will actively seek high-quality products and
projects domestically and abroad, optimise the Group's product
supply chain and expand more profitable new business to
continuously optimise our business structure and profit models.
With a focus on extending and upgrading the pharmaceutical
industry chain, we will introduce new technologies and concepts,
driving deep integration of emerging technologies with core
competencies. This will solidify our leadership position in the
non-tender pharmaceutical market in South China and contribute
to the innovation and development of the pharmaceutical

distribution industry.

Looking forward, we will continue to seize the future potential
growth of the pharmaceutical non-tendering market, accelerate
the duplication of the mature non-tendering pharmaceutical
market operation model, redouble our efforts on digitisation and
business innovation, strive to elevate the operation efficiency of
our pharmaceutical supply chain, optimise the portfolio of
pharmaceutical products and customer service experience, and
reduce the cost of pharmaceutical distribution, endeavouring to
become the most competitive service provider in the medical and

healthcare industry in China.
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BEKA Operating revenue
HZE 6 H30HIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June
JHH 2025 4¢ 2024 4
Item ARETIT (REER) ARETIT REEXR)
2025 2024
RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Unaudited)
I%%ﬁ% ) 2,128,770 2,325,460
Principal business
HAhZEH
Other businesses 26,302 21,725
%¥q&)\ 2,155,071 2,347,185
Operating revenue

BZ 6 H30HibEA
For the six months ended 30 June
BFER 2025 4F 2024 4
Customer type AR¥TIT CREE) ARETIC CREEX)
2025 2024

RMB'000 (Unaudited) RMB'000 (Unaudited)
ﬁﬁé% 1,030,348 1,093,126
Distributors
%?%grg 1,040,097 1,151,208
Retail pharmacy stores
REBEb. 2. A&
Private hospitals, clinics, health centres 58,325 81,126
and others
EBRBUBN A . 2,128,770 2,325,460
Revenue from principal business

BE 20254 6 H 30 Hib A, &
M1 3 %8 FE N AR E 17 (1) 79 31 7 %
P () EEZEE; K R 2B .
ST A S A ) E S SE S . B
2202546 H 30 Hik/NMEH, i
97%H) 88 ZEFFUN AR H 73 3H 1 2 F
MEEZEERF

AL RN HEZE 2024 56 A
30 HiEAEA AR 2,347.18 B &
JCID 8.18%, EHEE 202546 H 30

During the six months ended 30 June 2025, our revenue from
principal business was derived from product sales to (i)
distributor customers; (ii) retail pharmacy stores; and (iii) private
hospitals, clinics, health centres and others. During the six
months ended 30 June 2025, over 97% of our revenue from
principal business was derived from distributor customers and

retail pharmacy stores.

The Group’s operating revenue decreased by 8.18% from
RMB2,347.18 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
RMB2,155.07 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025.
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This was mainly due to: (1) a slowdown in macroeconomic
growth, which exerted pressure on the business performance of
both upstream and downstream industries, coupled with a
relatively high base in the first quarter of 2024. As a result,
revenue for the first quarter of 2025 decreased by 20.52% year-
on-year, representing a temporary decline in operating income. In
response to market challenges, we promptly adjusted our business
strategies, leading to a restorative growth in core business
revenue from the second quarter onwards, with a year-on-year
increase of 6.48% for the second quarter of 2025; and (2) the
deepening implementation of centralised drug procurement
policies has led to a reduction in the end prices of certain
pharmaceuticals, resulting in a contraction in the volume of some

drug-related operations.
Operating cost, gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s operating costs decreased by 8.43% from
RMB2,178.00 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
RMB1,994.33 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025.
The decline in operating costs was slightly higher than that of

operating income.

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 4.99% from RMB169.18
million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to RMB160.75
million for the six months ended 30 June 2025. The Group’s gross
profit margin increased by 0.25 percentage points from 7.21% for
the six months ended 30 June 2024 to 7.46% for the six months
ended 30 June 2025. This was mainly due to: (1) the effective
leveraging of channel advantages to reduce procurement costs,
such as continuously optimising payment structures and
improving payment efficiency, thereby obtaining more sales
discount from suppliers; (2) ongoing adjustments to the product
structure, including the introduction of higher-margin varieties
and the proactive reduction of lower-margin ones; and (3) the
year-on-year increase in revenue by RMB1.99 million or 21.52%

from the Company’s third-party logistics business.
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Selling expenses

The Group’s selling expenses decreased by 3.87% from
RMB62.88 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
RMB60.44 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025,
primarily attributable to the Group’s efficient allocation of
marketing resources and the streamlining of inefficient marketing

channels.
Management expenses

The Group’s management expenses decreased by 3.68% from
RMB23.33 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
RMB22.47 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025,
primarily due to the decrease in office and travel expenses by
RMBO0.51 million and decrease in employee remuneration by
RMB0.46 million year-on-year, resulting from the Group’s
promotion of digital office practices in order to achieve cost

reduction and increasing efficiency.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by 1.21% from RMB34.10
million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to RMB33.69
million for the six months ended 30 June 2025, mainly due to
decrease in loan interest expenses of RMB2.05 million year-on-

year, resulting from a decline in interest rates.

Income tax expenses

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by 10.60% from
RMB12.18 million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to
RMB10.89 million for the six months ended 30 June 2025.

Income tax expenses were recognised, while deferred income tax
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assets and liabilities were adjusted in accordance with accounting

standards.

Net profit

The Group’s net profit decreased by 18.72% from RMB26.75
million for the six months ended 30 June 2024 to RMB21.74
million for the six months ended 30 June 2025, mainly due to: (1)
the phased decline in operating revenue which was attributable to
the combined impact of a slowdown in macroeconomic growth,
subdued business sentiment across upstream and downstream
industries, and a high base of revenue in the first quarter of 2024.
Concurrently, despite cost structure rigidity, the expense
optimisation measures implemented in the first half of 2025 were
insufficient to fully offset the pressure from narrowed gross
margins; and (2) in accordance with the prudence principle under
accounting standards, the Company has recognised sufficient
impairment provisions for certain trade receivables, resulting in a
significant year-on-year increase in credit impairment losses

compared with the same period last year.
Liquidity and financial resources

As at 30 June 2025, the cash and bank deposits of the Group
amounted to RMB212.24 million, while the cash and bank
deposits amounted to RMB171.79 million as at 31 December
2024.

As at 30 June 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Group recorded
net current assets of RMB252.79 million and RMB241.39
million, respectively. As at 30 June 2025, the current ratio (based
on the calculation of current assets divided by current liabilities)

of the Group was 1.09 (31 December 2024: 1.09).

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 30 June 2025 were
RMB1,010.88 million (short-term borrowings: RMB967.68

million, long-term borrowings: RMB43.20 million, of which
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long-term borrowings due within one year: RMB1.24 million)),
and RMB825.37 million as at 31 December 2024 (short-term
borrowings: RMBS811.57 million, long-term borrowings:
RMB13.80 million, of which long-term borrowings due within
one year: RMB1.22 million). All the bank borrowings bear fixed
interest rates. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings is
presented in RMB, and is approximate to the fair value. The
Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purposes
or did not have any existing borrowings and/or other hedging

instruments for hedging net foreign currency investments.

Bills receivables, trade receivables and account receivable

financing

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s bills receivables, trade
receivables and account receivable financing amounted to
RMB1,243.36 million, increased by 1.38% compared to
RMB1,226.42 million as at 31 December 2024, remaining flat.

Bills payables and accounts payables

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s bills payables and accounts
payables amounted to RMB1,073.98 million, decreased by
11.56% compared to RMB1,214.33 million as at 31 December
2024, which was mainly due to procurement based on product

supply and demand and effective allocation of fund utilised.

Treasury policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management strategy in
executing its treasury policy. Thus, a sound liquidity position was
able to be maintained throughout the Reporting Period. The
Group continues to assess its customers’ credit and financial
positions so as to minimise credit risks. In order to control

liquidity risks, the Directors would closely monitor the liquidity
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position of the Group to ensure that its assets, liabilities and other
flow structure committed by the Group would satisfy the funding

needs from time to time.
Foreign currency exchange risk

The transactions of the Group are denominated in RMB, and most
of the assets and all liabilities are denominated in RMB. The
foreign exchange risk that the Group has to bear is extremely low.
For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group did not use

any financial instruments for hedging the foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had no bank borrowings which

bear interest at a floating rate (31 December 2024: Nil).

Gearing Ratio

Set out below is the Group’s gearing ratios as at 30 June 2025 and

31 December 2024, respectively:

BEAAfER

20254 6 H 30 H
30 June 2025

20244E12 A 31 H
31 December 2024

Gearing ratio

57.44% 51.37%
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Note: Gearing ratio is equal to net liabilities divided by aggregate
capital as at the end of the period. Net liabilities represent total
borrowings deducted by cash and cash equivalents; and aggregate

capital is the sum of net liabilities and total equity.

Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2025, the Group did not have any capital
commitment (31 December 2024: Nil).

Employees’ information

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had a total of 849 employees
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(including executive Directors), representing an increase of 15
employees compared with the number of employees as at 30 June
2024. The total staff cost (including emoluments of Directors and
supervisors) for the six months ended 30 June 2025 was
RMB47.57 million, as compared to RMB45.83 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2024. The emoluments were determined
with reference to market practice and the performance,

qualification and experience of individual employees.

The employees are entitled to bonuses based on the results of the
Group and individual performance other than basic salaries.
Other staff benefits include other related insurances set up for the
employees employed by the Group in accordance with the rules
and regulations under Labor Law, Employment Contract Law,
Social Insurance Law of the PRC and the current regulatory

requirements of the PRC.

The salaries and benefits of the employees of the Group are kept
at a competitive level. The employees are rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the

Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.

The Group focuses on the career development of its employees.
We provide the employees with internal training and the
opportunity of external training on a regular basis to support and
encourage them to continuously study and improve their own

integrated qualities and business capability.
Significant investments held

The Group had no significant investment during the six months

ended 30 June 2025.

Future plans related to significant investments and capital

assets

As at the date of this report, the Group has no future plans related

to significant investments and capital assets.

Material acquisitions and disposals related to subsidiaries,
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associates and joint ventures

During the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group had no
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures.
Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2025, the Group was granted a credit limit of
RMB1,657.00 million by various banks, while the Group’s
utilised banking facilities amounted to RMB1,455.82 million,
which were secured by (i) property and plant held by the Group
with a carrying amount of RMB207.11 million as at 30 June
2025; and (ii) land use rights held by the Group with a carrying
amount of RMB65.82 million as at 30 June 2025.

Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or use

As at 30 June 2025, the Group’s restricted monetary funds
amounted to RMB297.73 million, which served as deposit for
bank acceptance bills and borrowings. The Group’s restricted
bills receivable amounted to RMB3.60 million, which were
restricted for being pledged to banks. The Group also pledged
certain other assets in the amount of RMB272.93 million as
guarantee for the Group’s borrowings. Assets subject to
restrictions on ownership or use amounted to RMB574.26 million

in total.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2025, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2024: Nil).

Significant event after the Reporting Period

As at the date of this report, the Group had no significant event

after the Reporting Period that is required to be disclosed.
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INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2025 (interim dividend
of 2024: Nil).

OTHER INFORMATION

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company had complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 to the

Listing Rules during the six months ended 30 June 2025.

The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
to comply with the increasingly tightened regulatory
requirements and to meet the rising expectations of its

shareholders and investors.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
in dealings with the Company’s securities for the Directors and
supervisors of the Company (the “Supervisor(s)”). Having made
enquiries with all Directors and Supervisors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors and Supervisors had complied with
the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the six

months ended 30 June 2025.

INFORMATION TO BE DISCLOSED PURSUANT
TO RULE 13.51B OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes to information required to be disclosed by the Directors
pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) between
the date of the Company’s 2024 annual report and the date of this
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report are set out below:

Mr. Li Hanguo, an independent non-executive Director, resigned
as the chairman of the board of Zhejiang Maihong Capital
Management Company Limited in May 2025, and resigned as an
external director of Jiangxi Railway & Aviation Investment

Group Co., Ltd. in April 2025.

Mr. Guan Jian, an independent non-executive Director, resigned
as executive director of Shanghai Baiyang Advisory Management

Limited in July 2025.

After making specific enquiries by the Company and confirmed
by the Directors and the Supervisors, save as disclosed above,
there is no other information in respect of the Directors and the
Supervisors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Company and its
subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the listed
securities of the Company (including sale of treasury shares (as
defined under the Listing Rules)). As at 30 June 2025, the

Company did not hold any treasury shares.
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INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS OF THE

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES, AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2025, the interests of the Directors, Supervisors and
chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as

follows:
T
16 B BT ISR
@
S matE | RpEmRmE | SRERESE
EHEEA . Approximate
. Capacity/Nature | Class and number of .
Name of Director . shareholding
of interest Shares
percentage of the total
issued share capital®
; s 32 34,530,000
oAb Sk BN 0.000 it 0
Mr. Yao Chuanglon, Beneficial owner HE (L) 31.97%
' glong 34,530,000 H Shares (L)

(L] MRERZSNLRB A e &
(€ & a8 77 R B R 5 XV
DI

Bt

(1) ZAlZ IR AL q] 5 2025 4
6 H 30 HE#/r H ¥ ( TH
W D AEE7 108,000,000 R ITT7E H

B EoCHERE AN, Y 2025 4 6 H 30
H, . BHEREAAAFREITEA
SR A 2 m] LA AR e 2
FLagss KB IRBIZE XV #) ARMTH
iy AHRE By BRARRERE A IRIE
s M ERBI S XV A T N 8

The letter “L” denotes a person’s long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Note:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000
issued H shares of the Company (the “H Share(s) ) as at 30 June
2025.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which have to be

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to

-031-
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Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or which are required to be entered
in the register referred to therein pursuant to section 352 of the

SFO or which are required pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Interests or Short
Positions of the Directors, Supervisors and Chief Executives in
the Shares, Underlying Shares, and Debentures”, at no time
during the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and Supervisors to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, or any Directors,
Supervisors or their spouses or children under the age of 18 years
was granted any right to subscribe for Shares or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate or exercised any such right.

INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 30 June 2025, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons/entities (other than any Directors, Supervisors
or chief executives of the Company) had or deemed to have an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares which
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had entered in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
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15 BAT A B )
. | ()
WS A PRI K B Bt 8 H B3F M@ﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁtﬁ .
Name of shareholder Nature and Number and class of Approximate shareholding
capacity of interest Shares percentage of the total issued
share capital®
34,530,000 A%
i L AL O HE (L) 1979
Ms. You Zeyan Interest of spouse® 34,530,000 H ’
Shares (L)
29,050,000 fI%
. "
CET N HE (L) 26.90%
Beneficial owner 29,050,000 H
Shares (L)
VL B4R [ NH N e ae 17,420,000 fix H
IR EA A T e H i
¢ [IL%E] O Interest in controlled (L 16.13%
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. corporation® 17,420,000 H Shares
(“Jiangyao”) @)
FiA 4 B PR S HE 2 5,000,000 %
SUNG
A . H % (L) 4.63%
Person having a security 5,000,000 H
interest in shares ) Shares (L)
. L e 17,420,000 % H %
LB AT A ) i B
Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Ha A A (L) 16.13%
- Beneficial owner 17,420,000 H Shares '
Investment Co., Limited P L

(L] MRERZHNLRB A A
(€ & a8 77 R B R 5 XV
EIDRE

B At

(1) ZalZ 72542025 46 H 30
HEFET H A2 108,000,000 il
72t

(2) W rEHE L 125 4 A 7 ) T
BT FLEBYRE LA NI, UL,
RVEFZ TR RATENFD, WL 2 Bk
TEAESF ARG T 1 et -

(3) ILEREIFHILI EEREH
RZ 7], BIIE, #R#E7 75 R E 1
P, JLEERA RIS B B IR
TSN ) Gt ey A

(4) JLEHER H1BEIE A o] 1L 7T

The letter “L” refers to a person’s long position (as defined under

Part XV of the SFO) in the Shares.

Notes:

(1) The calculation is based on the total number of 108,000,000
issued H Shares as at 30 June 2025.

(2) Ms. You Zeyan is the spouse of Mr. Yao Chuanglong, the vice
chairman and executive Director of the Company. Therefore, she
is deemed to be interested in these Shares held by Mr. Yao under
the SFO.

(3) Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Limited is wholly-
owned by Jiangyao. Therefore, Jiangyao is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Jiangxi Pharmaceutical

Investment Co., Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(4) Jiangyao has security interest over 5,000,000 Shares,
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representing the Shares pledged by Mr. Yao in favour of Jiangyao.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2025, none of the Directors
was aware that any other persons/entities (other than any
Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company) had
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares
which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which had entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW ON THE
INTERIM RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
consists of three members including two independent non-
executive Directors and one non-executive Director, namely Mr.
Wan Chi Wai Anthony (Chairman), Mr. Xu Fei and Mr. Guan
Jian. The Audit Committee reports to the Board and holds regular
meetings to review and make recommendations to improve the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls. Other
than that, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, review the
financial statements and material advice in respect of financial

reporting and oversee internal control of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the unaudited interim
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2025 and is of the view that the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2025 has been prepared in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards, rules and

regulations, and appropriate disclosures have been duly made.
By order of the Board
Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Yan Jingbin
Chairman

Shantou, PRC, 28 August 2025
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THE UNAUDITED INTERIM
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is pleased to announce the unaudited consolidated
interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the six
months ended 30 June 2025, together with the comparative

figures for the corresponding period in 2024.

Note: “Current Period” means 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025
(unaudited) and “Prior Period” means 1 January 2024 to 30 June
2024 (unaudited); “End of the Period” means 30 June 2025
(unaudited), “Beginning of the period” means 1 January 2025
(unaudited) and “End of Prior Year” means 31 December 2024
(audited).
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AEEREHEEAER UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
J#2 2025 4 6 H 30 H As at 30 June 2025
ANR#7 RMB
IEH Ttem FtaE HIRERER TEERBRER
En Closing balance Closing balance of
Note last year
\%
MENEE: Current assets:
Bas Monetary funds 1 509,969,794.82 563,150,403.45
T oA e Trading financial assets
FtE SR e Derivative financial assets
JEWCE Bills receivables 2 35,973,650.00 5,570,435.00
JEWSUIRER Trade receivables 3 1,183,817,045.00 1,163,237,552.39
TEW K IER & Account receivable financing 4 23,573,149.39 57,615,292.39
TEATKIH Prepayments 5 543,028,576.89 527,344,501.01
HoAth B K Other receivables 6 14,104,790.99 12,297,041.51
Horp: ERRIE Incl: Interest receivable
JE B R Dividends receivable

17 Inventories 7 721,871,435.74 655,911,091.04

AR Contract assets

FEA e Assets held for sale

—FE N FHR AR E) & E Non-current assets due within one year

AR B Other current assets 8 46,831,320.24 44.866,517.92
MENE E ARt Total current assets 3,079,169,763.07 3,029,992,834.71
E|[S7 )23 Non-current assets:

R E Debt investment

HABGE RS & Other debt investment

T 01 EYSER Long-term accounts receivable

RIARER & Long-term equity investments

HAbRE S T HRE Other equity instrument investments

HA AR B 4Rl Other non-current financial assets

A b Investment properties

[ 52 & PE Fixed assets 9 272,537,778.29 278,271,752.17

ek THE Construction in progress

{8 FHRE R pE Right-of-use assets 10 35,135,247.18 39,330,027.02

W& Intangible assets 11 70,449,394.00 72,492,702.02

B S Development expenditure

g L Goodwill 12 5.997,776.04 5,997,776.04

R Long-term expenses to be amortized 13 20,687,516.76 22,913,989.34

R 4E AT 15600 ¥ Deferred income tax assets 14 8,273,998.24 7,644,601.03

HoAth AR By A Other non-current assets
JERBEE AT Total non-current assets 413,081,710.51 426,650,847.62
B EEMEGT Total assets 3,492,251,473.58 3,456,643,682.33
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Item

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings
Trading financial liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities

Bills payables
Account payables
Advance receipts

Contract liabilities

Salaries payable to employees

Tax payables
Other payables

Liabilities held for sale
Non-current liabilities due within one year
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

Bonds payable

Incl: preferred stock

perpetual note

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables
Long-term payroll payable

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income

Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital

Other equity instruments

Incl: preferred stock

perpetual note

Capital reserve

Less: Treasury stock

Other comprehensive income

Special reserve

Surplus reserve

General Risk Preparation

Unallocated profits

Total equity attributable to the
shareholders of parent company

Minority interests

Total shareholders’ interests

Total liabilities and shareholders’ interests

Mak
i
Note
\%

16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

SRR

Closing balance

967,683,071.97
709,194,022.88
364,786,906.42
2,299,139.44
5,347,960.68
56,943,097.83
708,362,734.67
10,480,075.13
1,283,469.54

2,826,380,478.56

43,200,000.00

30,659,262.55

181,760.81

74,041,023.36
2,900,421,501.92

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

31,143,182.74

173,695,959.88

591,829,971.66

591,829,971.66
3,492,251,473.58

EEEREGH

Closing balance of
last year

811,574,543.09
826,507,576.48
387,825,713.54
2,102,373.45
6,402,420.60
62,374,954.14
681,544,720.76
9,997,389.09
273,329.94

2,788,603,021.09

13,800,000.00

35,171,818.27

377,894.98

49,349,713.25
2,837,952,734.34

108,000,000.00

278,990,829.04

31,143,182.74

200,556,936.21

618,690,947.99

618,690,947.99
3,456,643,682.33
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REERBAFEERER UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT
COMPANY
J2 2025 % 6 A 30 H As at 30 June 2025
PN RMB
RH Ttem FEE HIRERER EEERRE
—+g Closing balance Closing balance of
Note last year
XI1v
RENKEE: Current assets:
Y = Monetary funds 178,631,565.14 204,875,850.16
T 5y M G A Trading financial assets
A G & e Derivative financial assets
JE S Bills receivables 35,973,650.00 5,570,435.00
JEWHRK Account receivables 1 540,732,503.66 553,974,292.47
JERGKTERLE Account receivable financing 9,242,814.44 44,098,165.47
TAATEIH Prepayments 140,310,357.69 71,366,326.17
HoAth R Other receivables 2 286,796,645.07 82,773,621.84
Horre EISCR)E Incl: Interest receivable
JEWCIEF Dividends receivable 30,000,000.00
pea Inventories 163,709,421.20 152,154,806.02
GIR& Contract assets
FEREEE Assets held for sale
—ENBIARAEREIE Non-current assets due within one year
HAhRENE PE Other current assets 2,783,677.98 4,648,416.84
WREEE AT Total current assets 1,358,180,635.18 1,119,461,913.97
B[S )3 3 Non-current assets:
ERER & Debt investment
HAh R A Other debt investment
T YR Long-term accounts receivable
RHIHER % Long-term equity investments 3 230,578,852.24 230,078,852.24
HAphiEzs T B3E Other equity instrument investments
HAth AR B 4R A P Other non-current financial assets
BB b e Investment properties 26,984,418.77 27,501,376.96
WAl E 4 Fixed assets 220,745,274.73 226,287,319.15
T T Construction in progress
{8 FH M ¥ 7 Right-of-use assets 32,695,175.02 36,943,107.61
MR Intangible assets 57,100,311.56 58,781,332.89
bl %3 tH Development expenditure
[k Goodwill
R HAfE A 2 Long-term expenses to be amortized 17,932,568.55 19,967,294.75
R IE FIT A4 Deferred income tax assets 2,470,119.48 2,343,907.90
HABARR B Other non-current assets
R EE ST Total non-current assets 588,506,720.35 601,903,191.50
BEA Total assets 1,946,687,355.53 1,721,365,105.47
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CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

Item

Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings
Trading financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities
Bills payables
Account payables
Advance receipts
Contract liabilities
Salaries payable to employees
Tax payables
Other payables
Liabilities held for sale
Non-current liabilities due within one year
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Long-term borrowings
Bonds payable
Lease liabilities
Long-term payables
Estimated liabilities
Deferred income
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital
Other equity instruments
Capital reserve
Less: Treasury stock
Other comprehensive income
Special reserve
Surplus reserve
Unallocated profits
Total equity attributable to the
shareholders of parent company
Minority interests
Total shareholders’ interests

Total liabilities and shareholders’ interests

ek
+
Note
XI1v

SRR

Closing balance

442,989,461.31

548,178,795.10
116,536,682.29

316,659.27
3,217,988.90
11,482,287.20
344,963,675.79

8,777,937.99

1,025,747.11
1,477,489,234.96

28,469,911.44

28,469,911.44
1,505,959,146.40

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

31,143,182.74
19,380,538.89

440,728,209.13

440,728,209.13
1,946,687,355.53

EEEREBHE

Closing balance of
last year

388,321,815.72
433,240,527.50
90,813,189.45
766,568.76
3,731,156.41
14,757,882.01
299,149,511.61
8,390,925.55

99,654.31
1,239,271,231.32

32,980,709.87

32,980,709.87
1,272,251,941.19

108,000,000.00

282,204,487.50

31,143,182.74
27,765,494.04

449,113,164.28

449,113,164.28
1,721,365,105.47
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RBEZA R UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
A 2025 6 A 30 HikE N8 A For the six months ended 30 June 2025

AR RMB

1HH Item MR AR ot X
Note V Current period Prior period
—, Bieag A\ 1. Total operating revenue 2,155,071,479.51 2,347,184,933.33
o, BRI Incl: Revenue 31 2,155,071,479.51 2,347,184,933.33
=, BEMEE 1L Total operating cost 2,115,726,066.82 2,303,414,061.34
o, BEERA Incl: Operating cost 31 1,994,326,096.78 2,178,000,003.01
4 R B Taxes and surcharges 32 4,793,532.40 5,100,228.91
S Selling expenses 33 60,443,374.81 62,878,744.46
(=gt gt| Management expenses 34 22,473,336.66 23,332,387.57
TFa% & Research & development expenses
W% & Finance costs 35 33,689,726.17 34,102,697.39
Ho, FE Incl: Interest expenses 31,055,269.10 33,101,117.52
FLEWN Interest income 1,147,053.30 2,882,746.74
ne HAbk s Add: Other income 36 66,344.15 103,309.43
gt (%KLL -1 SR Investment income (“~” for loss)
o, WS AENSSOENRERE Incl: Investment income from associates and joint
ventures
DA OR B AR S 14 4 il 4 7 466 A B il Financial assets measured at amortized cost
EAlg are derecognized earnings
B foicas (HRZELL [-] SRIHED Exchange gains(“-" for loss)
OB R T-] 558510 Frequent exposure to hedge gains (“~ for loss)
AFEAE B (KDL T-] SR Gain on change in fair value (“~ for loss)
51
(5 FWEARK GRKLL T-1 5835 Impairment loss of credit (“~" for loss) 37 -2,314,610.52 -708,853.67
VMR (BURLL T-] 553151 Impairment loss of assets (“~ for loss) 38 -4,072,352.01 -4,219,949.10
YRR B (EKLL [-] 95D Gains on disposal of assets (“—” for loss) 39 7,778.91 395,944.96
=, BEAE OBAL -] 35D IIL. Operating profit (“=” for loss) 33,032,573.22 39,341,323.61
e BEIMIN Add: Non-operating revenue 40 5,579.85 83,411.56
W BEINSCH Less: Non-operating expenses 41 409,361.88 496,791.49
W, A OEHRAE -] s IV. Total profit (“~” for total loss) 32,628,791.19 38,927,943.68
W TR E Less: Income tax expense 42 10,889,767.52 12,180,708.15
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CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

Item FEEH

Note V

V. Net profit (“~” for net loss)

VL

(I) By continuity of operations

1.Net profit from continuing operation(“—" for net
loss)
2.Net profit from discontinued operation(*“—" for net

loss)
(IT) By ownership

1.Net profit attributable to the shareholders of parent
company (“=" for net loss)

2.Profit of loss of minority interests (“~" for net loss)

Net of tax of other comprehensive income

Net of tax of other comprehensive income
attributable to the shareholders of parent company

(I) Other comprehensive income not subject to
reclassification to profit or loss

1. Remeasure the change in the set benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income under the equity
method that cannot be converted into profit or loss

3. Change in fair value of other equity instrument
investments

4. Changes in the fair value of the enterprise's own
credit risk

5. Others

(IT) Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
into profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income of convertible profit
or loss under the equity method

2. Changes in the fair value of other debt investments

3. The amount of financial assets reclassified into
other comprehensive income

4. Other debt investment credit impairment
provisions

5. Cash flow hedging reserve (effective part of cash
flow hedging profit or loss)

6. Conversion difference of foreign currency
statement

7. Others

Net other comprehensive income after-tax which
belongs to minority interests

VII. Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income attributable to the
shareholders of parent company

Total comprehensive income attributable to minority
interests

VIII. Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share 43

(II) Diluted earnings per share 43

FHBAA

Current period
21,739,023.67
21,739,023.67

21,739,023.67

21,739,023.67

21,739,023.67

21,739,023.67

21,739,023.67

0.2013
0.2013

EBAR

Prior period
26,747,235.53
26,747,235.53

26,747,235.53

26,747,235.53

26,747,235.53

26,747,235.53

26,747,235.53

0.2477
0.2477
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INTERIM REPORT

UNAUDITED INCOME STATEMENT OF THE PARENT

COMPANY

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

RMB

Item

I. Operating revenue
Less: Operating cost
Taxes and surcharges
Selling expenses
Management expenses
Research & development expenses
Finance costs
Incl: Interest expenses
Interest income
Add: Other income
Investment income (“~” for loss)
Impairment loss of credit (“~ for loss)
Impairment loss of assets (“~” for loss)
Gains on disposal of assets (“— for loss)
11. Operating profit (“—” for loss)
Add: Non-operating revenue
Less: Non-operating expenses
I11. Total profit (“—” for total loss)
Less: Income tax expense
IV. Net profit (“-” for net loss)

(I).Net profit from continuing operation (“—” for net
loss)

(II).Net profit from discontinued operation (“~ for
net loss)
V. Net of tax of other comprehensive income

(IT) Other comprehensive income not subject to
reclassification to profit or loss

1. Remeasure the change in the set benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income under the equity
method that cannot be converted into profit or loss

3. Change in fair value of other equity instrument
investments

4. Changes in the fair value of the enterprise's own
credit risk

5. Others

(II) Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
into profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income of convertible profit
or loss under the equity method

2. Changes in the fair value of other debt investments
3. The amount of financial assets reclassified into
other comprehensive income

4. Other debt investment credit impairment
provisions

5. Cash flow hedging reserve (effective part of cash
flow hedging profit or loss)

6. Conversion difference of foreign currency
statement

7. Others

VI. Total comprehensive income

Note
X1V

FIRRAER

Current period

688,549,922.76
593,095,034.93
2,763,163.67
43,247,752.17
10,777,433.97

21,427,572.27
19,681,981.77
434,701.68
50,113.16
30,000,000.00
-483,346.64
-886,192.45
6,357.67
45,925,897.49
2,450.21
295,234.23
45,633,113.47
5,418,068.62
40,215,044.85

40,215,044.85

40,215,044.85

ERBER

Prior period

876,929,400.22
780,256,553.56
2,638,614.71
41,948,163.76
10,609,760.02

25,857,447.69
23,942,521.20
882,824.78
79,412.45

-876,717.08
-868,429.79
443,093.64
14,396,219.70
4,801.19
421,063.02
13,979,957.87
3,760,388.49
10,219,569.38

10,219,569.38

10,219,569.38

-043-



D/ BEREBRGERLE

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOW

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

REEZEHHSRER

A ZE 2025 F 6 A 30 Hik/EH

VNN RMB
IH5H Item MyEE AR lob:iE e
i Current period Prior period
Note
\4
—, REEHEENHAESRE: L. Cash flow from operating activities:
SHEETE . RAEAS I S i
SRR . PRAESS R B R4 Cash recelyed from szflles of goods 1,820,133,013.69 2,016,748,960.28
and rendering of services
W3 A BRI Tax refund received
| E 4% 2% VT 117 T 1 i
BRI B RS R Other cash received relating to 270,680,439.53 155,369,283.40
operating activities
EENEBRERADE Sub-total of cash inflow from 2,090,813,453.22  2,172,118,243.68
operating activities
s 7 57, B TR S TE A ;
MR BRSBTS Cash paid for purchases of goods 1,741,467,400.28 2,079,949,592.54
and receiving services
AT L o ORIk i
SATEETE T DA B TS A R IR 4 Cash paid to employees and on 47.974.240.67 48.387.597.43
behalf of employees
ST TEAR B Cash paid for various taxes 28,590,428.77 31,750,871.03
o At BRAS 2 GO i i i
A oA BRLAS TR BT B B 4 Otk}q .cash paid relating to operating 297,406,643.27 186,716,892.33
activities
REEBBE S et Sub-total of cash outflow from 2,115,438,712.99 2,346,804,953.33
operating activities
BB LR G RFR Net cash flow from operating 4 24,625,259.77 -174,686,709.65
activities
=, BEEHEANRERE: I1. Cash flow from investing activities:
W [l 50 B A B 4 Cash received from sale of
investments
BSR4 Cash received from investment gains
S B E. IEE E AN H AR R Net cash received from disposal of
% FE A IB] F IR 4R AR fixed assets, intangible assets and 29,106.00 58,750.00
other long-term assets
BT A S At S LA R B Net cash received from disposal of
S VP subsidiaries and other business units
WS FoAth SRS B BT B B 4 Other cash received relating to
investing activities
B FEFHRERN/DNET Sub-t.otal of cash 1.|1f.l(?w from 29,106.00 58,750.00
investing activities
WA [ e S . TR AN AR Cash paid for acquisition and
APESCATHOBE S construction of fixed assets, 3,464,472.07 9,878.973.77
intangible assets and other long-term
assets
& A BLE Cash paid for acquisition of
investments
WA a) Jo HoAh 42 38 B AT S A B Net cash paid for acquisition of
LYl subsidiaries and other business units
A HAh B A T B B B 4 Other cash paid relating to investing
activities
BEEHRER B /M aE Sub-t(ftal of.cash 0}1t.ﬂ.ow from 3.464,472.07 9,878.973.77
investing activities
BREEHELANRESKESRE Net cash flow from investing activities -3,435,366.07 -9,820,223.77
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Item

I11. Cash flow from financing
activities:
Cash received from capital
contributions

Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries
from capital contributions of
minority shareholders

Cash received from borrowings
Other cash received relating to
financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflow from
financing activities

Cash paid for repayment of debts

Cash payment for distribution of
dividends and profits or interest
payment
Incl: Cash paid to minority
shareholders for distribution of
dividends or profits by subsidiaries
Other cash paid relating to financing
activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from
financing activities
Net cash flow from financing
activities
IV. Effect of change in exchange rates
on cash and cash equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Add: Opening balance of cash and
cash equivalents for the period

VI. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents for the period

=
ME

Note

2025

I

Current period

829,889,438.88

2,012,958,047.10

2,842,847,485.98

644,410,000.00

16,309,866.23

2,113,610,974.73

2,774,330,840.96

68,516,645.02

-6,223.70

40,449,795.48

171,793,915.32

212,243,710.80

IR &

INTERIM REPORT

EHIRAR

Prior period

599,972,611.09

2,185,014,280.99

2,784,986,892.08

482,643,505.43

14,926,524.82

2,085,261,069.04

2,582,831,099.29

202,155,792.79

2,856.37

17,651,715.74

112,928,817.62

130,580,533.36

-045-



D/ BEREBRGERLE

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

REEGRARRENER

#ZE 2025 F 6 A 30 HiEAMEA

AR¥TT

HE

—. REEHEENRER:
BIERT A ARO I B e

e AR B i
W E I HoAth A B TR AT B P IR

REBEBREWMN/ T
WEERA . BRSNS
ST T PR BRI T SO AT I B

STAT 5 TEAL B
SO HAh BRAS A TR B B A <

REBEBHFEWM A /et

REEHEERNTSRETH
=, BEEDEANRESRE:

S I 5% s WAL O 3 <

B Wi W 2 A B

R E I E A PE . IR EMHAR R
S VAT A 3 < A

’

Ji BT A ) e S S BT R R
Bl
e H A BB H B A B B G
BREBREWN /et

MR 2 R . MR AN ILAL R
T PE SO B

BT HIBGE
WA 1A Al S Feft e S BT SAT 1
W
SO AR BB BT B I
BRESH WL /NG

RRFEEE LR B SR AT

-046-

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW OF THE

PARENT COMPANY

For the six months ended 30 June 2025

RMB

Item

I. Cash flow from operating activities:
Cash received from sales of goods and
rendering of services

Tax refund received

Other cash received relating to operating
activities
Sub-total of cash inflow from
operating activities

Cash paid for purchases of goods and
receiving services

Cash paid to employees and on behalf of
employees

Cash paid for various taxes
Other cash paid relating to operating
activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from
operating activities
Net cash flow from operating activities
I1. Cash flow from investing activities:
Cash received from sale of investments

Cash received from investment gains

Net cash received from disposal of fixed
assets, intangible assets and other long-
term assets

Net cash received from disposal of

subsidiaries and other business units

Other cash received relating to investing
activities

Sub-total of cash inflow from investing

activities

Cash paid for acquisition and
construction of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for acquisition of investments
Net cash paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries and other business units
Other cash paid relating to investing
activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from investing
activities

Net cash flow from investing activities

FyaE
Note

FHIERAERR

Current period

1,247,634,151.00

1,797,628,814.41

3,045,262,965.41

1,338,460,691.76

27,352,983.43
10,679,855.96

1,731,848,328.00

3,108,341,859.15

-63,078,893.74

27,500.00

27,500.00

1,333,227.44

500,000.00

1,833,227.44

-1,805,727.44

it Gl e

Prior period

1,439,152,136.26

1,202,888,966.91

2,642,041,103.17

866,446,994.95

26,608,019.09
10,666,385.94

1,817,644,792.84

2,721,366,192.82

-79,325,089.65

17,500.00

17,500.00

6,024,372.45

10,000,000.00

16,024,372.45

-16,006,872.45
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Item

III. Cash flow from financing activities:
Cash received from capital contributions

Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries from
capital contributions of minority
shareholders

Cash received from borrowings

Other cash received relating to financing
activities
Sub-total of cash inflow from
financing activities

Cash paid for repayment of debts

Cash payment for distribution of
dividends and profits or interest payment
Incl: Cash paid to minority shareholders
for distribution of dividends or profits by
subsidiaries

Other cash paid relating to financing
activities
Sub-total of cash outflow from financing
activities
Net cash flow from financing activities

IV. Effect of change in exchange rates on
cash and cash equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Add: Opening balance of cash and cash
equivalents for the period

VI. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents for the period

FFRE
Note

2025

AL

Current period

309,000,000.00

383,746,372.79

692,746,372.79
254,340,000.00

10,889,849.93

401,578,225.06

666,808,074.99
25,938,297.80

-6,223.70
-38,952,547.08
102,882,311.35

63,929,764.27

IR &

INTERIM REPORT

EHIRAR

Prior period

265,700,000.00

495,526,040.75

761,226,040.75
333,600,000.00

10,593,441.18

293,474,953.55

637,668,394.73
123,557,646.02

2,856.37
28,228,540.29
58,655,358.03

86,883,898.32

-047-



D/ BEmEBRGERAE

Bl CHMEI

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

REFGA G R BB

A 2025 F 6 A 30 HikAHAH

AR®T

HH

— LEERBH
e GEREGRETE
2 B 5 I
e — ] F A3 O
At
=, APNIRE
= MBS HEHE
(=) & AR aaEE
(=) RAENFRAD A
LIBHBN B i
2 UM B TR H BN
ES
kN IS RPNI S & i
i
4344t
(=) FIMAIR
LRI R AR
2.4 — L B Y
3B A R
4. 54t
(P9 EACHE 28 N el
LA R A
2.F0 R AR A
3. bR A BRI
4T R A At I T AR
fRlas
5. A o i A% i 9 7 A

6344l
(H) Brfkfe
LA
2
()

W, AHERGH

-048-

Item

1. Closing balance for last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous errors
Business combinations under common control
Others
11 Opening balance for the period
1II. Movements in current period
(I) Total comprehensive income
(IT) Injection and reduction
1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares
2. Capital contribution by holders of other equity
Instruments

3. Share-based payment credited to shareholders’ equity

4. Others

(III) Profit appropriation

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

3. Allocation to shareholders

4. Others

(IV) Internal carryover in shareholders’ equities

1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

4. Change in defined benefit plan carried ~forward to
retained earnings

5. Other comprehensive income carried forward to retained
earnings

6. Others

(V) Special reserve

1. Appropriation for the period

2. Use in the period

(V1) Others

IV. Closing balance for the current period

23
Capital stock

108,000,000.00

108,000,000.00

108,000,000.00

AE TR
other equity instruments
[ 217G T (Y
Preferred Perpetual Others

UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’

EQUITY
For the six months ended 30 June 2025
RMB

E3]
current period
R B R MR A A

equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company

REAR W B Rsads BHEE ESAR —MAR
Capital ;4 Other Special Surplus -
surplus Less:  comprehensive reserve reserve General

Treasury income risk
stock reserve
278,990,829.04 31,143,182.74
278,990,829.04 31,143,182.74
278,990,829.04 31,143,182.74

RAEHE R
Undistributed ~ Others
profits

200,556,936.21

200,556,936.21
-26,860,976.33
21,739,023.67

-48,600,000.00

-48,600,000.00

173,695,959.88

DY R B A AR
Minority Total of shareholders’
Mt interests equity
Subtotal
618,690,947.99 618,690,947.99
618,690,947.99 618,690,947.99
-26,860,976.33 -26,860,976.33

21,739,023.67 21,739,023.67

-48,600,000.00 -48,600,000.00
-48,600,000.00 -48,600,000.00
591,829,971.66 591,829,971.66
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Item

1. Closing balance for last year
Add: Changes in accounting policies
Correction of previous errors
Business combinations under common control
Others
1I. Opening balance for the period
1II. Movements in current period
(I) Total comprehensive income
(II) Injection and reduction
1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares
2. Capital contribution by holders of other equity
instruments

3. Share-based payment credited to sharcholders’ equity

4. Others

(III) Profit appropriation

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

3. Allocation to shareholders

4. Others

(IV) Internal carryover in shareholders’
equities

1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital
3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

4. Change in defined benefit plan carried ~ forward to
retained earnings

5. Other comprehensive income carried forward to retained

earnings

6. Others

(V) Special reserve

1. Appropriation for the period
2. Use in the period

(VI) Others

IV. Closing balance for the current period

BeAk

Capital stock

HAER TR
other equity instruments
[37 S Y

Preferred Perpetual Others
stock bond
108,000,000.00

108,000,000.00

108,000,000.00

202 R

INTERIM REPORT
i}
Prior period
BRI R AT RO R DB RS BB A3
equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company Minority Total of shareholders’
RAEAR W BE LEGAUR BEME  ESAR AR RAEAE 4 At interests equity
Capital )4 Other Special Surplus B Undistributed ~ Others Subtotal
surplus Less: comprehensive reserve reserve General profits
Treasury income risk
stock reserve

278,990,829.04 29,661,138.05 181,154,889.21 597,806,856.30 597,806,856.30
278,990,829.04 29,661,138.05 181,154,889.21 597,806,856.30 597,806,856.30
-5,652,764.47 -5,652,764.47 -5,652,764.47
26,747,235.53 26,747,235.53 26,747,235.53
-32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00
-32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00
278,990,829.04 29,661,138.05 175,502,124.74 - 592,154,091.83 592,154,091.83
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A 2025 4 6 A 30 Hib/SEH
AR TT

BH Item
—, EEERRE 1. Closing balance for last year
e EEREGRETE Add: Changes in accounting policies

RIS S IE Correction of previous errors
] — T 3 A 0 Business combinations under common control
) Others

=, REEYSR 11. Opening balance for the period

=, AMESHLE I11. Movements in current period

() & AR

(=) AN BA

B3 & Il

2 Ul s TR AR & B A
3. SO EN B AR 25 0

(I) Total comprehensive income

(IT) Injection and reduction

1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares

2. Capital contribution by holders of other equity instruments

3. Share-based payment credited to shareholders’ equity

4. 54t 4. Others

(=) AR (I11) Profit appropriation

LR SR AT 1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2 BRI L B e A 2. Appropriation of general risk provision
3BBR 3. Allocation to shareholders

454 4. Others

(T i SR 2 P9 70 45

LYA A R I A

2B R ATHBR AR

3B R A B S 4

40E R 2 it IS AL R A7
s earnings

5.t i A B A7 A

(IV) Internal carryover in shareholders’ equities
1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital
2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

5. Other comprehensive income carried forward to retained

earnings
6.3t 6. Others
1) BUIBR (V) Special reserve
LA 1. Appropriation for the period
2A MM 2. Use in the period
(%) Hif (VI) Others
. RBESE IV. Closing balance for the current period

-050-

4. Change in defined benefit plan carried ~ forward to retained

UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY OF THE

PARENT COMPANY
For the six months ended 30 June 2025

A%
current period
R B B

equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company

BeE AMEE TR REAR ¥ AR RASeks ARG AROR

Capital stock other equity instruments Capital B Other Special Surplus

BRR kSR HAb surplus Less:  comprehensive reserve reserve

Preferred Perpetual Others Treasury income
stock bond stock

108,000,000.00 282,204,487.50 31,143,182.74
108,000,000.00 282,204,487.50 31,143,182.74
108,000,000.00 282,204,487.50 31,143,182.74

—HEAK  RARAE Mt
e Undistributed Others Subtotal
General profits
risk
reserve
27,765,494.04 449,113,164.28
27,765,494.04 449,113,164.28
-8,384,955.15 -8,384,955.15
40,215,044.85 40,215,044.85
-48,600,000.00 -48,600,000.00
-48,600,000.00 -48,600,000.00
19,380,538.89 440,728,209.13

DYBR RS
Minority
interests

B A
Total of shareholders’
equity

449,113,164.28

449,113,164.28
-8,384,955.15
40,215,044.85

-48,600,000.00

-48,600,000.00

440,728,209.13
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1. Closing balance for last year

11 Opening balance for the period

1V. Closing balance for the current period

Item

;23

Capital stock

108,000,000.00
Add: Changes in accounting policies

Correction of previous errors

Business combinations under common control

Others
108,000,000.00

1II. Movements in current period

(I) Total comprehensive income
(II) Injection and reduction
1. Shareholders’ contribution to ordinary shares

2. Capital contribution by holders of other equity instruments

3. Share-based payment credited to sharcholders’ equity

4. Others

(III) Profit appropriation

1. Appropriation of surplus reserve

2. Appropriation of general risk provision

3. Allocation to shareholders

4. Others

(IV) Internal carryover in shareholders”

equities

1. Transfer of capital reserve to share capital

2. Transfer of surplus reserve to share capital

3. Surplus reserve for making up losses

4. Change in defined benefit plan carried ~forward to retained
earnings

5. Other comprehensive income carried forward to retained
earnings

6. Others

(V) Special reserve

1. Appropriation for the period

2. Use in the period

(VI) Others

108,000,000.00

HAER TR
other equity instruments
[37 S Y

Preferred Perpetual Others

stock

bond

i
Prior period
BRI R AT RO R
equity attributable to the shareholders of parent company

A W BE RbEARE WREG ALK

Capital & Other Special Surplus
surplus Less: comprehensive reserve reserve
Treasury income
stock
282,204,487.50 29,661,138.05
282,204,487.50 29,661,138.05
282,204,487.50 29,661,138.05

202 R
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DB RS B AR
Minority Total of shareholders’

—RAKR  RAEHE At interests equity

e Undistributed Others Subtotal

General profits

risk

reserve
46,827,091.82 466,692,717.37 466,692,717.37
46,827,091.82 466,692,717.37 466,692,717.37
-22,180,430.62 -22,180,430.62 -22,180,430.62

10,219,569.38 10,219,569.38 10,219,569.38

-32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00
-32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00 -32,400,000.00
24,646,661.20 444,512,286.75 444,512,286.75
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NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED
INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY

1. General Information

As approved by Shantou Commission for Restructuring the
Economic Systems, Shantou Economic Committee, Shantou
Finance Bureau and Shantou State-owned Property
Management Office with Circular [2000] No.6 of Shantou
Reform Commission, Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(hereinafter referred to as the “Company” or “Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Company”, together with its subsidiaries
referred to as the “Group”) was restructured from “Shantou
Pharmaceutical Trading Development Company (7155 17 &4 8%
E 7 % A PR A F])” and established as a limited liability
company by Shantou Medicine (Group) Limited (IlI5H %8 8%
(%2[#)A F]), Shantou Chuangmei Trading Limited (71l Z5H75 £
X ¥ 5 A MR /A#E) and Shantou Chuangmei Advertising
Limited (MIEHTT B3 15 A PR A 7)) with joint investments in
2000. The Company obtained the BUSINESS LICENSE OF
THE ENTERPRISE LEGAL PERSON issued by Shantou
Administration for Industry and Commerce on 6 March 2000.
On 28 May 2015, the Company changed its name to Charmacy
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. The registered address of the
Company is No. 235 Song Shan North Road, Longhu District,
Shantou City with a uniform social credit number of
91440500722414635C.

The Company operates in the pharmaceutical distribution
industry and is mainly engaged in the distribution of
pharmaceutical products. The business scope is: Licensed
items: drug wholesale, distribution of Class III medical devices,
food sale, road transportation of goods (excluding dangerous
goods), urban distribution and transportation services
(excluding dangerous goods), sale of disinfection equipment,
online drug information services, and online medical device

information services. Sale of Class I medical devices, sale of
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Class II medical devices, sale of health foods (prepackaged),
sale of foods (only prepackaged foods), domestic cargo
transportation agency, information consulting services
(excluding information consulting services subject to
licensing), health consulting services (excluding medical
services), enterprise management consulting, general cargo
warehousing services (excluding hazardous chemicals and
other items subject to licensing and approval), low-temperature
warehousing (excluding hazardous chemicals and other items
subject to licensing and approval), information technology
consulting services, advertisement design and agency, non-
residential real estate leasing, warehousing equipment leasing
services, office equipment leasing services, sale of disinfectants
(excluding hazardous chemicals), sale of sanitary pesticides,
cosmetics wholesale and retail, sale of sanitary products and
disposable medical products, sale of personal hygiene products,
sale of food detergents, sale of daily groceries, wholesale of
daily necessities, sale of chemical products (excluding
chemical products subject to licensing), sale of labor protection
products, sale of special labor protection products, purchase of
primary agricultural products, sale of agricultural by-products,
primary processing of edible agricultural products, loading and
unloading, cargo transportation and packing services,
packaging services, consulting and planning services, online
sale (except for sale of commodities subject to licensing),
online sale of foods (only prepackaged foods), sale of daily
masks (non-medical), domestic trade agency, and leasing
services (excluding leasing services subject to licensing), labor
services (excluding labor dispatching), import and export of
technology, import and export of foods, and import and export
of goods. (For special projects subject to approval according to
law, business activities can be carried out only after being

approved by relevant departments)

The Company has the General Meeting, the Board of Directors,
the Board of Supervisors and the General Manager. The
Company has functional departments such as marketing centre,
information technology centre, logistics centre and finance

department.

The financial report was approved and published by the Board
of the Company on 28 August 2025.
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II. BASIS FOR THE PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.Preparation basis

The financial statements of the Group are prepared according
to the actually incurred transactions and matters, the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance and its application guidelines,
interpretations and other related provisions (hereinafter referred
to as the “Accounting Standards for Enterprises”), the
Preparation Rules for Information Disclosure by Companies
Offering Securities to the Public No. 15 - General Provisions
on Financial Reports (Revision 2023) of China Securities
Regulatory Commission (hereinafter referred to as the
“CSRC”) and related provisions, and the Company Ordinance
of Hong Kong, as well as disclosure related provisions in the

securities listing rules of SEHK (“Listing Rules”).
2.Going concern

The Group has conducted the evaluation on the 12-month going
concern capacity from 30 June 2025. According to the
evaluation, no matters or circumstances which give rise to great
doubts about the going concern capacity are found. The
financial statements are presented on the basis of going

concern.

[TI. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES AND ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES

The specific accounting policies and estimates established by
the Group based on its actual production and operational
characteristics include, but are not limited to, provisions for bad
debts of receivables, inventory write-downs, depreciation of
fixed assets, amortization of intangible assets, revenue

recognition and measurement, etc.

1.Declaration on compliance with Accounting Standards

for Enterprises

The financial statements meet the requirements of the

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and truly,
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accurately and completely reflect the financial situation of the
Company and the Group on 30 June 2025, and the operating
results and cash flow, as well as other related information in

this period.
2.Accounting period

The Group’s accounting period begins on 1 January and ends

on 31 December of the calendar year.
3.Business cycle

The Group treats 12 months as a business cycle and the criteria

for classifying the liquidity of assets and liabilities.
4.Functional currency
The Group adopts Renminbi as its functional currency.

5.Determination Method and Selection Basis of Materiality

Criteria

VREENFAEANKNEESEH | ZEEEAMBREMETRS | EEEEREE I ERERIK

Items for Disclosure Involving the BANE B
Judgment of Materiality Criteria Location for Disclosure in the Determination Method and
Notes to the Financial Statements Selection Basis of Materiality
Criteria

(Y B T B A PR Y A £ R HACER
TH

Significant account receivables with
bad debt allowance set aside

separately

B IH SRR 200 BTl B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

JREMAT T A S0 AR Y4 A Wi ] i ]
A E

Significant recovery of bad debt
allowance (amount) for accounts

receivable during the period

B TR AR 200 & o LA B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

A Y FH (1 SRR I A 8
Significant accounts receivable

written off during the period

FLIAG AR 200 EobL L
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

AR 30 B ) A RSOGO
Significant other receivables written

off during the period

FLIA G AR 200 oL L
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

PR 1 4 H e HH E 2 FRAT K
H

HIESE R 500 &bl FRY
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¥R E B AR B 4 R IR
Items for Disclosure Involving the

Judgment of Materiality Criteria

% TR R A B 755 3R PR R B 38
A A
Location for Disclosure in the

Notes to the Financial Statements

H BV YRR B VAR
B
Determination Method and

Selection Basis of Materiality

Criteria

Prepayments aged over one year and

with a significant amount

Single amount exceeding RMB5

million

FRES I 1 4F i B 2 A R K
Significant accounts payable aged

over one year

BEIH G AR 200 Boc A B
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million

FRE® I 1 4F 1 B 2 A AT K
Significant other payables aged over

one year

B IH G EA R 300 E ool B
Single amount exceeding RMB3

million

HRfe s | S EE S R AR

Significant contractual liabilities aged

over one year

B TE SRR 200 & oL R
Single amount exceeding RMB2

million
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6. Accounting methods for business combinations under
common control and business combinations not under

common control
(1) Business Combinations under Common Control

A business combination involving enterprises under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
enterprises are ultimately controlled by the same party or
parties both before and after the combination, and that control

is not transitory.

The assets and liabilities obtained by the Group as the merging
party in a business combination are measured at the
combination- date carrying amount of the merged party in the
consolidated statement of ultimate controller. The difference
between the carrying amount of net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the combination consideration paid shall
adjust additional paid-in capital; if the additional paid-in capital
is not sufficient for offsetting, the retained earnings shall be

adjusted.
(2) Business Combinations not under common Control

A business combination involving enterprises not under

common control is a business combination in which all of
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the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled by
the same party or parties before and after the combination.

When the Group is the acquirer, the acquiree's identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obtained from a
business combination not under common control are measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition.Where the cost of
combination exceeds the acquirer’s share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets, the difference is recognized
as goodwill; where the cost of combination is less than the
acquirer’s share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets, the measurement of the fair values of all the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities obtained
in the business combination and the fair values of non-cash
assets or equity securities issued as the consideration for
combination are firstly reviewed. If, after that review, the cost
of combination is still less than the acquirer’s share of the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets in the business
combination, the difference shall be included in the

consolidated non-operating revenue for the period.

7.Criteria for Control and Preparation Method of
Consolidated Financial Statements

The scope of consolidation of the Group's consolidated
financial statements is determined on the basis of control,
including the Company and all the subsidiaries controlled by
the Company. The Group controls an entity if it is exposed, or
has rights, to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its

power over the entity.

When preparing consolidated financial statements, if there is
inconsistency on the accounting policies or accounting periods
between the subsidiaries and the Company, necessary
adjustments will be made to the financial statements of the
subsidiaries based on the accounting policies or accounting

periods of the Company.

The effects of internal transactions between the Company and
its subsidiaries, and those between subsidiaries, on the
consolidated financial statements are offset upon consolidation.

The share in a subsidiary's owner's equity that does not belong

-057-
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to the parent company and the share in net profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and comprehensive income for the
current period that belongs to minority shareholders' equity are
presented separately in the consolidated financial statements
under "minority shareholders' equity, minority shareholders'
profit and loss, other comprehensive income attributable to
minority shareholders, and total comprehensive income

attributable to minority shareholders” .

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements from the
beginning of the period of the combination. When preparing the
comparative consolidated financial statements, relevant items
in the financial statements of the previous year will be adjusted
as if the reporting entity formed after the combination had been
in existence since the time when the ultimate controlling party

gains control.

The operating results and cash flows of a subsidiary acquired
from business combination not under common control shall be
included in the consolidated financial statements since the date
when the Group gains control. When preparing the
consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of
the subsidiary shall be adjusted based on the fair values of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

determined on the acquisition date.

For the partial disposal of the Group’s long-term equity
investments in a subsidiary without losing control, the balance
between the disposal price and the share of net assets (being
calculated from the acquisition date or combination date) of the
subsidiary enjoyed correspondingly in the disposal of the long-
term equity investment shall be used to adjust the capital
premium or share premium, or the retained earnings if the
capital reserves are not sufficient for offsetting, in the

consolidated financial statements.
8.Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in the cash flow statements of the Group refers to cash on
hand and the deposits ready for payment at any time. Cash
equivalents in the cash flow statements represent the

investment with a term less than 3 months, which are highly
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liquidated, easy to be converted into known amounts of cash

and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
9.Foreign currency business
(1) Foreign currency transactions

Upon initial recognition of the Group's foreign currency-
denominated transactions, the foreign currency amount is
converted into RMB amount at the spot exchange rate on the
day when such transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
items are converted into RMB at the spot exchange rate on the
balance sheet date, and the conversion differences resulted
therefrom, except that those arising from special foreign
currency loans related to the acquisition and construction or
production of assets eligible for capitalisation should be treated
on the capitalisation principle, are all included in the current

profit or loss.
10.Financial Instruments
(1) Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability
when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (or part of a financial asset/a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized, i.e., the previously recognized
financial asset is derecognized from the balance sheet: 1) the
right to receive the cash flows of the financial asset is
terminated; 2) the right to receive the cash flows of the financial
asset has been transferred, or the obligation to timely pay cash
flows to a third party in full amount is undertaken under a
transfer agreement. And, substantially all of the risks and
rewards related to the ownership of the financial asset have
been transferred, or the control over the financial asset has been
given up although the Group does not transfer or retain
substantially all of the risks and rewards related to the

ownership of the financial asset.

A financial liability is derecognized if the liability towards it
has been discharged, canceled, or expired. If the existing

financial liability is replaced by the same creditor with another
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one under almost totally different terms and conditions in
substantial aspects, or almost all the terms and conditions on
the existing liability are modified substantially, such
replacement or modification results in derecognition of the old
liability and recognition of the new one, with the difference

included in current profit and loss.

The financial assets traded in a conventional way are

recognized and derecognized on the transaction day.
(2) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

The classification of financial assets is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. On initial recognition, a
financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, at
fair value through other comprehensive income, or at fair value
through profit or loss. All related financial assets affected will
be reclassified when and only when the Group changes its

business model of managing financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at fair value when initially
recognized, but if the accounts or bill receivable arising from
the sale of goods or the provision of services do not contain
significant financing components or do not consider financing
components for no more than one year, the initial measurement

is made at the transaction price.

For financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction expenses are directly recognized in the current
profit or loss. For other financial assets, transaction expenses

are included in the initial recognition amount.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets is subject to their

classification:
1) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both
of the following conditions: (. it is managed within a business
model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual

cash flows; and (). its contractual terms give rise on specified
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dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Specifically, the
Group classifies the following into this type of financial assets:
cash on hand/in bank, accounts receivable, notes receivable,

and other receivables.

2) Debt instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified as financial assets measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income if they meet the
following conditions simultaneously: (O The business model
for managing the financial asset is aimed at both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. @ The
contract terms of the financial asset stipulate that the cash flows
generated on specified dates consist solely of payments of
principal and interest on the outstanding principal amount.
Interest income on such financial assets is recognized using the
effective interest rate method. Except for interest income,
impairment losses, and exchange differences, which are
recognized in current period profit or loss, all other fair value
changes are included in other comprehensive income. Upon
derecognition of the financial asset, the accumulated gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are transferred out of other comprehensive income and included
in current period profit or loss. The financial assets classified

as such by the Group mainly include: receivables financing.

3) Equity instruments measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

The Group irrevocably designates part of non-trading equity
instruments as financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Once the designation is made, it
cannot be revoked. The Group only includes relevant dividend
income (except that recovered as investment costs) in the
current profit and loss and subsequent changes in fair value in
other comprehensive income, and no impairment provisions are
required. When the financial asset is derecognized, the
accumulated gains or losses previously included in other
comprehensive income are transferred out and included in the

retained earnings.
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4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

In addition to the above classifications as financial assets
measured at amortized cost and financial assets classified or
designated as measured at fair value with changes recognized
in other comprehensive income, the Group classifies the
remaining financial assets as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. Such financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value, and all fair value changes, except those related to

hedge accounting, are recognized in profit or loss.

If the contingent consideration recognized by the Group in a
business combination not under common control constitutes a
financial asset, the financial asset is classified as a financial

asset measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(3) Classification, recognition basis and measurement

method of financial liabilities

Except the financial guarantee contracts awarded,
commitments to loans at lower than market interest rates and
financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets
that do not meet the conditions for derecognition or continued
involvement in the transferred financial assets, the Group's
financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities
measured at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities measured at amortized cost upon initial recognition.
Relevant transaction expenses for financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are directly booked into profit or
loss, while those for financial liabilities measured at amortized

cost are booked into initially recognized amount.

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities is subject to

their classification:
1) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective

interest rate method.

2) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivatives that contain financial liabilities) include
trading financial liabilities and financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Trading financial liabilities (including derivatives falling under
financial liabilities) are subsequently measured at fair value.
All changes in fair value are included in the current profit or
loss. The Group subsequently measures financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value. Except that
changes in fair value that are brought about by changes in the
Group's own credit risk are included in other comprehensive
income, other changes in fair value are included in the current
profit or loss. Unless inclusion of such changes in other
comprehensive income causes or expands accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, the Group will include all changes in fair value
(including the amount affected by changes in its own credit

risk) in the current profit or loss.

(4) Impairment of Financial Instruments

The Group conducts impairment treatment of financial assets
measured at amortized cost and contract assets and recognizes

related loss provisions based on expected credit loss.

Expected credit loss refers to the weighted average of the credit
losses of financial instruments weighted by the risk of default.
Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate and receivable
according to the contract and all cash flows expected to be
collected of the Group, i.e., the present value of all cash
shortfalls.

The expected credit loss over the entire expected life refers to
the expected credit loss resulting from all possible default
events that may occur during the entire expected life of a
financial instrument. The expected credit loss over the next 12
months refers to the expected credit loss resulting from possible
default events of the financial instrument within 12 months
after the balance sheet date (or over its expected life, if the

expected life of the financial instrument is less than 12 months),
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and represents a portion of the expected credit loss over the

entire expected life.

The Group assesses the expected credit loss of financial
instruments based on single items and combinations. For the
later, it divides financial instruments into different
combinations on the basis of common credit risk
characteristics. Common credit risk characteristics adopted by
the Group include: financial instrument type, credit risk rating,
debtor's geographical location/industry, overdue information,

and aging of account receivable.

To use the expected credit loss model for assessing the
impairment of financial instruments and contract assets, the
Group needs to make significant judgments and estimates by
taking into consideration all reasonable and evidence-based
information, including forward-looking information. When
making these judgments and estimates, the Group infers
expected changes in the debtor's credit risk based on historical
repayment data and with due regard to economic policies,
macroeconomic indicators, and industry risks, among other
factors. Different estimates may affect impairment
provisioning, and the impairment provisions that have been set
aside may not be equal to the actual amount of future

impairment losses.

1) Impairment testing methods for accounts receivable and

contract assets

The Group uses simplified methods to measure the loss
provisions for accounts receivable, notes receivable, receivable
financing and other receivables arising from day-to-day
business activities such as selling goods and providing services,
which do not contain significant financing components, i.e.,
calculating them on a basis equivalent to the expected credit

losses during the duration.

The Group recognizes receivables with a single amount
exceeding RMB2 million and that have credit impaired as
receivables with significant individual amount and tests their

impairment separately.

Except separately determining the credit loss of a receivable

with significant single amount and having credit impaired, the
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Group prepares a comparison table of accounts receivable
aging and default loss rate based on the portfolio of common
credit risk characteristics, with consideration to the factors that
the expected credit loss measurement methods should reflect,
and with reference to historical credit loss experience, and
calculates expected credit losses based on this table. If the credit
risk characteristics of a customer are significantly different
from other customers in the portfolio or have changed
significantly (e.g., the customer trapped in serious financial
difficulties), causing the expected credit loss rate of the
accounts receivable from the customer significantly higher than
that of other customers in the same aging and overdue interval,
etc., the Group accrues loss provisions for the accounts

receivable from the customer on an individual basis.

(O Portfolio categories and determination basis of accounts

receivable

The Group classifies accounts receivable by the similarity and
correlation of credit risk characteristics based on information
such as age of accounts receivable, nature of payment, credit
risk exposure, and historical payment collection. The Group
identifies aging as the main factor affecting the credit risk of
accounts receivable. Therefore, the Group assesses its expected
credit losses based on the aging portfolio. The Group
determines the aging of accounts receivable based on the

confirmation date.

@ Portfolio categories and determination basis of notes

receivable

The Group classifies notes receivable into different portfolios
based on the common risk characteristics of the acceptor's
credit risk and determines the accounting estimation policy for
expected credit losses: a. banker's acceptance bills. The Group
deems that banker's acceptance bills are exposed to low credit
risks and thus does not recognize expected credit losses; b.
commercial acceptance bills, the expected loss rate of which is
confirmed and loss provisions are made with reference to the
Group's accounts receivable policy. They are classified the

same as the portfolios of accounts receivable.

2) Other Receivables
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The Group accrues the expected credit loss using a general
approach (three-stage method). On each balance sheet date, the
Group assesses whether its credit risk exposure has increased
significantly since the initial recognition. If the credit risk has
not increased significantly since its initial recognition and is in
the first stage, its loss reserve is measured at an amount
equivalent to its expected credit loss in the next 12 months, and
the interest income is calculated at the book balance and the
effective interest rate; if the credit risk has increased
significantly since the initial recognition but no credit
impairment has occurred, and it is in the second stage, then its
loss reserve is measured at an amount equivalent to its expected
credit loss throughout its duration, and the interest income is
calculated at the book balance and the effective interest rate; if
the financial instrument is credit-impaired since its initial
recognition and it is in the third stage, the Group measures its
loss reserve at an amount equivalent to its expected credit loss
throughout its duration, and calculates the interest income at the
amortized cost and the effective interest rate. If, on the balance
sheet date, the credit risk of the financial instrument is judged
to be low, the Group assumes that the credit risk of the financial
instrument has not increased significantly since the initial

recognition.

Expected credit losses throughout the entire duration refer to
the expected credit losses caused by all default events that may
occur during the entire expected life of a financial instrument.
Expected credit losses in the next 12 months refer to the
expected credit losses caused by the financial instrument
default events that are likely to occur within 12 months after the
balance sheet date (the expected duration if the expected
duration of a financial instrument is less than 12 months), which
are part of the expected credit losses throughout the entire

duration.

Please refer to Note IX.1 for disclosures on the Group’ s
criteria for determining a significant increase in credit risk and

the definition of credit-impaired assets.

For other receivables, when the Group is unable to obtain
sufficient evidence of a significant increase in credit risk at a
reasonable cost at the individual instrument level but can assess

whether the credit risk has significantly increased on a portfolio
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basis, it will classify other receivables by taking the type of
financial instrument, credit risk rating, and relationship with
related parties as common risk characteristics, consider and
evaluate whether the credit risk has significantly increased on a

portfolio basis.

The Group adopts the following accounting estimation policy
for measuring expected credit losses based on actual credit
losses in previous years and taking into account the forward-
looking information for the current year: Calculate expected
credit losses with reference to the past experience of credit loss,
in combination with the current situation and anticipation on
future economic conditions and based on default risk exposure
and expected credit loss rates in the next 12 months or

throughout the duration.

(5) Recognition Basis and Measurement Method of
Financial Asset Transfer

If substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the
transferred financial asset have been transferred, the financial
asset is derecognized; if substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the transferred financial asset have been retained,
recognition of the financial asset is continued; if substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the transferred financial
asset have not been transferred or retained, the financial asset
is derecognized with the resulting assets and liabilities
recognized when the Group gives up control over the financial
asset, or the relevant financial asset is recognized to the extent
of its continuous involvement in the transferred financial asset
with the relevant liability recognized accordingly when the

Group does not give up control.

If the whole transfer of the financial asset meets the conditions
for derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount
of'the transferred financial asset at the date of derecognition and
the sum of the consideration received for the transfer and the
accumulative amount of fair value changes originally recorded
into other comprehensive income which is relevant to the
portion of derecognition (the transferred financial asset shall
meet all of the following conditions: 1) the Group's business
model for managing the financial asset is to collect contractual
cash flows and sell the financial asset; 2) the contractual terms

of the financial asset require that the cash flow generated on a
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specific date is only for the payment of interest based on the

principal).

If the transfer of financial asset partially satisfies the conditions
of derecognition, the entire carrying amount of the transferred
financial asset is, between the portion which is derecognized
and the portion which is not, apportioned according to their
respective relative fair value, and the difference between the
sum of the consideration received from the transfer and the
accumulative amount of the changes of the fair value originally
included in other comprehensive income which shall be
apportioned to the derecognized portion (the transferred
financial asset shall meet all of the following conditions: 1) the
Group's business model for managing the financial assets is
aimed at both receiving contract cash flows and selling the
financial assets; 2) The terms of the contract for the financial
asset provide that the cash flow generated on a particular date
is only for the payment of principal and interest based on the
amount of the outstanding principal.), and the apportioned
entire carrying amount of the said financial assets are included

into current profit or loss.

If the Group continues to be involved by providing financial
guarantee for the transferred financial assets, the assets formed
by the continued involvement are recognized at the lower of the
book value of the financial assets and the amount of financial
guarantee. The amount of financial guarantee refers to the
maximum amount of the consideration received that will be

required to be repaid.

(6) Distinction between and treatment of financial liabilities

and equity instruments

The Group distinguishes between financial liabilities and
equity instruments in accordance with the following principles:
1) A contractual obligation meets the definition of a financial
liability if the Group cannot unconditionally avoid meeting that
obligation by delivering cash or other financial assets. Some
financial instruments do not explicitly contain terms and
conditions for delivery of cash or other financial asset
obligations, but it is possible that contractual obligations may
arise indirectly through other terms and conditions. 2) If a
financial instrument is required to be, or may be, settled with

the Group’ s own equity instruments, it’ s needed to take into
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account whether the Group’ s own equity instruments used to
settle the instrument in question are intended as a substitute for
cash or other financial assets or are intended to give the holder
of the instrument in question certain residual interest in the
assets of the issuer net of all liabilities. If the former prevails,
the instrument will be treated as a financial liability of the
issuer; or if the latter prevails, the instrument will be treated as
an equity instrument of the issuer. In certain circumstances, a
financial instrument contract requires or allows the Group to
settle the financial instrument with its own equity instruments,
where the amount of the contractual right or contractual
obligation is equal to the number of the Group’ s own equity
instruments available for acquisition or required for delivery
multiplied by their fair value at the time of settlement, then the
contract is classified as a financial liability regardless of
whether the amount of the contractual right or obligation is
fixed or varies, in whole or in part, with variables other than the
market price of the Group’ s own equity instruments (for
example, interest rates, the price of a commodity or a financial

instrument).

When classifying financial instruments (or their components)
in the consolidated statements of operations, the Group takes
into account all terms and conditions agreed between the
members of the Group and holders of financial instruments. An
instrument shall be classified as a financial liability if the Group
as a whole has borne an obligation to deliver cash, other
financial assets or to settle in a manner that otherwise results in

the instrument becoming a financial liability.
(7) Offset of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group are
presented separately in the balance sheet without offsetting. But
whenever all of the following conditions are met, they shall be
presented in the balance sheet at the net amount after offsetting:
1) The Group has the legal right to offset recognized amount
and is currently able to execute this legal right; and 2) The
Group plans to settle on a net basis, or realize the financial

assets and settle the financial liabilities at the same time.

11. Inventories
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The inventories of the Group mainly include merchandise

inventory and goods shipped in transit.

The inventories are initially measured as per costs. The
inventory costs are purchase costs. The perpetual inventory
system is carried out for the inventories. When the inventories
are received or shipped, the actual costs are determined by the

moving weighted average method.

On the balance sheet date, the inventories are measured by the
costs or net realizable value, whichever is lower. If the
inventory costs are higher than the net realizable value, the
inventory falling price reserves are accrued, which is included
into the current profit or loss. The net realizable value refers to
the amount of estimated sales price of inventories minus the

purchase costs in the daily activity.

Regarding the merchandise inventory of the Group, according
to the single inventory item, the inventory falling price reserves
are accrued. The net realizable value of merchandise inventory
is determined according to the estimated sales price of such

inventory minus the purchase costs.
12. Contract Liabilities

The contract liability reflects the obligation of transfer of goods
to the customer due to the customer consideration received or
receivable of the Group. Before the Group transfers the goods
to the customer, if the customer has paid the contract
consideration or the Group has gained the right of
unconditionally receiving the contract consideration, the
contract liability is recognized according to the amount
received or receivable based on the money actually paid by the

customer or matured money payable, whichever is earlier.
13. Long-term Equity Investment

The long-term equity investment of the Group is the investment

in the subsidiary primarily.
(1) Judgment of Significant Impact and Common Control

It is the equity investment of the Group with significant impact
in the investee, namely, investment in the joint venture. The

significant impact refers to “the Group has the power to
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participate in the decision-making of financial and operation
policies of the investee, but cannot control the formulation of
these policies or jointly control the formulation of these policies
together with other parties” . If the Company possesses more
than 20% but less than 50% voting rights of the investee
directly or indirectly through the subsidiary, it is usually
deemed that the Company has the significant impact on the
investee, unless there are explicit evidences showing that the
Group cannot participate in the decision-making of production
and operation of the investee or form the control over the

investee.
(2) Accounting Treatment Method

The Group initially measures the long-term equity investment

according to the initial investment cost.

For long- term equity investment acquired through business
combination under common control, the share of the book value
of net assets of the combined party in the combined statement
of the ultimate controlling party on the combination date shall
be accounted for as the initial investment cost of the long-term
equity investment. If the book value of net assets of the
combined party on the combination date is negative, the cost of

the long- term equity investment is determined as nil.

For long-term equity investment acquired through business
combination not under common control, the combination cost
is regarded as the initial investment cost; for the combination
of enterprises not under common control by steps through
multiple transactions, if it is not a package transaction, the sum
of book value of originally held equity investment plus newly-

added investment costs is the initial investment cost.

Except the long-term equity investment due to the business
combination, for the long-term equity investment acquired
through cash payment, the actually paid purchase price and
expenses directly related to the acquisition of long-term equity
investment, taxes and other necessary expenditures are
regarded as the initial investment cost; for the long-term equity
investment acquired through issuing the equity securities, the
fair value of issued equity securities is regarded as the

investment cost.
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The investment of the Company in the subsidiary is accounted
by the cost method in some financial statements. When the cost
method is adopted, the long-term equity investment is valuated
according to the initial investment cost. When the investment is
added, according to the fair value of cost amount paid in the
added investment and relevant transaction fees incurred, the
book value of long-term equity investment cost is increased.
The cash dividends or profits allocated by the investee are
recognized as the investment income of current period

according to the amount.

The investment of the Group in the cooperative enterprise and
joint venture is accounted by the equity method. When the
equity method is adopted, for the portion of initial investment
cost of long-term equity investment greater than the fair value
of net identifiable assets of the investee in the investment, the
book value of long-term equity investment is not adjusted; for
the portion of initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment less than the fair value of net identifiable assets of
the investee in the investment, the book value of long-term
equity investment is increased based on the difference, which
is included into the current profit or loss of investment

simultaneously.

In the subsequent measurement, for the long-term equity
investment accounted by the equity method, during the period
when the investment is held, with the change of owner’ s
equities of the investee, the book value of long-term equity
investment is increased or decreased accordingly. When the
portion of net profit and loss of the investee enjoyed is
recognized, based on the fair value of identifiable assets of the
investee in the investment acquisition, according to the
accounting policy and accounting period of the Group, after the
offsetting of unrealized internal transaction profit and loss due
to the non-business transaction with the cooperative enterprise
and joint venture, the part of the Group is calculated as per the
proportion (if the internal transaction loss belongs to the asset
impairment loss, it is recognized by full amount), and the net
profits of the investee are recognized after adjustment. The
Group recognizes the net losses of the investee subject to the
write-down to zero of book value of long-term equity

investment and other long-term equities which constitute the
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net investment in the investee in essence, except that the Group

bears the additional loss obligation.
14. Investment Property

The investment property of the Group refers to the property
held for earning the rentals or capital appreciation, which is

measured by cost model.

The investment property of the Group shall be depreciated or
amortized on straight-line basis. The estimated useful life, net
residual value rate and annual depreciation (amortization) rate

of various investment properties are as follows:

HEPRER %) FHEE%)
FFoR 2l ﬁgﬂi.llﬁ(ﬂi) . Estimated Annual
Depreciation Period . .
No. Category (year) Residual Depreciation
y Value Rate (%) Rate (%)
AR IR
1 . Remaining term upon 0.00 -
Land use rights
transfer
s RS
2 Buildings and 30.00 5.00 3.17
structures
15.FHE B E 15. Fixed assets
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Fixed assets are tangible assets refer to the following
characteristics at the same time, that are held for use in the
production of goods, supply of labour, rental or operation
management, with a unit value of more than RMB2,000 and
have a useful life of more than one year.

Fixed assets are recognized only when its related economic
benefits are likely to flow into the Group and its cost could be
reliably measured. The Group’s fixed assets include houses and
buildings, machinery, transportation equipment, office
equipment, etc.

For subsequent expenses related to fixed assets, if the economic
benefits related to such fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Group and its cost could be reliably measured, such expenses
are included in the cost of fixed asset, and the book value of the
replaced part will be derecognized. Save for the above, other
subsequent expenses are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they are incurred.
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The Group depreciates all fixed assets, except for those that
have been fully depreciated and continued to be used as well as
land that has been separately stated in the accounts.
Depreciation is recognised using the average service life
method (or other methods). The categorised depreciable service
life, estimated net residual values and depreciation rates of the
Group’s fixed assets are shown as follows:

o 5| FEERE) HRIBREE (%) FEHIER(%)
Nom Catesor Depreciable Life | Estimated Residual | Annual Depreciation
: gory (vear) Value Rate (%) Rate (%)
1 _ REREY 30 5 3.17
Buildings and structures
25 HEL 2
2 . PR . 6. 10. 13 0 16.67. 7.69. 10.00
Machinery and equipment
3 AL 8 0 12.50
Transportation facilities
e N
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Office equipment
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At the end of each year, the Group reviews the estimated useful
life, estimated net residual value and depreciation method of
fixed assets, and if there is a change, it treats it as a change in

accounting estimate.
16. Borrowing Costs

The to-be-incurred borrowing costs of construction or
production which may be directly attributed to the assets
meeting the capitalization conditions of the Group are
capitalized and they are included into relevant asset costs, and
other borrowing costs are included into the current profit or
loss. For the borrowing costs of assets meeting the
capitalization conditions determined by the Group, including
fixed assets which may reach the predetermined serviceable or
sellable state after more than 1-year construction or production
activity, investment property and inventory, when the asset
expenditures are incurred, the borrowing costs are incurred, and
the construction or production activity necessary for the assets
to reach the predetermined serviceable or sellable state starts,
they are capitalized; when the assets meeting the capitalization
conditions of construction or purchase reach the predetermined
serviceable or sellable state, the capitalization is stopped, and
the borrowing costs incurred thereafter are included into the

current profit or loss. If the assets meeting the capitalization
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conditions suffer from the abnormal suspension during the
construction or production, and the suspension time exceeds
three 3 months, the capitalization of borrowing costs is
suspended till the asset construction or production activity re-
starts.

Regarding each accounting period during the capitalization
period, the Group recognizes the capitalized amount of
borrowing costs according to the following methods: for the
borrowing of special loan, it is determined according to the
amount of actually incurred interest expenses after the
deduction of interest income gained of unused loan fund
deposited into the bank or investment income from temporary
investment; for the occupation of general loan, it is determined
according to the weighted mean of asset expenditures of
accumulated asset expenditures greater than the special loan
multiplying by the capitalization rate of occupied general loan,
and the capitalization rate is calculated and determined

according to the weighted average interest rate of general loan.
17. Intangible Assets

The intangible assets of the Group include land use right,
computer software, customer resources, and they are measured
according to the actual costs in the acquisition. For the
purchased intangible assets, the actually paid prices and related
other expenditures are regarded as the actual costs; for the
intangible assets invested by the investor, the actual costs are
determined according to the value agreed in the investment
contract or agreement, but the actual costs are determined
according to the fair value if the value agreed in the contract or

agreement is unfair.

(1) Service Life and Determination Basis, Estimate,
Amortization Method or Review Procedure

The land use right shall be evenly amortized when it is obtained
from the date of transfer. Computer software and, customer
resources are amortized evenly by stages over the shortest of
estimated useful life, beneficial term stipulated by contract and
legal effective term. The amortization amount is credited into
relevant asset cost and profit or loss for the period according to
its beneficiaries. The Group reviews the estimated useful life

and amortization method of intangible assets with limited
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useful life at the end of each year, and any changes will be

treated as changes on accounting estimates.
18. Long-term Asset Impairment

On each balance sheet date, the Group checks the long-term
equity investment, fixed asset, right-of-use asset, intangible
assets with limited service life and other items. If the
impairment sign exists, the Group conducts the impairment test.
For goodwill, no matter the impairment sign exists, the

impairment test is conducted at the end of each year.

(1) Impairment of Non-current Assets except Financial
Assets (Except Goodwill)

In the impairment test of the Group, according to the higher one
between the net amount of fair value of asset minus the disposal
expenses and present value of predicted future cash flow of
asset, the recoverable amount is determined. After the
impairment test, if the book value of such asset exceeds the
recoverable amount, the difference is recognized as the

impairment loss.

The Group estimates the recoverable amount based on the
single asset. If it is difficult to estimate the recoverable amount
of single asset, based on the asset group of such asset, the
recoverable amount of asset group is determined. The asset
group is identified based on whether the main cash inflow of

asset group is independent of cash inflow of other assets or asset

group.

The net amount of fair value minus the disposal expenses is
determined based on the sales agreement price or observable
market price of similar asset in the fair transaction minus the
incremental cost which may be directly attributed to such asset
disposal. When the present value of future cash flow is
predicted, the Management must estimate the predicted future
cash flow of such asset or asset group, and choose the proper

discount rate to determine the present value of future cash flow.
(2) Goodwill Impairment

For the goodwill of the Group due to the business combination,
from the purchase date, the book value is amortized to the

related asset group according to the reasonable method. If it is
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difficult to amortize the book value to the related asset group,
it is amortized to the related asset group portfolio. In the
impairment test of related asset group or asset group portfolio
including goodwill, if the goodwill related asset group or asset
group portfolio has any impairment sign, the impairment test is
conducted on the asset group or asset group portfolio excluding
goodwill at first, and the recoverable amount is calculated, the
comparison is done with related book wvalue, and the
corresponding impairment losses are recognized; after that, the
impairment test is conducted on the asset group or asset group
portfolio including goodwill, and the book value and
recoverable amount are compared, and the impairment loss
amount offsets the book value of goodwill amortized to the
asset group or asset group portfolio at first, and then offsets the
book value of other assets in proportion according to the
proportion of book value of other assets in the asset group or
asset group portfolio, except goodwill, if the recoverable

amount is lower than the book value.

Refer to Note V.12 for the goodwill impairment test method,

parameter and assumption.

Once recognized, the impairment losses of abovementioned

assets are not reversed during the later accounting period.
19. Long-term Unamortized Expenses

The long-term unamortized expenses of the Group include the
expenses whose period is more than 1 year and which have been
paid by the Group and should be amortized in the current period
and later periods, for example, house decoration expenditures.
Such expenses are averagely amortized during the benefit
period. If the long-term unamortized expenses cannot bring
benefits to the later accounting period, the amortized value of
unamortized item is converted into the current profit or loss

entirely.
20. Staff remuneration

The Group’s staff remuneration includes short-term
remuneration, post- employment benefits, termination benefits

and other long-term benefits.
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The short-term salaries mainly include the staff wages and staff
benefits. During the accounting period when the staff provide
services, the actually incurred short-term salaries are
recognized as liabilities, which are included into the current
profit or loss or related asset cost according to the benefit

object.

The post-employment benefits mainly include the basic
endowment insurance expenses and unemployment insurance
expenses, and they are classified into the defined contribution
plan and defined benefit plan according to the risks and
obligations borne by the Company. For the defined contribution
plan, the contribution money paid to the independent subject
for gaining the services provided by the staff during the
accounting period on the balance sheet date is recognized as
liabilities, which is included into the current profit or loss or

related asset cost according to the benefit object.

Termination benefits is due to the compensation to employees
when the Group terminates the employment relationship with
employees before the expiry of the employment contracts or as
an offer to encourage employees to accept voluntary
redundancy. If the Group provides termination benefits to the
employees, the liabilities arising from termination benefits will
be recognized and included in profit or loss for the period at the
earlier of the following dates: (D when the Group cannot
unilaterally withdraw termination benefits for the employment
termination plan or the redundancy offer; and @ when the
Group recognizes the costs or expenses related to the
reorganization involving in payment of termination benefits.Of
these, compensation paid in excess of one year is discounted at

a discount rate and credited to current profit or loss.

21. Income Recognition Principle and Measurement
Method

When the performance obligation in the contract is fulfilled,
namely, the customer gains the control right over related goods

or services, the Group recognizes the income.

The Group’s revenue includes pharmaceutical sales revenue,
consulting service revenue, and third-party logistics revenue.
The specific accounting policies related to its main activities

are described as follows:
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Specific policies for pharmaceutical sales revenue: the Group
and the customer sign a sales contract to agree that the opposite
party should conduct the acceptance within three days after
receiving the goods according to the goods quality
requirements and GSP acceptance standards. If no acceptance
is conducted within the period, it is deemed that the goods are
qualified. If the provided goods are inconsistent with the order,
or they are damaged, polluted or expired, the feedback should
be given to the Group within three days after the goods arrive,
and detailed data should be provided. If the Company is
responsible after verification, the return formalities will be
handled after confirmation. Based on the abovementioned
clauses and the prudent principle, three days after the goods are
shipped, it is deemed that the control right of goods has been

transferred to the customer, and the income is recognized.

Specific policies for consulting service revenue: The Group
provides services such as brand promotion and product
marketing promotion to certain pharmaceutical manufacturers
and distributors. Fees are charged based on the specific services
provided and are independent of product procurement
contracts. The Company recognizes revenue from consulting
services when the performance period of the services
concludes, and either the customer payment is received or it is

determined that the payment is fully collectible.

Specific policies for third-party logistics revenue: The Group
provides warehousing and pharmaceutical distribution and
transportation services to customers through its third-party
logistics business. The Group recognizes revenue when the
services provided to customers are completed and there are no

objections from both parties.
22. Government Subsidy

The government subsidy is recognized when the conditions are
met and the subsidy can be received. If the government subsidy
belongs to the monetary asset, it is measured according to the
actually received amount. For the subsidy allocated according
to the fixed quota standard, or there are concrete evidences
showing that related conditions specified in the fiscal support
policy can be met and it is predicted that the fiscal support fund

can be received at the end of the year, it is measured according
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to the amount receivable; if the government subsidy is the non-
monetary asset, it is measured according to the fair value. If the
fair value cannot be obtained reliably, it is measured according
to the nominal amount (RMBI1).

Asset-related government subsidies refer to government
subsidies obtained by the Group for the construction or, in other
means, for the formation of long-term assets; revenue-related
government subsidies refer to government subsidies other than
those related to assets. If the targets of the subsidies are not
specified in government documents, the Group shall make
judgments in accordance with the above-mentioned distinction
principles, and where distinctions are difficult to be made, the
subsidies shall be classified as revenue-related government

subsidies as a whole.

The asset-related government subsidy is recognized as the
deferred income and averagely distributed and included into the
current profit or loss during the service life of related asset. If
related asset is sold, transferred, scrapped or damaged before
the service life ends, the balance of undistributed related
deferred income is converted into the current profit or loss of

asset disposal.

When the government grants related to the revenue are used to
make up the relevant expenses or losses incurred in subsequent
periods, they shall be recognized as deferred revenue and shall
be included in the profit or loss for the period during the period
in which relevant expenses are recognized. When the
government grants are used to make up the relevant expenses
or losses incurred, they shall be directly included in the profit

or loss for the period.

come according to the economic business essence. The
government subsidy unrelated to the daily activity of the Group

is included into the non-business income.

The Group accounts for interest subsidies of policy-based
preferential loans it obtains on the following principles and

under two circumstances:

(1) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the
lending bank and the lending bank loans to the Group at the
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policy- based preferential interest rate, the Group records the
amount of loan it actually receives as the entry value of the loan,
and calculates the related borrowing costs based on the
principal amount of the loan and the policy-based preferential
interest rate (or records the fair value of the loan as the entry
value of the loan and calculates the borrowing costs based on
the effective interest rate method; and recognises the difference
between the actual amount received and the fair value of the
loan in deferred income. The deferred income is amortised over
the duration of the loan using the effective interest rate method

and is used to offset the related borrowing costs.)

(2) Where the finance allocates the interest subsidy to the
Group directly, the Group offsets the related borrowing costs
with the subsidy.

23. Deferred Income Tax Assets and Deferred Income Tax
Liabilities

The deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities of the Group are calculated and recognized according
to the (temporary difference) due to the difference between
taxation basis of assets and liabilities and book value, and the
difference between taxation basis of the item which is not
recognized as asset and liability but whose taxation basis may

be determined according to the tax law and book value.

The Group recognizes the deferred income tax liabilities for all
taxable temporary differences, except the following
circumstances: (1) initial recognition of goodwill which gives
rise to the temporary difference or initial recognition of assets
or liabilities due to the transaction of non-business combination
which neither affects the accounting profits nor affects the
taxable income (or deductible loss); (2) taxable temporary
difference related to the investment of subsidiary, cooperative
enterprise and joint venture, the Group can control the reversal
time of temporary difference, and it is likely that such
temporary difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

Subject to the future taxable income which is likely to be gained
for offsetting the deductible temporary difference, deductible
loss and tax credit, the Group recognizes the deferred income

tax assets regarding the deductible temporary difference,

-081-



2/ BIEWmERGERDE
#®-cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.
N AS KK D T R IR 4E BT 15 AR & E -
(1) B 2= RPE R R 2 Es
TR A s 28 O A A5 BT A R (B AT K 0
AR AE R E SRR 5 R EEAERE

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ’]%ﬂﬁnﬁﬁ A (2) A
CINE: & 9 Sey A%%%W%%T
AR R 22 5, ASRE [RIRR I A2 LT 1%

P IR 22 BRAE AT TR B A R AR W]
REERIE] . R AR FT RESE 75 F AR AR AT 4K
TR R 22 BN AN AR T A 35

ARSEEAEAR AT REA L 5110 AN R P 1945
MR AT SRR R R EE N, BT
1o AR (8 TR AR i R IR S P A5
HE . B IE KB AT Al F TR
HEHUAS B BT A AR N R ) AN B, 45
BRI BN, TROE ERERR KR SE BT
B ERIEEE, P EAEE L.

B EARRH, EIEFTRARE AR
SEFTAS R R, TR TR e 5 2 B
H A2 SRR s B at .

24HE
(1) MR

FEERMAGH, AL RSB
HERFHOSHE. WRE R #E
AR IR P ) TH B S TH )
B 2E A8 T I RE R ARG, HIRZ A
RAESEREHE,

AR FEIR LA 2 TH BB &, Ak
@%Aﬂ%)Aﬁ B ) 4% TH BB AR
AT O A R, A (R T [E R A A
AR E A0, AR A E AR
B RIET SR EE . S ER
ooy i A Y E R AT st R R, JF
E%“#Wﬁ% B FH A g st R

AT AR

-082-

deductible loss and tax credit, except the following
circumstances: (1) the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities in the transaction of
non-business combination which neither affects the accounting
profits nor affects the taxable income (or deductible loss); (2)
the deductible temporary difference related to the investment of
subsidiary, cooperative enterprise and joint venture fails to
simultaneously meet the following conditions: the temporary
difference is likely to be reversed in the foreseeable future, and
it is likely to gain the taxable income for offsetting the

deductible temporary difference in the future.

Within the limit of sufficient taxable income for offsetting the
deductible loss probably, the Group recognizes the deferred
income tax assets regarding all unutilized deductible losses.
The Management estimates the time and amount of taxable
income obtained in the future through tremendous judgments,
and decides the amount of to-be-recognized deferred income
tax assets based on the taxation planning strategy, so the

uncertainty exists.

On the balance sheet date, the deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities are measured according to the
applicable tax rate during the period of anticipated recovery of

such assets or settlement of such liabilities.
24. Lease
(1) Identification of Lease

On the contract start date, the Group assesses whether the
contract is lease or includes lease. If a contract party assigns the
right to control the usage of one or multiple identified assets
during a certain period for exchange of consideration, such

contract is lease or includes lease.

If multiple separate leases are included simultaneously in the
contract, the Group splits the contract and accounts the separate
leases separately. If lease and non-lease parts are included in
the contract simultaneously, the Group carries out the
accounting treatment after splitting the lease and non-lease
parts. The lease parts are accounted according to the lease
criteria, and the non-lease parts are accounted according to

other applicable accounting standards for business enterprises.
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(2) The Group as the Lessee
1) Recognition of Lease

Except the short-term lease and low-value asset lease, on the
start date of lease term, the Group recognizes the right-of-use

asset and lease liability for the lease.

The right-of-use asset refers to the right for the Group as the
Lessee to use the lease asset during the lease term, which is
initially measured based on the cost. Such cost includes: (D
Initial measurement amount of lease liability; @ Lease
payment made on or before the start date of lease term minus
the enjoyed lease incentive related amount; 3 Initial direct
expenses incurred; @ predicted to-be-incurred costs (except
the costs incurred for inventory production) for dismantling and
removing the lease asset, restoring the lease asset location or
restoring the lease asset to the state specified in the lease clause.
If the Group re-measures the lease liabilities according to
related rules of lease criteria, the book value of right-of-use

asset is adjusted accordingly.

According to the anticipated consumption method of economic
interests related to the right-of-use asset, the Group accrues the
depreciation of right-of-use asset by the straight-line method. If
the acquisition of use right of lease asset upon the expiration of
lease term can be reasonably determined, the depreciation is
accrued during the remaining service life of lease asset; if the
acquisition of use right of lease asset upon the expiration of
lease term cannot be reasonably determined, the depreciation is
accrued during the period of lease term and remaining service
life of lease asset, whichever is shorter. The accrued
depreciation amount is included into the cost of related asset or
current profit or loss according to the purpose of right-of-use

asset.

According to the present value of lease payment which has not
been made on the start date of lease term, the Group initially
measures the lease liability. The lease payment includes (D
Fixed payment and substantial fixed payment minus lease
incentive related amount; ) Variable lease payment subject
to the index or ratio; 3) Exercise price of call option when the
Group reasonably determines the exercise of call option; @

Money paid for exercise of termination of lease option when
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the Group’s exercise of termination of lease option is reflected
during the lease term; & Predicted money payable according

to the guaranteed residual value provided by the Group.

In the calculation of present value of lease payment, if the
Group fails to determine the lease interest rate, the interest rate
of incremental loan is regarded as the discount rate. According
to the fixed periodical interest rate, the Group calculates the
interest expenses of lease liabilities regarding different periods
during the lease term, and includes them into the current profit

or loss, except the capitalized expenses.

After the start date of lease term, when the Group recognizes
the interest of lease liability, the book amount of lease liability
is increased; when the lease payment is made, the book amount
of lease liability is decreased. In case of any change to the
substantial fixed payment, any change to the predicted amount
payable of guaranteed residual value, any change to the index
or ratio for determining the lease payment, or any change to the
assessment result or actual exercise of call option, renewal
option or termination option, the Group re-measures the lease
liability according to the present value of lease payment after

change.
2) Short-term Lease and Low-value Asset Lease

For the short-term lease whose lease term is less than twelve
months and low-value asset lease when the single lease asset is
the new asset, the Group chooses not to recognize the right-of-
use asset and lease liability. The Group includes the lease
payment of short-term lease and low-value asset lease into
related asset cost or current profit or loss according to the
straight-line method regarding different periods during the

lease term.
(3) The Group as the Lessor

When the Group acts as the Lessor, if a lease substantially
transfers almost all risks and rewards related to the ownership
of lease asset, the Group classifies such lease as the financing

lease, and the rest is the operating lease.

1) Financing Lease
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On the start date of lease term, the Group recognizes the
financing lease money receivable regarding the financing lease,
and de-recognizes the financing lease asset. In the initial
measurement of financing lease money receivable of the
Group, the net amount of lease investment is regarded as the

entry value of financing lease money receivable.

The net amount of lease investment is the sum of unguaranteed
residual value and present value of unreceived lease receipts on
the start date of lease term after the discount according to the
interest rate of lease. The Group calculates and recognizes the
interest income regarding different periods during the lease
term according to the fixed periodical interest rate. The variable
lease payment which is gained by the Group and brought into
the measurement of net amount of lease investment is included

into the current profit or loss when it is actually incurred.
2) Operating Lease

Regarding different periods during the lease term, the Group
recognizes the lease receipts of operating lease as the rental

income by the straight-line method.

The initial direct expenses of the Group related to the operating
lease are capitalized to the cost of lease object asset and they
are included into the current profit or loss by stages according
to the recognition basis same as the rental income during the
lease term. The variable lease payment which is not included
into the lease receipts and which is gained by the Group and
related to the operating lease is included into the current profit

or loss when it is actually incurred.

In case of any change to the operating lease, from the effective
date of change, the Group regards it as a new lease for
accounting treatment. The lease receipts collected in advance
or receivable in connection with the lease before the change are

regarded as the new lease receipts.
25. Discontinued operation

Discontinued operation refers to a component of the Group
which meets one of the following requirements and can be
distinguish separately and has been already disposed of or
classified as held-for-sale: (1) the component represents an

independent major line of business or a major independent

-085-



2/ BIEWmERGERDE
#®-cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.
(2) FZAH S 70 2 s — TE R S 1 &
SRRl B ) A [ AT
2 B — TEAE B B AT BB — 3 4
(3) FHAH R 47 7 B R i T B A5 10
FnHEl.

26 EEGRTBURNIERHERTERE

ARG WA E eSO A
Attt AR SR,

geographical area of operations; (2) the component is part of a
plan for the contemplated disposal of an independent major line
of business or a major independent geographical area of
operations; (3) the component is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively for the purpose of resale.

26. Changes of significant accounting policies and accounting

estimates

There is no change in the significant accounting policies and

accounting estimates of the Group for the Reporting Period.

V., I8 IV. TAXATION
1LEERMERRER 1.Main types of tax and tax rates
M AT IKIR M
Type of tax Tax basis Tax rate
SHET PN e R JEAARS T 454 0
. . : 25%
China Enterprise Income Tax Taxable income
HEEAR JERTHN o/ 20/ c0/ 00 0
VAT Taxable income 0%. 3% 6%, 9%, 13%
G2 7o ] k
T AR B AR 0
Urban maintenance and 7%
. Amount of actual payable turnover tax
construction tax
H B M T BRI A R 0
. 3%
Education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
W7 HE B n S ELi v 0
. 2%
Local education surcharge Amount of actual payable turnover tax
M IR b THIAR SE RN
Tax on land use Land area Fixed rate
S [ 5 AN
Property taxes o ot origmal vaiue of the properties 1.2% or 12%

or rental income
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V. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS IN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For data in the financial data as disclosed below, "Current

Period" means 1 January 2025 to 30 June 2025 (unaudited) and

"Prior Period" means 1 January 2024 to 30 June 2024
(unaudited); "End of the Period" means 30 June 2025

(unaudited),

“Beginning of the period” means 1 January 2025

(unaudited) and "End of Prior Year" means 31 December 2024

(audited), and the monetary unit shall be RMB, unless specified

[ EEER] $82024 F 12 H31 H (8 otherwise.
w%) , BEHEAZ/ARE T,
LERES 1. Monetary funds
HH KRR EEERGER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
B4
Cash on hand 203,479.08 231,121.38
LBH oA
AT 212,040,231.72 171,562,793.94
Cash in bank
A ik s A
JUA B 2 297,726,084.02 391,356,488.13
Other monetary funds
a3
509,969,794.82 563,150,403.45
Total
Horpr: FFIUESE MR IAARAR
Incl: the total amount of money 402,657.58 412,617.06
deposited abroad
i 2 BIBRHI N B & & Use of restricted monetary funds
IHH FARERAR EEERGRHE
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
4= Moy EE STEA H: &f >
;%”ﬁﬁmm%ﬁi RCEN T 297,726,084.02 391,356,488.13
a3
297,726,084.02 391,356,488.13
Total
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2 B E 2. Bills receivables
(D) BB PR (1) Bills receivable are listed by category
JHH FHAARRER HARSERERER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
yarge AP B2
iSRS 36,100,000.00 5,590,000.00
Commercial drafts
Nat
36,100,000.00 .
Subtotal B 5 5,590,000.00
TR BEHRVEM
126,350.00 1
Less: Provision for bad debt ’ 9,565.00
aat 35,973,650.00 5,570,435.00
Total T T
(2) FIEIREHR TR AR (2) Classification by the methods for making provisions for bad
debt
HAR B34
Closing balance
K7 R4 HHRYER
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt BT A
458 el (%) &% BREA (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)
5 HLIHET PRI IR YE A
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
A G T PRI IR Y A
Bad debt provision 36,100,000.00 100.00 | 126,350.00 0.35 35,973,650.00
made on a collective
basis
Hoh, BEESAH A
Ao E‘Eﬁw Ala . 36,100,000.00 100.00 126,350.00 0.35 35,973,650.00
Incl: Aging portfolio
A
kil 36,100,000.00 100.00 126,350.00 — 35,973,650.00
Total
(&) (continued)

-088-



20725 R

INTERIM REPORT

BERER AR
Closing balance of last year
- HRTEI AR %R ET
Classification Book balance Provision for bad debt B A
L8 Hfl (%) S AHRES (%) Book value
Amount Percentage (%) Amount Provision ratio (%)
i L IE AT SRR VR A
Bad debt provision
made on individual
basis
TG ET PRI IR A
Bad debt provision 5,590,000.00 100.00 | 19,565.00 0.35 5,570,435.00
made on a collective
basis
Hop BRESHLA
Hrf: "Eég"ﬁ oo 5,590,000.00 100.00 19,565.00 0.35 5,570,435.00
Incl: Aging portfolio
a3
Total 5,590,000.00 100.00 19,565.00 — 5,570,435.00

D AR IR B EIR

1) Bad debt provision for bills receivables made on a collective

basis
HIAR R
=yl Closing balance
Classification BETEA%E ARV FHEEH (%)

Book balance

Provision for bad debt

Provision ratio (%)

IRESA S

. . 36,100,000.00 126,350.00 0.35
Ageing portfolio
a3t -
36,100,000.00 126,350.00
Total

ab 1o BRIIRFFAT R R SO 22
SRR CRE B BAE & A AR H RS
A BT SR ST R SR 1 e AR A TRES AL
&, 2R IERCRER R FEE R KT
SR LGRS BE IR K .

af 20 AREEE RIIR B R AR

EIITE 1 FEZ N

Note 1: For the aging portfolio comprising the amounts of the
commercial drafts held as at the end of the period and the
commercial drafts discounted as at the end of the period but not

mature at the balance sheet date, the impairment losses of credit

are provided for with reference to the expected credit loss rates

for trade receivables.

Note 2: The age of the aforementioned bills receivables of the

Group as at the end of the period was within 1 year.
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(3) AMIETHE dilal . 8 a] )

SRR BUIR M

bills receivables in the period

(3) Provisions for bad debt accrued, recovered and reversed for

W SRR
bR AEE Current movement
pill . - - WIREREH
Category C105111; gs tb;;z;lce of FHE RWEE‘W@E i@?ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ HAh Closing balance
Accrued ecovered or Written back Other
reversed or written off
[EE SIS
Commercial 19,565.00 | 106,785.00 126,350.00
drafts
A
,'lf' il 19,565.00 | 106,785.00 126,350.00
otal
(4) JA 202546 30 H S E A E (4) Pledged bills receivables as at 30 June 2025
e SR 5%

HH MREEHEH

Item Pledged amount as at the end of the period
T SE 7K S RE 2R 3,600,000.00
Commercial drafts AR
PN
bl 3,600,000.00
Total

(5) LM 202546 H 30 HEC
K EAEH A EABERH MA
FI ) S EE A

(6) ALEMEA 20254 6 H 30 H g

PR AZ B 1 JE USSR

-090-

sheet date.

(5) The Group had no bills receivables that had been endorsed or

discounted as at 30 June 2025 and were not mature at the balance

(6) As at 30 June 2025, the Group did not have any bills which

were reclassified to trade receivables due to inability of the

issuers to settle the bills.
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3. BV ERER 3.Trade receivables
THH A% HIRERER FEERGRER
Name of Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
JEWCHR K

Trade receivables

1,205,335,300.45 1,184,455,239.82

T RARYEA

Less: Provision for bad debt 21,518,255.45 21,217,687.43
B
Net amount 1,183,817,045.00 1,163,237,552.39

(1) JERHRRIEIRES 5117

FERLANHN R P R, A SR 1 R
B RS BOR A FHAL A 2 P 5
R E AR AL . AR IR %
FEAN R A5 RO 5 A —
FNME A o SR AR EE, DIEHIE
RS A B A 2 ISR R B 7 SRk
NHIRERR IR B, B ah SRS

(1) Accounts receivable by aging

Before accepting new customers, the Group assessed the credit
worthiness of potential clients and set corresponding credit limits
according to the internal credit assessment policies. The Group
applies different credit policies to different customers. Credit
period is generally six months. As for commodity sales, the trade
receivables and operating revenue are recognized and the age of

the same is calculated after the control right has been transferred

to the buyers.

& HIRERER EEESERERER
Age Closing balance Closing balance of last year
Vvl )
L LI 1,166,135,680.72 1,156,354,646.21
Within 1 year
1-2 4 24,808,526.12 13,018,971.27
1 to 2 years
-
23°F 221,671.72 629,729.86
2 to 3 years
3 ELLE 14,160,421.89 14,451,892.48
More than 3 years
P
Aat 1,205,335,300.45 1,184,455,239.82
Total
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(2) MEWSCHR K H R AR T i 7 3

(2) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad

H7R debt
BIARREHE
Closing balance
i BRI R E5 SEHRYEA
Classification Book balanc[:; : Provision for:ba: :Eebt : T
20 B (%D &% S : WJ ( /0.) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
12 HIRFH R IR e
Bad debt provision made 14,903,180.28 1.00 14,902,390.83 99.99 789.45
on individual basis
A R R IR AR
Bad debt provision made 1,190,432,120.17 99.00 6,615,864.62 0.56 1,183,816,255.55
on a collective basis
Horh, HEES4H 2
I/I;ctf;\g,\ii?];fnnfolio 1,190,432,120.17 99.00 6,615,864.62 0.56 1,183,816,255.55
ARt
Total 1,205,335,300.45 100.00 21,518,255.45 — | 1,183,817,045.00
(#) (Continued)
EEERBHE
Closing balance of last year
5] AR BREE BEERYER
Classification Book balance . Provision for*ba: debt . HE T
o KA (%) poe RHEHBE (%) Book value
Amount Percentage Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
T IR IR R
Bad debt provision made 15,956,834.44 1.35 15,955,734.44 99.99 1,100.00
on individual basis
A G R PRI IR YE A
Bad debt provision made 1,168,498,405.38 98.65 5,261,952.99 0.45 1,163,236,452.39
on a collective basis
. HEEA4H A
fl\::f ;Agﬁflzz;‘frtmfolio 1,168,498,405.38 98.65 5,261,952.99 0.45 1,163,236,452.39
aat
Total 1,184,455,239.82 100.00 21,217,687.43 — 1,163,237,552.39
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1) Bad debt provision for trade receivables made on a collective

BRERER
BB Closing balance
Age W ERK BRARYEM ATIRELHI (%)
Trade receivables Provision for bad debt Provision ratio (%)
! E U\ N 1,165,974,699.12 4,263,060.71 0.37
Within 1 year
1-2 4 24,457,421.05 2,352,803.91 9.62
1 to 2 years
2-3 4F
2 to 3 years
3EEE
Over 3 years
£t
1,190,432,120.17 6,615,864.62 —

Total

(3) AWIGETHE. #al (EiilED )

(3) Provisions for bad debts accrued and reversed (or recovered)

SEIRYEMH S DL in the period
TG
Current movement
H QRIS PSR KRR
Closing balance of last . dEE %8 Closing
Ttem ear At Written | FAtl balance
y Recovered or
Accrued back or | Others
reversed X
written
off
BE T =45
ih ."'?HFE - 15,955,734.44 1,053,343.61 14,902,390.83
Individual provision
A S0 A
EE%N. A8 . 5,261,952.99 1,353,911.63 6,615,864.62
Ageing portfolio
a3t
Total 21,217,687.43 1,353,911.63 1,053,343.61 21,518,255.45

(4) I I AR A% B

(4) No accounts receivable write-off in this period.
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4. EWERTERIE 4. Accounts receivable financing
HE IR ERER R ERER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
S AN o
SRAT AR HE S . 23,573,149.39 57,615,292.39
Bank acceptance bills
aaf 23,573,149.39 57,615,292.39
Total e o
5.FRATEKIR 5. Prepayments
(1) FRAFRIAIRES (1) Aging of prepayments
AR ERER EEEERGREH
IBH Closing balance Closing balance of last year
Item BH Eel (%) &HR Bl (%)
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
! iU\W 488,188,685.06 89.90 526,522,608.06 99.85
Within 1 year
1-2 4 48,190,241.38 8.87 275,585.49 0.05
1 to 2 years
234 6,114,671.39 1.13 434,049.88 0.08
2 to 3 years
3 ELE 534,979.06 0.10 112,257.58 0.02
More than 3 years
a3t
Total 543,028,576.89 100.00 527,344,501.01 100.00
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6. HoAth Wk 6. Other receivables
EH BIRGREH AR ERER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
JEWSR S
Interests receivable
JREW A
Dividend receivable
H £
,Jﬂj},@d&@ 14,104,790.99 12,297,041.51
Other receivables
aHf
14,104,790.99 12,297,041.51
Total
6.1 HAh R R 6.1 Other receivables

(1) FHoAt NSO AR TAVE B 70

(1) Classification of other receivables by nature

KIEWE HIRERER AEFERERER
Nature of amounts Closing balance Closing balance of last year
YN
{%hj—? 11,207,515.34 10,704,937.80
Deposit
£ A
AR 2,062,031.58 1,245,524 .91
Current accounts
PN
i P <5z 1,667,033.80 1,178,368.53
Reserve
HoAth
N 2 2
Others 898.20 898.20
a3
14,937,478.92 13,129,729.44
Total
Tk SEARYEM
Less: Provision for bad debt 832,687.93 832,687.93
i 14,104,790.99 12,297,041.51
Net amount
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(2) FoAh RSO 4 B TH (S 4R R (2) Accrual of provision for bad debt according to the general

A T 2L g E v ) , _
AT R R model of expected credit loss regarding other receivables

FEFER FEPER B=REB
First stage Second stage Third stage
o ok 2 WATH | BEFENTEMERER | EETETEREM a3
Provision for bad debt EUEEEES CRBAEAS IR RREBEFRIRE) Total
12-month Lifetime expected Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not credit- credit loss (credit-
loss impaired) impaired)

20251 H 1 HBHE

Balance of 1 January 2025 832,687.93 832,687.93

2025 4 1 H 1 HHAb G
U I R AR 7E A

Book balance of other
receivables on 1 January 2025
in the period

s U =

--Transfer to the second stage

LN o
-- Transfer to the third stage

- m] 5 RS B

-- Reversed to the second stage

-5 R B

-- Reversed to the first stage

AIATHE
Accrued for the period

A S ]

Reversed in the period

A 1 5
Written off in the period

A% 5
Cancelled in the period

Sfb T
Other changes

2025 4F 6 A 30 H&%E

Balance on 30 June 2025 832,687.93 832,687.93

(3) AL [ A A A HL Ath o SR A% 8 (3) The Group has no other receivables write-off for the period.
R

(4) AREBAEFE SEPEHE (4) The Group has no money presented in other receivables due
T 41 e H A B K PR 5K TH to the centralized capital management this year.
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158 7.Inventories
(D B (1) Classification of inventories
HIRARE EERGHE
Closing balance Closing balance of last year
BH FRGREEME F R
Item HRTH 8R4 Provision for JRTEEE HRTH 88K Provision for HRTHEE
Book balance inventory Book value Book balance inventory Book value
impairment impairment
JERAT T it
Goods in 725,943,787.75 4,072,352.01 721,871,435.74 595,818,912.38 3,887,158.36 591,931,754.02
stock
9 R
Goods sold 63,979,337.02 63,979,337.02
a5
To:al 725,943,787.75 4,072,352.01 721,871,435.74 659,798,249.40 3,887,158.36 655,911,091.04

(2) AREEFEHIREREEA0S fi

(2) The Group’s period-end balance of stocks does not include

BB ARG DL capitalization of borrowing costs.

8 HARENE & 8. Other current assets
THH WIARERER EEEEREGRER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year

AR AT THAR #H
Input tax to be credited

46,320,808.67

42,707,825.09

FASZHGEAR
1 .
Prepaid Value Added Tax ,836,608.55
P/t
REalE 510,511.57 322,084.28
Deferred expenses
a3t
46,831,320.24 44,866,517.92
Total
9.FEBE 9. Fixed assets
IHH FRERAE FEERGRER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
2 YR

ety 272,537,778.29 278,271,752.17
Fixed assets
B TR
Liquidation of fixed assets
a3t

272,537,778.29 278,271,752.17
Total
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9.1 [EHE &

(1) [ 5E 9 2 AR

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

9.1 Fixed assets

(1) Breakdown of fixed assets

FREEY S di) Lt G N P
RH Buildings and Machinery and Transportation A '&ﬁ b
Item . s Office equipment Total
structures equipment facilities
— i RE
L. Original book value
R AE
I.Lﬂi'ﬂiﬂ{ﬁmﬁ,\ 298,210,708.73 69,745,756.96 17,214,371.53 11,117,567.20 396,288,404.42
1.Closing balance of last year
s > 4]
2'7'('5#' sz 7 . 714,285.74 908,681.26 1,109,946.26 602,994.47 3,335,907.73
2.Addition for the period
i
(D) HEE 714,285.74 908,681.26 1,109,946.26 602,994.47 3,335,907.73
(1) Purchase
CHAVR /> 2 A

3'4&%{)&.& S . 392,579.41 58,090.70 450,670.11
3.Reduction for the period

(D Fﬁﬁgﬁ#&g& . 392,579.41 58,090.70 450,670.11

(1) Disposal or retirement

(2) EENBEE B3 e

(2) Transfer to investment real estate

1 G EHE
4_,\)4?!{'@?%,\ 298,924,994.47 70,654,438.22 17,931,738.38 11,662,470.97 399,173,642.04
4.Closing balance
—. HEHE

II. Accumulated depreciation

1 AR AR

. 59,658,518.71 37,647,261.76 10,776,929.79 9,933,941.99 118,016,652.25
1.Closing balance of last year
R 4%
2_2!.(,‘}1.#5 sz B . 4,763,462.61 3,006,759.85 960,311.19 321,597.47 9,052,131.12
2.Addition for the period
2L
(D itz 4,763,462.61 3,006,759.85 960,311.19 321,597.47 9,052,131.12
(1) Accrue
3 A 2
3.Reduction for the period 374,828.92 58,090.70 432,919.62
(1) JLE B 374,828.92 58,090.70 432,919.62

(1) Disposal or retirement

(2) WNBLAVESHEE

(2) Transfer to investment real estate

4 IR ERER
4.Closing balance

64,421,981.32

40,654,021.61

11,362,412.06

10,197,448.76

126,635,863.75

= IR YER

III. Impairment provision

1 LR

1.Closing balance of last year

2 A I8 < 85
2.Addition for the period

3 AR R
3.Reduction for the period

4 IR ERAR

4.Closing balance

M. FRTHEME
IV. Book value

13K AR B

1.Closing balance of book value 234,503,013.15 30,000,416.61 6,569,326.32 1,465,022.21 272,537,778.29
2 _REESERIRT L

2.Closing balance of last year of book 238,552,190.02 32,098,495.20 6,437,441.74 1,183,625.21 278,271,752.17

value
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Note: For the fixed assets mortgage, see Note V. 15.

(2) The Group has no fixed assets that are temporarily idle.

(3) The Group has no fixed assets leased out through operating

leases.

(4) The Group does not have fixed assets without property right

certificate.

10. Right-of-use assets

HH

Item

a)=3 2]

Buildings and structures

it
Total

— MR R

1. Original book value

1 AR AR

1.Closing balance of last year

61,523,314.74

61,523,314.74

24 JARE 4R
2. Addition for the period

331,466.29

331,466.29

(D A
(1) New lease

331,466.29

331,466.29

3 AR
3. Reduction for the period

219.56

219.56

(D JEHE
(1) Disposal

219.56

219.56

(2) FIEs#TE
(2) Leasing change

4 IR ERER
4.Closing balance

61,854,561.47

61,854,561.47

—. REtiE

II. Accumulated depreciation

1. F AR EREH

1.Closing balance of last year

22,193,287.72

22,193,287.72

2 ARG N4
2. Addition for the period

5,218,904.03

5,218,904.03

(1) FHe
(1) Addition for the period

5,218,904.03

5,218,904.03

3 AR
3.Reduction for the period

692,877.46

692,877.46

(D RE
(1) Disposal

692,877.46

692,877.46

4 IR

4.Closing balance

26,719,314.29

26,719,314.29

=, HRIEE
IIT . Book value

LARERHEAE

1.Closing balance of book value

35,135,247.18

35,135,247.18

2 AR AR E A

2.Closing balance of last year of book value

39,330,027.02

39,330,027.02

-099-



D/ BEREBRGERLE

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

1L.EREE

(1) T8 WA

11. Intangible assets

(1) Details of intangible assets

HH

Item

A
Land use rights

AT EHER

Computer
software

&R
Customer
resources

A
]

Total

— MR AR

I. Original book value

L R AR AR
1.Closing balance of last
year

83,404,212.62

18,914,678.89

2,697,830.16

105,016,721.67

2 A H G N 4 B8
2. Addition for the period

72,450.00

72,450.00

(D HHE
(1) Purchase

3 AR AR
3. Reduction for the period

4 SR R

4.Closing balance

83,404,212.62

18,987,128.89

2,697,830.16

105,089,171.67

=, REHESH
II. Accumulated
amortization

1. E R R
1.Closing balance of last
year

15,965,842.77

15,445,199.71

1,112,977.17

32,524,019.65

2 AN SR
2. Addition for the period

1,052,611.57

928,254.94

134,891.51

2,115,758.02

(1) FHE
(1) Addition for the period

1,052,611.57

928,254.94

134,891.51

2,115,758.02

3 AR SR
3.Reduction for the period

4R ERER
4.Closing balance

17,018,454.34

16,373,454.65

1,247,868.68

34,639,777.67

= R A

II1. Impairment provision

1 FARE R R
1.Closing balance of last
year

2 ARG N < A
2. Addition for the period

3 AR B
3. Reduction for the period

4 IR ERFR
4.Closing balance

Y. HRTHREE
IV. Book value

1R BT (R
1.Closing balance of book
value

66,385,758.28

2,613,674.24

1,449,961.48

70,449,394.00

2 EEEERIRTIRE

2.Closing balance of last
year of book value

67,438,369.85

3,469,479.18

1,584,852.99

72,492,702.02
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Note 1: As at 30 June 2025, no intangible asset arose through the

internal research and development of the Group.

Note 2: For the pledge of intangible assets, please refer to Note

V. 15.

12. Goodwill

(1) Original value of goodwill

Y />
A AR
Addition for the period Reduction for the
. FEFERGH period HAARGRIR
e T R I = o
Name of the investee osmg balance Eise SR osing
of last year As a result of Fofty BE Foft balance
business Others Disposal Others
combination
Bt AL A
Zhuhai Charmacy 4,567,297.19 4,567,297.19
Company
JEIH RIS 7]
Guangzhou Charmacy 26,328.12 26,328.12
Company
BN AISE A A
Huizhou Charmacy 2,896,416.16 2,896,416.16

Company

&5t
Total

7,490,041.47

7,490,041.47

(2) B

(2) Provision for impairment of goodwill

A NN
WG EAT 278 LEEREGH Addition for the period Addmm} for the HAFR84%E
Name of the investee Closing balance of perind Closing balance
last year GES Aty RE Fopb
Accrued Others Disposal Others
b7 FHIE SN
Zhuhai Charmacy 1,465,937.31 1,465,937.31
Company
JEEJH AR 2 7]
Guangzhou Charmacy 26,328.12 26,328.12
Company
B AL A ]
Huizhou Charmacy
Company
CEl
1,492,265.43 1,492,265.43

Total

Rl AEIA 2017 £ 2 H. 2017 £ 6
H. 2020 4 7 H 4 Al ER A A

Note: The Company acquired Zhuhai Charmacy Company,

Guangzhou Charmacy Company and Huizhou Charmacy
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H. BEINAISE AT . HMAISEAFK
JHE, MR T N IR H 456.73 & .
ANR# 2,63 870, AR ¥ 289.64
IR, P I IR A B R R
WIUEWE RIS R — 3. AR Y
P AT T E RIS, &GHIES, A
ANEAEPRAE S I -

Company in February 2017, June 2017 and July 2020

respectively, resulting in a goodwill of RMB4.5673 million,

RMBO0.0263 million and RMB2.8964 million. The asset group a

goodwill belongs to is the same with that at initial recognition of

the goodwill. The Group carried out an impairment test of

goodwill at the end of the period, finding no impairment in the

period.

BREGEBER 13. Long-term expenses to be amortized
ARG A5 AR 2 A I >
T G AR | SR ) R h : KSR
Item osing balance ddition for mortization Other reduction Closing balance
of last year the period for the period for the period
£
%dl,ﬁfﬁﬁ 22,913,989.34 2,226,472.58 20,687,516.76
Renovation costs
aat 22,913,989.34 2,226,472.58 20,687,516.76
Total ’ ’ . ’ y . , ) .

4BEFBREEMBRENERA

®

(1) ARACHRSH AR IE TSI A

14. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax

liabilities

(1) Deferred income tax assets not offset

HARRH VIR
Closing balance Opening balance
HE A ] \ . ,
ttem TRMEREER | mmmensE | TRnEEEER | BOReRRE
temporar Deferred income tax | Deductible temporary | Deferred income tax
eop y assets differences assets
differences
& 7 A Y
Provision for asset 28,456,902.89 7,114,225.72 25,957,098.72 6,489,274.69
Impairment
AE: (==
FLETA T 39,774,337.27 9,943,584.32 43,951,332.37 10,987,833.10
Lease debt
NN
'l[:'of:l 68,231,240.16 17,057,810.04 69,908,431.09 17,477,107.79
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BIARGER PvIaRER
E Closing balance Opening balance
Item AN 2 R IESE T & 1] BN B 22 5 IRFEFT MR
Taxable temporary Deferred income Taxable temporary Deferred income
differences tax liabilities differences tax liabilities
R E T A P B R
Unrealized internal sales 727,043.23 181,760.81 1,511,579.90 377,894.98
gains and losses
S VR

Eﬁﬁ%ﬁé 35,135,247.18 8,783,811.80 39,330,027.02 9,832,506.76
Right-of-use assets
a3t
Total 35,862,290.41 8,965,572.61 40,841,606.92 10,210,401.74

(3) DAHEH AR 3 BRI s IR JE SE BT 45

(3) Deferred tax assets or liabilities presented as net amounts after

& i Bl Al offset
> 4 JH 1B IR IE T 1 3 4 Y 3 4
B EREER A *%@%g;@’gf BEFEREERR | N BBEFERE
AR ARG SUVRRASE | Raes | ERARENEE
IHH The amount of eriod-end a The amount of year- The amount of year-
Item period-end offsets of pert beginning offsets of beginning a deferred
deferred tax asset or -
deferred tax assets or liabilitv after an deferred tax assets or tax asset or liability
liabilities oifse ¢ liabilities after an offset
TR LE Fr A3 750 8 e
Deferred income tax 8,783,811.80 8,273,998.24 9,832,506.76 7,644,601.03
assets
TRAE P15 A5 £ 1
Deferred income tax 8,783,811.80 181,760.81 9,832,506.76 377,894.98

liabilities
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15.577 RESRAE FHHE 52 B FR #1022 15. Assets with restricted ownership and rights of use
AR
JHH At the end of the period
Item PR THT A2 SRR AE ZRER ZRER
Book balance Book value Restricted type | Restricted situation
AT A ST Bl
A L oy A
S Wik TR S 29 A 570N E[/\)\'f%nﬂ:{rz.
it 297,726,084.02 | 297,726,084.02 Riti s Bank acceptance
Monetary funds Margin . .
bills deposits,
borrowing deposits
JEW 2 B SRR
) . 3,600,000.00 3,600,000.00 - A
Bills receivables Pledge Bill pledge
JEWCRIH Rk
Account receivable
financing
w5
Inventories
2y
Eéﬁ% 269,997,536.20 207,110,235.28 *EE%EE *E‘Eﬁ]
Fixed assets Security Security
G
"“ﬁ/’é?’ﬁ%‘ 83,404,212.62 65,823,378.28 TEE}EE T&ﬁ
Intangible assets Security Security
Sl 654,727,832.84 574,259,697.58 — —
Total
EUE|
THH At the beginning of the period
Item SR T B FRIEE E ZRER ZREN
Book balance Book value Restricted type | Restricted situation
BRAT R ST SR ORE
A S oy A
e ik VR 2y¢ A Sz 1El/~}\17?<uﬂﬂ‘z
R 391,356,488.13 391,356,488.13 f ni.ﬁ Bank acceptance
Monetary funds Margin . .
bills deposits,
borrowing deposits
B SR H A SRR A
. 435. A A
Bills receivables 5,590,000.00 5,570,435.00 Pledge Bill pledge
BB IR
Account receivable
financing
5
Inventories
2 YR
Eﬁé 269,997,536.20 211,404,611.71 TEE;CEE TE‘HEE
Fixed assets Security Security
MG
A ﬁé 83,404,212.62 66,875,989.85 TMEE TE‘HEE
Intangible assets Security Security
Gl
750,348,236.95 675,207,524.69 — —
Total
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16.55 HAfE =R 16. Short-term borrowings
(1) FEHAME T (1) Types of borrowings
fEZRIE R HARERER EEEREGREE

Types of borrowings

Closing balance

Closing balance of last year

TR AE K

Guaranteed borrowings

503,413,611.97

462,386,002.57

FEHE R

Secured borrowings

161,275,646.11

107,753,633.27

B K
Pledged borrowings

66,434,907.25

JEE AT 2 4 e A
Borrowings from discounted bills
receivables

302,993,813.89

175,000,000.00

&t
Total

967,683,071.97

811,574,543.09

(2) ANE [ IR R A7 AE g R 15

T A RIS o

(2) The Group had no overdue short-term borrowings at the end

of the period.

17. BT R 17. Bills payables
RBEE HARERHR EERRER
Classification of bills Closing balance Closing balance of last year
SH 47 % AN B HE
SATASIRS 709,194,022.88 826,507,576.48
Bank acceptance bills
a3t
709,194,022.88 826,507,576.48
Total

af: AL ERIREAZ B ARE
BWE1FEZN.

Note: As at the end of the period, the age of the aforementioned

bills payables of the Group was within 1 year.
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18 JEfTEREK 18. Account payables

(D JEATHRZK (1) Account payables

HE FARERER FEREERERER

Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
=
e 363,780,496.38 386,978,214.29
Trade payables
2L 3
'ﬂﬁim 1,006,410.04 847,499.25
Equipment costs
&t

364,786,906.42 387,825,713.54

Total

(2) AIAFAEIRE HEE 1 FHE

FEATIRK

(3) JEAHIRAIRE P17

A 2025 % 6 H 30 H, EAHRZRIZRE

(2) There were no significant accounts payable that were more

than one year old during the period.

(3) Aging analysis of account payables

Below is an aging analysis of account payables based on

Zy I IRES 7 A transaction date as at 30 June 2025:

IRt HRERER R RERER

Age Closing balance Closing balance of last year
! E U N 340,650,702.60 374,742,200.33
Within 1 year
1-2 4 22,025,835.02 11,505,873.92
1 to 2 years
2-3 4% 557,882.63 727,758.26
2 to 3 years
3Bl 1,552,486.17 849,881.03
More than 3 years
3t

364,786,906.42 387,825,713.54

Total
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19. Contract liabilities

(1) Contract liabilities

20725 R

INTERIM REPORT

IHH FARERER AR ERER

Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
R
- 2,299,139.44 2,102,373.45
Trade payables S T
£t

2,299,139.44 2,102,373.45

Total
(2) LA MARE I 1 FLL (2) The Group had no significant contract liabilities aged over 1

FRERA R AR,

year in this period.

(3) AHE [ A B S FR T (B R 9 A (3) There was no significant

KEBENHI T -
20. FEATER T35

(1) AR H M $5

Group during the period.

change in the carrying amount of the

20. Salaries payable to employees

(1) Classification of salaries

payable to employees

FEFERGHE 25388 n >
a Closing balance of Addition for the Reduction for the Eﬁiﬁ%ﬁﬁ
Item . . Closing balance
last year period period
LS5 T
. 6,314,106.66 37,851,137.85 38,817,283.83 5,347,960.68
Short-term remuneration
Pl I AZ A - 58 SR A7 )
Post-employment benefits — 88,313.94 88,313.94
Defined contribution plan
REIR AR A
Termination benefits
4 DN B TR A AR A
Other benefits due within one
year
PN
”ll?of:l 6,402,420.60 37,851,137.85 38,905,597.77 5,347,960.68
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(2) %1% T

(2) Short-term remuneration

HH

Item

ARG

Closing balance of
last year

AHE M
Addition for the
period

A
Reduction for the
period

WA

Closing balance

T&. 884, HERSAERG
Salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies

6,250,574.83

37,429,810.81

38,394,299.03

5,286,086.61

AR A

Staff welfare payments

3,712,772.89

3,712,772.89

g R b #

Social insurance premiums

1,472,097.38

1,472,097.38

Hob: Bm iR B &L H IRb
=4

Of which: medical insurance
premium and maternity
insurance premium

1,404,618.78

1,404,618.78

T PR ¥
Industrial injury
insurance premium

67,478.60

67,478.60

5 AR
Housing provident fund

889,396.00

889,396.00

T H ORI T A
Labor union expenses and staff
education expenses

63,531.83

421,327.04

422,984.80

61,874.07

LA i

Short-term paid absences

SR 7 At
Short-term profit sharing
program

HAh
Others

&5t
Total

6,314,106.66

43,925,404.12

44,891,550.10

5,347,960.68

(3) AEPEArt &

B B H 52 2 INMBUR B RS A
EORbEETE . RIFET ], ALMELIE
WU A B B E 17 R =5 T A
B, B bikgrr B AL, AEEA
ARSI SR 2. BRSO
JP S A IR T N 14RO o
Ao AR AIYIE 3 731 1A 32 AR
KRBT B BT

-108-

(3) Defined contribution plan

The Group participated in social insurance plans operated by the
government authorities according to the regulations. Pursuant to
the plans, the Group made contributions to those plans in
compliance with the relevant provisions of local government
authorities. Apart from the aforesaid contributions, the Group
assumed no further payment obligations. The corresponding
expenses shall be credited to the profit or loss for the period or
the cost of related assets when incurred. The Group’s
pension insurance plan and

contributions payable to

unemployment insurance plan for the period are respectively as
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follows:
R Wb
HH AR Ay AR N
Closing balance of last Addition for the Reduction for the .
Item . . Closing balance
year period period
FARE LR
Basic pension 88,313.94 3,865,066.38 3,953,380.32
insurance
RS B
Unemployment 134,680.29 134,680.29
insurance premium
a4t
88,313.94 3,999,746.67 4,088,060.61

Total

Al 1 ZASERIEIAC U I ) 22 B (Y R E A
it BIEF B NIRTS 3,999,746.67
JC. (LB NR¥ 3,308,939.15)
2025 45 6 H 30 H, AREFEE#IS
AR R L RN R SE ORI A8 45
(REGE N

5L 2: NERE 2025 4E 6 H 30 HikN
8 H, AL M E MR #ITH T
BUSHERR Rl AR 78 4 B B 7%
PR B T B 2D AT A
PABEA A KK

Note 1: The Group’s contribution payable to the defined
contribution plan that the Group participated in amounted to
RMB3,999,746.67 (Last period: RMB3,308,939.15). The
pension insurance and unemployment insurance, which was fully

paid as at 30 June 2025.

Note 2: For the six months ended 30 June 2025, the Group had
no forfeited contribution (for employers on behalf of employees
who leave the plan before fully attributing the contribution) under
the defined contribution plan are available to the Group to reduce

the existing level of contributions.
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21.JEA K & 21. Tax payables
HH AR ERER EEFERGRE
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
{177
VAT 44,727,353.80 49,454,819.87
AN V=7
RPTRE 9,569,439.90 11,724,073.22
Enterprise income tax
=74
1J.\Fﬁ{%m 88,021.62 195,291.58
Individual income tax
PR 1,468,438.76 32,984.59
Property taxes
A A
Land Use Tax 96,768.78
H R 798,082.80 820,266.02
Stamp duty
b T 4 S 7 2L
PR R : 113,050.71 85,365.08
Urban maintenance and construction tax
i‘ N
AR ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ 80,891.46 61,103.78
Education surcharge
H
H AR 1,050.00 1,050.00
Other tax
&t
56,943,097.83 62,374,954.14
Total
22 A AT 22. Other payables
HH HRERER R RERER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
JEATFE
Interest payables
JEA A
Dividend payables 48,600,000.00
FoA AT Ze
HARIERT5K 659,762,734.67 681,544,720.76
Other payables
aat
708,362,734.67 681,544,720.76
Total
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22.1 Other payables
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(1) Classification of other payables by nature of payment

MRy IR &RER FEERGRER
Nature of payment Closing balance Closing balance of last year
LHE 45 2 Eh
IR 498,405,000.00 520,000,000.00
Shareholder current accounts
P AR A K
Shareholder borrowing 153,432,307.09 151,933,937.50
PN
iRt 3,393,009.00 3,943,009.00
Intermediary expenses
2
1%.“{3% 2,991,220.48 3,480,460.48
Margin
B 7% . 6,660.00 486,832.67
Transportation costs
HoAth
1,534,538.10 1,700,481.11
Others
JEAT A
. 48,600,000.00
Dividend payables
£t
708,362,734.67 681,544,720.76
Total
23 —ENBRIR AR B B 23. Non-current liabilities due within one year
THH WIARERER FEERGER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
. ] 3 AE ==
Go Wi]ﬁﬂ EI’J%EE %jﬁ_ 1,243,873.33 8,779,514.10
Lease liabilities due within one year
A P B R A K
Long-term borrowings due within 9,236,201.80 1,217,874.99
one year
3t
10,480,075.13 9,997,389.09
Total

ab: AEMBEEEAREHE -FN
B T LS R R A B A6 R HR
A, fE “—F N BRI &

7 THH k.

Note: The closing book value of the Group’s lease liabilities due

for settlement within one year from the balance sheet date is

reflected in the item “Non-current liabilities due within one year”.
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24 EAh B BB 24. Other current liabilities
HH BIRGR 5 AR ERER
Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
REHE S T AL AR
The amount of tax to be reselled 1,283,469.54 273,329.94
a3t
1,283,469.54 273,329.94
Total
25 RHAME R 25. Long-term Borrowing
&R FARGREH AEAERERER
Type of borrowings Closing balance Closing balance of last year
2% fH: oE

PRt feak 44,443 ,873.33 15,017,874.99
Guaranteed loans
/Nat
Subtotal 44,443,873.33 15,017,874.99
M — N AR B
Less: Long-term borrowings due 1,243,873.33 1,217,874.99
within one year
A5t

43,200,000.00 13,800,000.00
Total
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26 HE B 26. Lease liabilities
A WAL TS
Balance as at the end of the Balance as at the beginning of
Item . .
period the period
& A5
FLECRTAG 43,537,569.63 48,431,420.90
Lease payment
277y v
ARTERERITCN 3,642,105.28 4,480,088.53
Unrecognized financing expenses
=
39,895,464.35 43,951,332.37

Total
R B A ) PR T ZE S DA A e R
The book value of abovementioned lease liabilities should — —
be repaid during the following period:
I 9,236,201.80 8,779,514.10
Within one year
G E AR AREE—F, (HAEEWNF
More than one year after the balance sheet date, but less than 9,983,464.82 9,565,762.82
two years
G AR ORBEERE, HARR TS
More than two years after the balance sheet date, but less 19,817,807.81 24,611,383.46
than five years
% AR HR R LA
More than five years after the balance sheet date 857,989.92 994,671.99
B WEIAEIET s —ENEHNHEE AEE0R
Less: Lease liabilities due within one year presented in 9,236,201.80 8,779,514.10
the current liabilities
FFB0 RGOS T A R 203 30,659,262.55 35,171,818.27

Lease liabilities presented in the non-current liabilities

e ENBINAE AECES
2 “—ENFPKIEREAaE” , 2
FARMEET. 23

s

shown in Note V.23.

Note: The lease liabilities due within one year have been

reclassified to “non-current liabilities due within one year” as
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27 A 27.Share capital
AHBEIR (+. -
[ Increase/decrease in the period (+, -)
TEH - L . AfES BARGREH
Item Clo?ln gtbalance BiHR | W Shafeﬁraffﬂired Foft /NeT Closing balance
offastyear Issuance of | Bonus p ) Oth Subtotal
new shares | shares rom surpius ers ubltota
JBe 7y AR
S 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
{Tiirl 108,000,000.00 108,000,000.00
28. B A NTH 28.Capital reserve
BE EEFERGER A SRR N I HH A
Item Closing balance of Addition for Reduction for Closin b;lance
last year the period the period g
I A
A 1T . 278,001,901.04 278,001,901.04
Share premium
Seftb A AR
Other capital 988,928.00 988,928.00
reserve
&8t
Total 278,990,829.04 278,990,829.04
29. B AR 29.Surplus reserve
=E AR P e A e
Item Closing balance of Addition for Reduction for Closine balance
last year the period the period g
YN
Statutory surplus 31,143,182.74 31,143,182.74
reserve
a3t
Total 31,143,182.74 31,143,182.74
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30. R4 ECAE 30.Undistributed profits
IHH AR AR
Item Current period Prior period

BT _E AR AR 7 A
Undistributed profit as at the end of the previous year
before adjustment

200,556,936.21

181,154,889.21

s BT R 7 B MR &t 80 GRRIE+, SRR-)
Total undistributed profit at the beginning of the period
after adjustment (increase +, decrease -)

Hore (ARZEEaTHERY) SR BB e 18 09 4
Incl: Retrospective adjustment stipulated by the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and
related new regulations

s ARSI R 3 BC A
Undistributed profit at the beginning of the period after
adjustment

200,556,936.21

181,154,889.21

T A1 A B 2 = iR AR
Add: Net profit attributable to the owners of the parent
company for the period

21,739,023.67

53,284,091.69

e PEHGEE B AR A TR

Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve

1,482,044.69

JEEAST 3L 38 e )

Dividends payable on ordinary shares

48,600,000.00

32,400,000.00

ST BB A PR 368 J Pl A
Dividends on ordinary shares converted to share
capital

AHAHIARERER
Balance at the end of the period

173,695,959.88

200,556,936.21

HHGAEEEE 2025 4 6 H 30 The Board does not recommend the payment of an interim
H EZSE IR S (2024 4rh dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2025 (interim dividend

R 5 . of 2024: Nil).

-115-



D/ BEREBRGERLE

% cHmel CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

3LBERA. BERA

(1) 72 WA SERA L

31. Operating revenue and operating cost

(1) Basic information on business revenue and business expenses

AR AR
IEH Current period Prior period
Item LN 5% LON BRA
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
ER-$ %
S . 2,128,769,934.11 1,992,617,151.90 2,325,459,578.61 2,177,837,790.01
Principal businesses
HAoh 27
“ﬁﬂjﬂ%. 26,301,545.40 1,708,944.88 21,725,354.72 162,213.00
Other businesses
Cr
Total 2,155,071,479.51 1,994,326,096.78 2,347,184,933.33 2,178,000,003.01
32804 KM 32. Taxes and surcharges
HH IR ot GE gy
Item Current period Prior period
FIAER 1,807,793.73 2,153,495.13
Stamp duty
i R 1,557,730.01 1,495,148.16
Property tax
I T A S e A
Urban maintenance and 771,424.51 783,848.62
construction tax
t 3|
AR %Bﬁm 331,098.94 336,646.02
Education surcharge
O
ST 5 W” 220,732.64 224,430.68
Local education surcharge
A R AR 96,768.78 96,768.78
Tax on land use
ELAAR
Vehicle and vessel tax 5,883.79 7,791.52
IS (1] 2
SABERAR : 2,100.00 2,100.00
Environment protection tax
a3t
4,793,532.40 5,100,228.91
Total
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BSHEEA 33. Selling expenses
HH AR EIsEAER
Item Current period Prior period
L AN . 33,046,480.87 30,855,077.54
Staff remuneration
1 . 7,585,191.70 9,210,384.36
Transportation costs
i I\
Mn B 3,300,222.48 3,966,511.12
Office expenses
2 L
T “Eﬁ.ﬂ% . 13,654,576.10 13,419,898.77
Depreciation and amortization
A
Promotion and advertising 220,048.24 292,241.30
expenses
ALk AL/ ==
RHRAER 479,024.50 489,871.15
Business entertainment expenses
S e
ERE 21421139 210,968.34
Travelling expenses
oAt
1,943,619.53 4,433,791.88

Others
a3t

60,443,374.81 62,878,744.46
Total
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MEHEH

34. Management expenses

IHH

Item

AR B

Current period

B

Prior period

S 35 T

Staff remuneration

14,524,003.14

14,970,899.86

N~
Office expenses

2,621,930.56

3,050,866.22

I 8E L

Depreciation and amortization

3,733,478.29

3,800,543.90

B A b
Expenses on engaging
intermediary agencies

1,131,210.75

971,529.90

b SEEHIRES B

Of which: Audit service expenses

149,024.67

122,009.78

Z Nk B

Travelling expenses

166,863.76

244,645.87

E LR

Business entertainment expenses

98,811.71

81,570.23

B
Promotion and advertising
expenses

53,759.29

61,412.47

ZEREiEPS

Loss on inventory

HAthy
Others

143,279.16

150,919.12

a3t
Total

22,473,336.66

23,332,387.57
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3504 % EH 35. Finance costs
EH AR EIsEAER
Item Current period Prior period
AR

Interest expenses

31,055,269.10

33,101,117.52

Horp SRATAE R oAt

Incl: bank borrowings and others

29,621,637.63

32,244,615.80

M AR AALE & H

Interest expense on lease 885,458.13 856,501.72
liabilities
e FE
I %Luﬂﬁ)\ 1,147,053.30 2,882,746.74
Less: Interest income
e BESoAH
Add: Foreign exchange gains and 6,223.70 -2,856.37
losses
e HAts
Add: Others 3,775,286.67 3,887,182.98
a3t
33,689,726.17 34,102,697.39
Total
36. oAt 2 36. Other gains
HH AHAHAER ot G Zk
Item Current period Prior period

VIR AR EAIE H B B
Government grants for logistics
standardization program

ARIARKAE N I 13 R T4 R i

Individual income tax fee refund 66,344.15 103,309.43
&

66,344.15 103,309.43
Total
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3748 FH{EE =< 37. Impairment loss of credit
HH AHIBAAR FHABARR
Item Current period Prior period
JREU ZE 5 AR R
Loss of bad debts in bills 106,785.00 -159,757.38
receivable
JEUSIR SR IR IR 4R 5
Loss of bad debts in accounts 300,568.02 868,611.05
receivable
HoAh SRR R R
Loss of bad debts in bills 1,907,257.50
receivable in other receivables
a3t
2,314,610.52 708,853.67
Total
38.BERMERE 38. Impairment loss of assets
HH AHBEAER FHABAER
Item Current period Prior period
t =
17 EE%E%E% . . 4,072,352.01 4,219,949.10
Loss on impairment of inventories
3t
" 4,072,352.01 4,219,949.10
Total

9.8 EBEEN (JBKLL -] 88

5

39. Gains on disposal of assets (“-” for loss)

JHH

FHAEER

Item Current period Prior period

bamasagg | AT ABERER R S8

Amount charged to non-recurring
profit or loss for the period

AR Eh & 7 i BN
Gains on disposal of
noncurrent assets

7,778.91 395,944.96

7,778.91

Horp: KRBV BFFH
RN AERLE) G 2
Bl

Of which: Gains on
disposal of non-current
assets that are not
classified as held for
sale

7,778.91 395,944.96

7,778.91

i€ W B B N A
Gains on disposal of
fixed assets

7,778.91 395,944.96

7,778.91

a3t
Total

7,778.91 395,944.96

7,778.91
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40.8 5N

40. Non-operating revenue

(1) B EHMIA IR

(1) Breakdown of non-operating income

IHH

Item

AR B

Current period

LRI

Prior period

T AR PR
HIEHR
Amounts included in
non-recurring profit
and loss for the period

EURTHI) 5.379.70 81,940.00 5,379.70
Government grants
AR BN A 2 I s
Income from scrapping of
non-current assets
oA
200.15 1,471.56 200.15
Others
a3t
5,579.85 83,411.56 5,579.85
Total
41835 H 41. Non-operating expenses
= ) :
HE AR EERR iR A ﬁAﬁ%#@%ﬁﬁﬁ%Qﬁ
Current . . Amounts included in non-recurring profit
Item . Prior period .
period and loss for the period
AEVREN G PE B AR IR B R
Loss of non-current assets due 163,244.66
to destruction and scrapping
ﬂk‘ 1 H
HIMAM . 27,600.00 29,400.00 27,600.00
External donation
oA
381,761.88 304,146.83 381,761.88
Others
&3t
409,361.88 496,791.49 409,361.88
Total
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QL. FEHREHR

(1) Frgf &M

42. Income tax expenses

(1) Income tax expenses

JHH

Item

A AR

Current period

AR

Prior period

HRIE AN A S LI I P S #

Current income tax calculated according to the tax law and

related regulations

11,519,164.74

12,309,195.72

-HP R P A 2 BT AR
Corporate income tax in the Chinese
mainland

11,519,164.74

12,309,195.72

- B A AT
Profit tax in Hong Kong, PRC

TEFE Fr 585 # H

Deferred income tax expenses

-629,397.22

-128,487.57

&5t
Total

10,889,767.52

12,180,708.15

HAAE B # 2 2024 4F K 2025 4F 6
H 30 H ik S A 767 i 5 E AR
N, WO AR
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The Group had no Hong Kong income tax, since it had no taxable

income in Hong Kong for the six months ended 30 June 2024 and

2025.
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(2) Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax

IHH

Item

BB

Current period

A& B R
Combined total profit for the period

32,628,791.19

FEIE R 1 R AT S T A5 A5 ¢

Income tax expenses calculated at statutory/applicable tax rate

11,519,164.74

TN AR AR R

The impact of different tax rates applied to subsidiaries

B ARSI P A A FA s 2

Adjust the impact of income taxes for previous periods

FEERTN R 58

Impact of non-taxable income

AT A BRI 8

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses

A5 P I HH R R R SiE T A9 A0 ¥4 7 A T IR 4R PO 5

Use of deductible losses that have not been previously confirmed for deferred EIT
assets

AR R IR A T 15 50 58 78 1A T UG I TR AP 22 S B T RS FR P S

Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible losses on deferred income -629,397.22
tax assets not recognized in the current period

4
RS 10,889,767.52

Income tax expenses

43. BB E W R KAl

43. Return on net assets and earnings per share

pijI):- ] =3 L)
G HARE BEEREER (%) Earnings per share
Profit for the reporting Weighted average return on FAGR K RS
period net asset (%) Basic earnings Diluted earnings
per share per share
5 8 7 Bk 2 ) B SR PRIV A
Net profit attributable to the 379 0.2013 0.2013
shareholders of parent
company
R AR B IR 25 1% B JBR 172
B2 T R R
Net profit attributable to the 384 0.2036 0.2036
shareholders of parent
company (excluding non-
recurring profit and loss)
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44. Supplementary information to the Consolidated

Statement of Cash Flows
RH IR EIsEAER
Item Current period Prior period

LR F A AR B EESReRR:
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating
activities:

A
Net profit

21,739,023.67

26,747,235.53

e B A e

Add: Provision for impairment on assets

4,072,352.01

4,219,949.10

o B R I E AR K

Impairment loss of credit assets

2,314,610.52

708,853.67

e A ESTE . MREEIAE. EEEEMEETTE

Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion of petroleum and
natural gas properties, depreciation of productive biological
assets

9,052,131.12

9,359,327.77

P RE R T 8,

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

5,218,904.03

4,390,665.69

Y 8 S

Amortization of intangible assets

2,115,758.02

2,115,900.71

T I 1 2 P

Amortization of long-term expenses to be amortized

2,226,472.58

1,761,305.16

ViR BB A . MR E A B RIS E R R (I
LA T-1 3151

Loss on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets and other
long-term assets ("-" for gain)

-7,778.91

-395,944.96

¥ A R BERR (Mgt bl [-) $HA)D

Loss on scrapped fixed assets ("-" for gain)

163,244.66

NS ENRR (faid (-] 1D

loss arising from changes in fair value (“-” for gain)

MEEM (el -1 3#H51)

Finance costs (“-” for gain)

23,916,119.24

25,926,995.20

BEBRL Gzl [-1 35D

Investment loss (- for gain)

TRIE AR > (N EL [ -] 351D

Decrease in deferred income tax assets (“-” for increase)

-440,821.25

483,210.74

TRIEFr AR AR A G BL (-] 351D

Increase in deferred income tax liabilities (“-” for decrease

R el T-1 53D

Decrease in inventories (“-” for increase)

-73,031,941.25

24,194,331.92

AL IR H A EmEL T-1 351D
Decrease in receivables from operating activities (“-” for
increase)

-617,540,131.99

-3,674,662,541.03

KB EEAMTIEE B G EL T-1 3151
Increase in payables from operating activities (“-” for
decrease)

595,740,042.44

3,448,689,420.03
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HH AR R4
Item Current period Prior period
oAt
Others

RO TEE A AL B IR R AR
Net cash flow from operating activities

-24,625,259.77

-174,686,709.65

LAY RB B E R E B EIEE:

2.

Non-cash significant investing and financing activities:

R R EA

Conversion of debt into capital

—EE N B ) g F 7R

Convertible corporate bonds due within one year

RN RN [ 7€

Fixed assets under finance lease

3B & KB e SR BEEN

3.

Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

4 IR B %R
Cash balance as at the end of the period

212,243,710.80

130,580,533.36

W PR

Less: cash balance as at the beginning of the period

171,793,915.32

112,928,817.62

e B ER G ER

Add: balance of cash equivalents as at the end of the period

W BRI R AR
Less: balance of cash equivalents as at the beginning of the
period

Ble KB S E Y AR

40,449,795.48 17,651,715.74
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
455 M TR E 45. Monetary items in foreign currencies
RS W AR PRI ENR W AR
HH Balance in foreign FrHEER Equivalent RMB
Item currency at the end of Exchange rate balance at the end of
the period the period
BiEE
S 441,534.71 0.9120 402,657.58
Monetary funds ’ ’
Horr: #Es
Of which: HKD 441,534.71 0.9120 402,657.58

. 15y

N AR R AR E

W
RV

SN, AR 5 O 6 R 1) 54

of consolidation.

VI. CHANGES IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

During the reporting period, the Group had no changes in scope
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. EHAbER KRR

LT AR PR R

(1) ASEEEMHAE K

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

1. Interests in subsidiaries

(1) Composition of the corporation

R LB (%)

= B
F AT FEK . a3 Proportion of ,
Jsls el A | GRSt | REMEE G olding AR
Pl f Place of Type Nature of €gIs .ere 0, Method of
Name of pri?lcc?;?al registration | of legal business Capital %) acquisition
C e usi
subsidiary | gneration status (RMB) | gy fo] 42
Direct | Indirect
BRAIEAR | BR=f IR g g | 1500000 BT
Guangdong Pearl il BT - . B0 o
. . Pharmaceutical 100.00 Established by
Charmacy River Foshan Limited o 150.00 .
o distribution L investment
Company Delta liability million
AR — 2] T
; . s .
BHRBAIEAT | B ‘ AR | g ngips | 360.00 iEGe eyl
Zhuhai Pearl il : ST Pharmaceutical B 100.00 Bubs oS
Charmacy River Zhuhai Limited distribution 3.60 : com! lne(litlon
Company Delta liability million not under
common
control
AR — 2] T
FIMAISE AT | BR=A AR s m gy | 200000 HIETEE Sl
Guangzhou Pearl ol SUE Ph:;maceutical 7T 100.00 Business
Charmacy River Guangzhou | Limited | = gistributi 20.00 ' combination
L e istribution 11 not under
Company Delta liability million
common
control
EYIAIE AT PR AR g e oo | 2,080.00 .
Shenzhen Pearl I T HEEE A ]ﬁﬁ BT &1’% L
. . Pharmaceutical 100.00 Established by
Charmacy River Shenzhen | Limited I 20.80 .
L distribution - investment
Company Delta liability million
A fA]— 1 H T
HINBIEAH | BR=A AR mpa gy | 190000 HIETEE Sl
Huizhou Pearl M AT Ph;':rn o oontical I 100.00 Business
Charmacy River Huizhou | Limited | * gistribution 15.00 : combination
Company Delta liability million not under
common
control
R A A 5 B 4 Z Rz Aliz
MRARAT | g R G 500.00 Uy o
Guangdong ", I = Multimodal o BGERROT
Pearl JE HAE &G )
Charmacy . S transport and 100.00 Established by
g River Guangzhou | Limited . 5.00 .
Pharmaceutical P transportation L investment
. Delta liability million
Logistics Co., agency
Ltd industry
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VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

1. Government grants recognized according to the amount

receivable at the end of the period

The Group does not have any balance of receivables related to the

government grants at the end of the period.

2E5PNE B4R S M BUR R BY 2. Government grants included into the current profit or loss
ERANCE bR
] FI$RIFEH Amount included in
Type Amount Item reported profit
and loss for the period
BT 7 A B P ST Aol B e
the government subsidies 5,379.70 N - %f]\llﬁ)\ 5,379.70
related to the revenue On-operating revenue
=
Total 5,379.70 — 5,379.70
Ju. E&Eh T EARR A s IX. RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

AER LR H 8 B o 1 B 25 AR e T
Habg, RO ERE. 15
b A B P s . B e TR
AR R, DAL 2 f s 2
JE 5 T R R JE o B OERCSR  R
. A [ T T e g 1
A7 A8 TR RS 4% DARE sty b3 JB g 42
FERRE IR Z N

1A 3UR b 2 B AR AR

AN S B AE T R o e B 1Y) H AR A S
AN 2 2 [ A8 5 1) P17 ot JEL
B LA S AN SR B PR
RIKT, MERR A eI EH
FR ) 2 foe KA o ik % AL B i 3 H
R, AR [ L o B ) A S S T

The Group is faced with various financial instrument risks in the
daily activities, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk primarily. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the risk management policies adopted by the
Group on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure such risks are contained within a prescribed scope.

1. Objective and policies of various risks management

The Group engages in risk management with the aim of achieving
an appropriate balance between risk and return, where the
negative effects of risks against the operating results of the Group
are minimized, and to maximize the interest of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. Based on such risk management objectives,

the fundamental strategy of risk management of the Group is to
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S N1 A A 5 1B o T 1 25 A L »
S T30 P L R 2 R ARG HE AT R
IR, N IRy RS 3 R JE AT
BB, R R I £ ) A R e 1) o [ 22

it A=)

N
(1) T 5 B
1) [ R E

A A [ 7 52 A1 B JAL R R TR B
B, BRASEEI H B SAS R & 5
PEE R IT IR M B RS, R
A B 1 HoAth S EE R B LA RS
TEAS S . TA2025%E6 H30H, MR
TR U S TR 5 BRI 3 R A £ R B R
ST 2 A 1) o PO B AR 2R IR v
SRE ] e A R [ ) A% SR A Y

I

ascertain and analyse all types of risk exposures of the Group,
establish appropriate risk tolerance thresholds, carry out risk
management procedures and perform risk monitoring on all kinds
of risks in a timely and reliable manner, thus containing risk

exposures within a prescribed scope.
(1) Market risk
1) Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk relates mainly to Hong Kong
Dollars. Except for the proceeds from the payment of H Share
dividends and minor expenses incurred in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region, other main business activities of the
Group are settled in RMB. As at 30 June 2025, the changes in the
fair value or future cash flows from the assets and liabilities of
the balance of the account denominated in HKD due to changes
in exchange rates may have impact on the Group’s operating

results as set out in the following table:

WIRERER FrEARKE

EERGE GTEARE)

Il
ItE\e a Closing balance Closing balance of last year
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
1 i VR A N
B E - 402,657.58 409,295.53

Monetary fund — HKD

A [ ) B R A S B A AR R 1Y

=

El
g

g

I;

N
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The Group closely monitors the effect of exchange rate on the

Group.
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B HAR B
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=
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A5 B PO 0 Bl 8 < A B A FH R AR R
R HUERAT,  WRED B e A AR

20725 R

INTERIM REPORT

2) Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group arises from the interest-bearing
debts such as bank loans. The floating-rate financial liabilities
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, while the fixed-
rate financial liabilities expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group determines the relative ratio of fixed-rate
contracts and floating-rate contracts based on the market
environment. As at 30 June 2025, the interest-bearing debts of the
Group were mainly fixed-rate contracts denominated in RMB,
with an amount of RMB857,900,000.00 (31 December 2024:
RMB800,040,000.00).

The risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments caused
by interest rate changes in the Group is mainly related to fixed-

rate bank loans.
(2) Credit risk

The Group manages the credit risk according to the portfolio
classification. Primarily, the credit risk mainly comes from the
monetary resources, bills receivable, accounts receivable,

receivables financing, and other receivables.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Group established special
departments to determine credit limits and perform credit
approval, and carries out other monitoring procedures to ensure
necessary measures are taken to collect overdue debts. Besides,
the Group reassesses the recovery of each receivable items on an
individual basis at each balance sheet date, so as to ensure
sufficient provision for doubtful debts is made for amounts that
are not recoverable. As such, the management of the Group
believes that the credit risks assumed by the Group has been

significantly mitigated.

The Group’s liquidity is deposited in banks with higher credit

rating, so the credit risk of the liquidity is lower.
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490,981,488.08 7T, A2 IR
FRABERI 40.73%.

1) {5 P JE o 5 3 o e A v

AR T E B FER, Wil
2 <z i LA A AR R 8 R P T E ) TR
AT N AR ANRZ T RAE R
7 AR F I E 1) T A7 AR N 1Y
EXIBER, K E S ah T A R
H W IRt AR e S BRI . (HE,
p SRS B [ e < T RAE B AL
R H R BABACHIE L EFg ), AT
AR St % <z itk L PO P IR 19 90 s e

4

AR AR BRE AN

W, wiEEE 30 H,
R B G il T RLI A P U A
BN BRAEAEEBTE MM A B2
(RIRRSN AR BU% JT IR U0 T BRI AT 845
HHHARBREE, 280
i 30 H, 15 H kS B yIaa R
AR BEE I N, 7R R 2 A5 1 RS 4
UG HERRAR 2 R G NI, AR
JE SEZAAT AN L B BRA ROA B SS )
Ep RS A G RENEE, A
FERTIEVEE B . A ENE R A
i EHANFTRNAE RS NN
fE R, EBRETIAACE R 3

b
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The Group has adopted necessary policies to ensure that all the
trade customers have good credit history.Except for the top five
accounts receivable and contract asset amounts, the Group has no
other major credit concentration risks. Among the Group’s
accounts receivable, the top five total amounts are
RMB490,981,488.08 accounting for 40.73% of the Company’s

total accounts receivable.
1) Criteria for remarkable increase of credit risk

On each balance sheet date, through comparing the default
probability of financial instrument during the determined
estimated duration in the initial recognition and the default
probability of such instrument during the estimated duration
determined on the balance sheet date, whether the credit risk of
financial instrument increases remarkably after the initial
recognition is judged. However, if the Group determines that the
financial instrument only has a low credit risk on the balance
sheet date, it may be assumed that the credit risk of such financial
instrument does not increase remarkably after the initial

recognition.

Normally, if the overdue period exceeds 30 days, it shows that
the credit risk of financial instrument increases remarkably.
Unless the Group may gain the reasonable and well-founded
information without unnecessary additional costs or efforts, the
credit risk still does not increase remarkably after the initial
recognition even if the overdue period exceeds 30 days. In
determining whether the credit risk increases remarkably after the
initial recognition, the Group considers the reasonable and well-
founded information gained without unnecessary additional costs
or efforts, including forward-looking information. Information
considered by the Group includes: business environment of the
debtor, internal and external credit rating, occurrence of any

major adverse change to the actual or expected operating results,
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whether any remarkable change occurs to the third party provided

guarantee or credit enhancement quality.
2) Definitions of assets with credit impairment

If one or multiple incidents which have adverse impacts on the
expected future cash flow of financial assets occur, such financial
assets become the financial assets with credit impairment. The
main standard for the Group to judge the occurrence of credit
impairment is “the overdue period exceeds 90 days”. However,
under some circumstances, according to the internal or external
information, before any credit enhancement is considered,
provided that the contract amount may not be recovered in full,
the Group may also deem it as the credit impairment. The credit
impairment of financial assets may be caused by the common
effects of multiple incidents, and it is not necessarily caused by

any incident which can be identified alone.

Evidences for credit impairment of financial assets include the
following observable information: the debtor suffers from any
major financial distress; the debtor violates the contract, for
example, default in interest payment or principal repayment or
overdue interest payment or principal repayment; out of economy
or contract related to the financial distress of the debtor, the
Group gives the concession which will not be provided under all
circumstances to the debtor; the debtor is likely to go bankrupt or
undergo other financial restructuring; the active market of such
financial assets disappears due to the financial distress of the

debtor.
3) Credit risk exposure

As of 30 June 2025, the biggest credit risk exposure which may
cause the financial losses against the Group mainly came from
“the Group suffers from the losses on financial assets due to the

fact that other party fails to perform the obligations”.

Book amount of financial assets recognized in the consolidated
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balance sheet; for the financial instruments measured by fair
value, the book value reflects the risk exposure, but it is not the
biggest risk exposure. Its biggest risk exposure will change with

the change of future fair value.

(3) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations at maturity. The Group manages liquidity
risk by ensuring that it has ample liquidity to meet its obligations
as they fall due without incurring unacceptable losses or causing
damage to its reputation. The Group regularly analyses the
structure and maturity of its liabilities to ensure that sufficient
funds are available. The Group’s management monitors the use
of bank loans and ensures compliance with loan agreements. It
also negotiates with financial institutions on financing to

maintain a certain credit limit and reduce liquidity risk.
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2025 4 6 H 30 H4:%: Amount as at 30 June 2025:

HH —EUN —F| =4 —FhFE AFEUE CEi
Item Within 1 year 1 to 2 years 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total

SR E

Financial assets

L e
Monetary funds
T

Bills receivables

Trade receivables
JEWK IR R &
Account
receivable
financing

oAt FESR
Other receivables
HALB) & FE
Other liquid assets

SHAR

Financial e e —_— —_— —_—
liabilities
KA
Short-term 967,683,071.97 967,683,071.97 967,683,071.97
borrowings

JEAT

Bills payables
JREA R
Accounts payable
JRE A B L 357 T
Salaries payable to 5,347,960.68 5,347,960.68 5,347,960.68
employees

FoAt TR
Other payables
—AE N B AR
i B R
Non-current 10,480,075.13 10,480,075.13 10,480,075.13
liabilities due
within one year
R
Long-term 43,200,000.00 43,200,000.00 43,200,000.00
borrowings
17 A

Contract liabilities

509,969,794.82

35,973,650.00 35,973,650.00 35,973,650.00

1,183,817,045.00 1,183,817,045.00 1,183,817,045.00

23,573,149.39 23,573,149.39 23,573,149.39

14,104,790.99 14,104,790.99 14,104,790.99

46,831,320.24 46,831,320.24 46,831,320.24

709,194,022.88 709,194,022.88 709,194,022.88

364,786,906.42 364,786,906.42 364,786,906.42

708,362,734.67 708,362,734.67 708,362,734.67

2,299,139.44 2,299,139.44 2,299,139.44
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X. RELATED PARTIES AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

1. Relationship with related parties

(1) Information about parent company of the Company

BATHELA
BRG] | BRATRARAFTK
. (%) S YL (%)
BT 4R BE LB N
EMEA Shareholding Voting Right
Name of Parent Registered Business
Registered Capital Proportion Proportion (%) of
Company Place Nature
(%) of Parent | Parent Company in
Company in the Company
the Company
LS WA ) pE | R 5000 s A s 03 o7
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. China al services RMB 750,000,000 ’ ’

(2) RRAFMTAFTEL

T fBiter AR E. 1. (D
A S 1A R o

(3) REMMMEE B BB

(4) FoAt R 7

(2) Information on the subsidiaries of the Company

For details of subsidiaries, please see “VII. 1. (1) Composition of
the corporation” under these notes.

(3) The Group has no joint ventures and associated enterprises

(4) Other related parties

FoA e B 7 2 7R

Name of other related parties

SEA A A AR
Relationship with the Company

weAHE
Yao Chuanglong

R AT 31.97%MHE, FA R #HF
Hold 31.97 shares of the Company, company director

HONGXIANG LIMITED

PAT SR AIFERIR 100% 07 HEAESUTHEH A3
A company in which Executive Director Yao Chuanglong holds 100% of the shares
and serves as Executive Director.

LT ZEREARA R

Jiangxi Pharmaceutical Investment Co., Ltd.

R AT 16.13%BHE, FITEERBMARARZFAR
Hold 16.13% shares of the Company, subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLEESRE (YD FRA A
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd.

TEERBEA R AR ZFAH
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

TLPGTLEE R B 4 A IR A 7

Jiangxi Jiangyao Renxiang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

THERMAIRAT 277
Subsidiary of Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd.

mE T AR EE L (HRE®
Nanchang Zhongcheng Pharmaceutical Management
Center (Limited Partnership)

FEBAT B S ORI AT S AR A5

Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as executive partner

ma T AMEEEE L (FRE®
Nanchang Zhonghe Pharmaceutical Management Center
(Limited Partnership)

BT E S HOORIB AT S A A3

Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as executive partner

VLG B B g S B A IR A
Jiangxi Guoxin Pharmaceutical Valley Commercial
Operation Management Co., Ltd.

FEPUT IR B AU EEFE R

Enterprise with the non-executive director Yan Jingbin acting as chairman

-134-



IR &

INTERIM REPORT

2025

FoA BB 4R

Name of other related parties

SUA AT HFR

Relationship with the Company

TLPHVTEE 5 R 38 i gl A IR A )
Jiangxi Jiangyaotang Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.

FERAT E RSB ITEF RAD S

Enterprise with the non-executive director Fu Zheng acting as the executive chairman

TR P A 5 e S S A PR A ]
Henan Chunyang Pharmaceutical Chain Co., Ltd.

FEPAT E RSB IIT EF RAE S

Enterprise with the non-executive director Fu Zheng acting as the executive chairman

JEH T AR AT %
King & Wood Mallesons

B ARPAT BRI E A AR A 3E
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the independent non-executive
Director, serves as partner

HM International Holdings Limited

S ARRAT T IR RIS A AT R A3
An enterprise in which Wan Chi Wai Anthony, the independent non-executive
Director, serves as the independent non-executive Director

WL ZSNE A EA TR A A
Zhejiang Maihong Capital Management Company Limited

ML AFT E SR B R R R . BUTE S AR A S
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
chairman, executive director and general manager

TLVG A BB BUE R B A TR A =

Jiangxi Railway & Aviation Investment Group Co., Ltd.

ML AREAT A BT AN HE R K A 3
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the external director

HeAEE AN EAE A A
Huafu Securities Co., Ltd.

FESL AR AT T A B B S AR AT TS A A
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

oK M YRR AR B AR | (e AR
5%:600373.SH, — A RifsES AL 5 I LA F])
Chinese Universe Publishing and Media Group Co., Ltd.
(stock code: 600373.SH, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange)

ST AR SR T B S A B T S R T R A A S
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

ORI A IR A (R R5E: 835483, —ZR
SRR R ST BT A D

Zhongda Construction Company Limited (stock code:
835483, a company listed on the National Equities
Exchange and Quotations)

ST ARSI T B S B T S A T B A A S
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

VLGRS G B A A PR A w1 (B 34 55%:603773.SH, —
FIA LIRS 22 b i LT A )

Jiangxi WG Tech Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603773.SH, a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange)

P AR AT T A AR U T E A5
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

TG i 2 i RHBEA AT PR 2 =)
Jiangxi Jingan High-tech Co., Ltd.

FRSL AR AT T A B R S AR AT T S A
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

TEPEERAB AT PR 7] (B4 1R 5%:605366.SH,
— A LIRS T LR~ E])

Jianxi Hungpai New Material Co., Ltd. (stock code:
605366.SH, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange)

P ARPAT T B AR U T E A5
An enterprise in which Li Hanguo, the independent non-executive Director, serves as
the independent non-executive Director

Lk 2 A B PR A A
Shanghai Baiyang Panduo Consulting Management Co.,
Ltd.

PSLARPAT I B PSRRI 100% 038 F AT HE 103
Enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive director, holds 100%
shares and serves as the executive director.

LiEETR AR R AR A A
Shanghai New Focus Investment and Development
Limited

P 37 AEBAAT HE HBSEFFIRE 70% MARAE BT E H I 3
An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director, holds 70%
of shares and serves as the legal representative of the enterprise

B EHES GRS T O CHRERD
Shanghai Baidu Longchang Enterprise Management and
Service Center (limited partnership)

L AR RAT B S B SRR 99% I IEAT AT B NI 2E
An enterprise in which Guan Jian, the independent non-executive Director, holds 99%
of shares and serves as the general partner

b e % B TR A R
Shanghal Beljiliu-Consulting-Management Co., Ltd.

ML AR AT B S B SR A IR 100% 300 H 4T A SR N d 36
An enterprise in which the independent non-executive Director Guan Jian's spouse,
holds 100% of shares and serves as the legal representative of the enterprise

fEnOw FREAE. SRIEH. (MR, IRARE. B, A
iy 2R RPIL. IRREIA. ORI, MM Fmk
£ PR

Yan Jingbin, Zheng Yuyan, Zhang Hanzi, Fu Zheng, Xu
Fei, Guan Jian, Wan Chi Wai Anthony, Li Hanguo, Zhu
Minghong, Zheng Xiyue, Zhang Ling, Lin Zhijie, Liu
Yingyu, Yao Jiexi

NEES. BHELAREEAR

Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company
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2.5

1) WESHM &SRO Z 55

IR 12 5 i L

1) SRUB R Wb/ 5255 55

2. Related party transactions

(1) Related party transactions involving the purchase and sale of

goods, the provision and receipt of services

1) Procurement and acceptance of services

P
G747 B P APBEE | EWBER
Content of related party . . R
Name of related party . Current period Prior period
transactions
N - PRAE 7 it AR 25
T 4 IN
{I%%ﬁﬁﬁ ~l Procurement and 67,372.83 112,550,707.73
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. )
acceptance of services
N b T/E s =] )
VT 4R (DU 1) R 2 PREE 7 i AR 25
. . Procurement and -3,334.69 20,893.60
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd. )
acceptance of services
YT % A= Hh 2 VR
TR R o BB R S5 3,432,307.09 2,940,128.75
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. Financing costs

(2) $HEER MR IS5 1

Note: The above amount of procurement includes rebates from

the upstream manufacturers and suppliers.

(2) Sale of goods/provision of services

7
7 458 W22 5 9% AMBEE | EWRAR
Content of related party . . .
Name of related party . Current period Prior period
transactions
VT 2% INH] S AL g L
TR A S i 1760751757
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. Procurement

(3) BAsEE FN B H (3) Compensation of key managers
TRH 4% AIAEER LB
Item name Current period Prior period
P
e . 1,727,633.25 1,464,523.77
Total compensation

(4) BT B eI

(4) Related Party Fund Lending

BTy 47 FESH eI H ZH
Name of related party Loan Amount Start Date Due Date
BB EEHA
Related Party Funds Borrowed
LSRR IR A ) 2024411 H28 H 2025412 H 26 H
1, 344, 895, 684. 60
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. 28 November 2024 26 December 2025
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3. Related party receivables and payables balances

(1) Items receivable

B e Bal. %?hjﬁigﬁ ing of th
Balance as at the end of the period alance as at the begining ol the
THH&M BRI period
Item name Related party
wEeE | e wEGE | e
Book balance rovision for Book balance rovision Jor
bad debt bad debt
FRAHREK
Prepayments
TR A IR A )
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. 745,883.42
TLEEGEE (U)ID AIRA T
Jiangyao Group (Sichuan) Co., Ltd 103,843.51 98,334.80
JEUCHR K
Trade receivable
TLVEVLEE B dE A TR A )
Jiangxi Jiangyao Renxiang Pharmaceutical 17,472.00
Co., Ltd.
(2) EAITHH (2) Payable items
o e Bookbammtsatthe | Bookbaanes st
Item name Related party ook balance at the ook balance at the
end of the period beginning of the period
JEATHRSK
Trade payables
AR AR
Jiangyao Group Co., Ltd. 754532
4. By A E 4. Commitments of Related Party

AR [ A JUY A A T 7t

5. B EF AN E I B B SRR SK

A2 [ 2 300 0 R R ] O
SR IEOL

+—. AERBEHIE
1L.EEAEEN

& 2025 4 6 H 30 H, AEHARGF
TE T 0 AN 10 B B U S

The Group does not have the commitments of related party this

period.

5. Outstanding loans receivable from directors and directors'

affiliated enterprises

The Group has no outstanding loans receivable from directors and

directors' affiliated enterprises in current period.

XI. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1. Important commitment

By 30 June 2025, the Group had no important commitment which

must be disclosed.
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LEAEHIH

AR B AE R TN B N ORI DL R
(BA: EJo) -

2. Contingencies

The Group’s internal guarantees during the reporting period are

as follows (Unit: RMB0’000):

HH PG 3 I EAE

Item Amount for the period Amount for last period
BEFA | HAHYEOR
Mutual guarantee between parent company and 303,400.00 251,200.00
subsidiary company

BRAAAE_EIR PR SIS, AL I
b 75 99 R ) AT ST

= BERBERBREH

A B AR HAEH, A A
B A E AR R HIH,

+=. RAEEHIR
A [ A ) i A L IR
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Apart from the above disclosures, no other contingencies of the
Group need to be disclosed.

XII. EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE
SHEET DATE

As at the date of approval of this financial report, the Group has
no subsequent events on the balance sheet date that are subject to
disclosure.

XIII. OTHER IMPORTANT MATTERS

The Group had no other material disclosures during the Period.
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XIV. NOTES TO MAJOR ITEMS OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY

1. Trade receivables

TRE 48

Name of item

IR

Closing balance

AR AR

Closing balance of last year

TSR K

Trade receivables

545,163,891.80

558,029,118.97

W BRIRYEM

Less: Provision for bad debt

4,431,388.14

4,054,826.50

B

Net amount

540,732,503.66

553,974,292.47

(1) NIRRT 5 77 1% 70

(1) Accounts receivable by the method of provisioning for bad

7l debt
HIRBHR
Closing balance
5 FREARER BRI
Classification Book balance YOS Provision for bad debt T
458 » t/" &5F SHEEH (%) Book value
Amount er::/l:)age Amount Provision ratio (%)
i BLUIEEH R YA
Bad debt provision made on 1,067,544.27 0.20 1,067,544.27 100.00
individual basis
A A R RR YA
Bad debt provision made on a 544,096,347.53 99.80 3,363,843.87 0.62 540,732,503.66
collective basis
Hrp, SHA
l/ncElP .Agtiigilgfn:tiolio 544,096,347.53 99.80 3,363,843.87 0.62 540,732,503.66
aat
Total 545,163,891.80 100.00 4,431,388.14 — 540,732,503.66
EEERBE
Closing balance of last year
i PR &R AR BRI
e L Book balance Provision for bad debt
Classification o o0 ERHEM
&5 i t/" & SHEHH (%) Book value
Amount er:ne/n)age Amount Provision ratio (%)
o
i B TE G R M A
Bad debt provision made on 1,067,525.37 0.19 1,067,525.37 100.00
individual basis
A A AT PR
Bad debt provision made on a 556,961,593.60 99.81 2,987,301.13 0.54 553,974,292.47
collective basis
. HEEA 4D
I%CTAg/%EZ?I;fIT?OHO 556,961,593.60 99.81 2,987,301.13 0.54 553,974,292.47
adt
Total 558,029,118.97 100.00 4,054,826.50 — 553,974,292.47
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2. oAt R 2. Other receivables

HH HRERER AR RERER

Item Closing balance Closing balance of last year
JREWCH S
Interests receivable
i ldiel
Dividend receivable 30,000,000.00
H Ee
”@FEW?‘A 256,796,645.07 82,773,621.84
Other receivables
&5t

286,796,645.07 82,773,621.84

Total

2.1 HoAt IR

(1) HAt BRI aRTANE

2.1 Other receivables

(1) Classification of other receivables by fund nature

AIEE HIARERHE EEEERGE
Fund nature Closing balance Closing balance of last year
£l o
TR 247,586,045.19 73,547,335.50
Money transfers
27¢ A
Pt 52 . 8,007,752.00 8,640,538.00
Cash deposit
N
fi 2 1,207,847.88 590,748.34
Imprest fund
FoAt
N 30,000,000.00
Other U
a3t
286,801,645.07 82,778,621.84
Total
P SRR
Less: Provision for bad debt 5,000.00 5,000.00
i 286,796,645.07 82,773,621.84
Net amount
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(2) Provisions for bad debt of other receivables

BERIER

Provision for bad debt

24
First stage

HoRRER

Second stage

=B
Third stage

Rk 12 A TR
EGIENEE S

BEAERTNGERR
FOREERRRE)
12-month Lifetime expected
expected credit credit loss (not

loss credit-impaired)

BEFEATESERE
ROHAEBHBIE)
Lifetime expected
credit loss (credit-
impaired)

a3
Total

202541 H 1 HER%ER
Balance on 1 January 2025

5,000.00

5,000.00

2025 4F 1 J3 1 H HoAt R I ER AL A )
Book balance of other receivables on 1 January
2025 in the period

R YN a2

—Transferred to the second stage

YN 12
—Transferred to the third stage

- 5 T RS
—Reversed to the second stage

- [ 5 — P B

—Reversed to the first stage

A
Accrued for the period

P

Reversed in the period

A5
Written off in the period

ES 3

Cancelled in the period

Hofth g )
Other changes

2025 4 6 A 30 DA&R%EH
Balance on 30 June 2025

5,000.00

5,000.00
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(1) RIPIHEBIE 245

CHARMACY PHARMACEUTICAL CO.,LTD.

3. Long-term equity investments

(1) Classification of long-term equity investments

BIARGREH

Closing balance

LSRG

Closing balance of last year

HH

Item

HR T R

Book balance

WAEYEH
Provisions for
impairment

FR T (E

Book value

SR T R

Book balance

BAEEH
Provisions for
impairment

SRR E

Book value

1 A A
&
Investment
in the
subsidiaries

230,578,852.24

230,578,852.24

230,078,852.24

230,078,852.24

&5t
Total

230,578,852.24

230,578,852.24

230,078,852.24

230,078,852.24

(2) #HTrFEpAE

(2) Investment in the subsidiaries

iE5a = g: i

Investees

EEFERBER

Closing balance
of last year

233
Addition in
the period

AR
Reduction in the
period

HARGRER

Closing
balance

b R
BUEYEM
Provision for
impairment for
the period

WELEE
HAAREREH
Closing balance
of provision for
impairment

R AL AT
Guangdong
Charmacy
Company

150,000,000.00

150,000,000.00

BRI AISE A T
Zhuhai
Charmacy
Company

25,710,000.00

25,710,000.00

BRI T
Guangzhou
Charmacy
Company

20,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

FINAISE R
Shenzhen
Charmacy
Company

20,800,000.00

20,800,000.00

BN AR A
Huizhou
Charmacy
Company

13,468,852.24

13,468,852.24

JRR A 5% e
WA PR A
Guangdong
Charmacy
Pharmaceutical
Logistics Co.,
Ltd

100,000.00

500,000.00

600,000.00

&at
Total

230,078,852.24

500,000.00

230,578,852.24
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4. Operating revenue and operating cost

(1) Basic information on business revenue and business expenses

AHHBEAER AR
IEH Current period Prior period
Item A A WA A
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
T EH
Principal 640,353,457.09 589,690,821.24 828,687,543.38 778,368,460.82
businesses
HiAh 2E7
”ﬂﬂ%ﬁ. 48,196,465.67 3,404,213.69 48,241,856.84 1,888,092.74
Other businesses
A
IT:'oiIl 688,549,922.76 593,095,034.93 876,929,400.22 780,256,553.56

T, HABREGAAE

AA IR HL 2025 4F 8 H 28 Hili#&

Fa i,

RIS EEZE A AT BR 2 ]

2025 8 A 28 H

XV. APPROVAL FOR FINANCIAL REPORT

The financial report was approved by the Board on 28 August

2025.

Charmacy Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

28 August 2025
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